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To the shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), we are
pleased to present the annual results and the annual report
for the year ended 31st December 2019 of China Star
Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Group”) to the shareholders.

During the year, the Group continued to focus on the long term
policy of implementing its existing two segments of continuing
operations, namely (1) the film related business operations;
and (2) the property development and investment operations.
However, owing to the fact that these two operations are not
able to generate steady periodic revenue, the Group cannot
provide stability in its yearly revenue. Besides, the restaurant
operations, our newly established operations in the second
half of the year, also could only generate limited revenue. All
the above operations were inevitably impacted by the enduring
China-USA trade war and the social unrest and subsequent
violent events associated with the Anti-Extradition Law
Amendment Bill Movement taken place in Hong Kong in the
second half of the year, which had resulted in anxiety-ridden
effects and adverse market conditions.

What was worse, the outbreak of a new type pneumonia
in Wuhan, China (later formally named by the World
Health Organization (WHO) as Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19")) during and after the Chinese New Year had
spread nationwide and even became a pandemic across the
globe, wreaking havoc to date. In response to the epidemic,
a number of social distancing and confining measures have
implemented by governments in China, Asia and the whole
world, with an aim to keep people from gathering and to deter
the spread of the epidemic. It goes without saying that such
measures have inflicted heavy damage to business activities,
such that the economic performance of Macau and Hong
Kong, where our operations are based, admits of no optimism,
and consequently the Group’s operational progress and
performance in 2020 would surely be encumbered.
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Nevertheless, the Group continued to follow the practice
used last year to reward the shareholders by proposing
and obtaining the shareholders’ approval of the proposal to
declare the payment of a special interim dividend of HK12.5
cents per share to the shareholders and the bonus convertible
bondholders whose names appear on the Company’s
respective registers on the record dates out of the Company’s
contributed surplus. In addition, the Group was pleased to
announce that the Group has obtained the occupational permit
for Project Tiffany House in December 2019 before the expiry
date of the land concession and the development period,
which implies that we have made significant progress in the
aspect of the property development and investment operations
(despite that relevant works may be delayed by the epidemic
situation for the time being) and hopefully brought about a
higher investment return for the Group and the shareholders.

Looking back on the property market (before taking into
consideration of the impact of the epidemic situation),
according to the data published by Centaline Property
Macau, a leading property agency, on 8th January 2020,
the residential market continued to be dominated by starter-
home buyers last year. This starter-home buying spree lasted
for around two years and, along with the consumption of
the starter-home purchasing power, the total trading volume
dropped accordingly to about 8,000 transactions in 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 20% as compared
with about 10,000 transactions annually for 2018. In respect
of housing prices, the prices calculated in terms of saleable
area averaged approximately MOP110,000 per square meter (if
calculated in 70% of gross floor area, averaged approximately
MOP7,150 per square foot), which approximated with those
of 2018. As to the shop market, affected by external factors,
the consuming desire of tourists visiting Macau dampened,
of which the per capita consumption of mainland tourists
dropped the most to approximately 26.7%. Coupled with the
drop in gaming revenue of 3.4% vyearly, it was imputed that
there were about 65 transactions in the fourth quarter and
the total trading volume was about 418 transactions for the
year, representing a decrease of approximately 33% vyearly.
Lease recorded similar drop in trading volume with a relatively
stable rent decrease of only approximately 3%. As to the office

J
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market, the total trading volume was about 182 transactions
for the year, a decline of approximately 30% yearly, but the
price dropped at approximately 5% in general. Besides,
according to the “Macau Property Market Review 2019”
released by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) on the same date, there
were totally 5,217 new companies incorporated in Macau in
the first ten months of 2019, an increase of 3.2% yearly, which
helped maintain a broadly steady office market in Macau with
a vacancy rate of only approximately 7%. However, the recent
outbreak of COVID-19 would almost without doubt cause a
negative impact on Macau as well as its property market, such
that we may not be able to proceed, as scheduled, with the
development of the two existing projects in Macau, namely (i)
Project Tiffany House at Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona
de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE), Macau, of which the
relevant final interior renovation and sale are expected to be
postponed; and (ii) Lot 7, da Zone C do Plano de Urbanizacao
da Zone da Baia de Praia Grande, located at Nam Van Lakes
Zone, Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho, Macau registered with the
Macau Land and Real Estate Registry under no. 23070 (the
“Property C7”). This project is supposed to commence its
development after the completion of Project Tiffany House,
but now it will be delayed accordingly. However, with Macau’s
calm, organised handling of the coronavirus crisis, the Group
has an optimistic attitude towards the property market in
Macau and persisting confidence in the prospects of Macau.
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With regard to the film related business operations, our new
film named “Chasing Dream” was released in November of the
year in the PRC, but only to recorded undesirable box office
for a number of factors. More films productions will commence
in coming years so long as the feasibility study for new films
is satisfactory, but all will depend on the development of the
epidemic situation. For television drama series, the Group
has prepared a few story boards of television drama series
and is assessing the feasibility of these story boards. As to a
television drama series of around 6 episodes that has passed
its feasibility study and is expected to start its shooting within
this year, the shooting of which will be delayed in light of
the market conditions this year and the development of the
epidemic situation, and will not resume shooting until it is
better prepared.

On the other hand, in the third quarter of year 2019, the Group
opened a new cafe at Sheung Wan, Hong Kong in the Group’s
owned property, serving various high-end international cuisine
in the brand name of “Obba Bar”. By using our experience
in the catering services in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau in
the past few years, the Group has extended its business to
catering services which aims to deliver high quality food,
luxury ambience and thoughtful service at affordable prices.
Likewise, the performance of this business will inevitably be
affected by the above-mentioned social unrest in the second
half of 2019 and the epidemic situation for the time being.

-
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The Board is convinced that China is sure to win this battle
against the epidemic under the leadership of the Centra
Government headed by President Xi with a unity of will. We
also believe that all worries at present will eventually be over
along with a ceasefire of trade war after the signing of the first
stage trade treaty between China and the US, the recovery
of consumption and investment confidence as the receding
of the epidemic and the restoration of growth of the global
economy and that of Macau. What is more, the launch by the
Central Bank of serious of finance facilitating measures (such
as elevating the daily remittance limit for residents in Macau),
the planned establishment of a stock exchange denominated
in RMB in Macau and the accelerated implementation of the
RMB settlement centre in the pipeline associated with the
visit to Macau by President Xi after his prior visit five years
ago, we have full confidence in the prospects of the Greater
Bay Area and Macau, and are delighted to see the launch for
sale of Project Tiffany House (despite that it will be delayed
for the epidemic situation), as well as the diversification of
our operations to catering services in Hong Kong, in the hope
of generating higher profits and return for the Group and the
shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
extend my immense appreciation to the shareholders for their
relentless support, our staff force for their unremitting spirit,
and our business partners for their cooperation and support.
I would also like to convey regards to those people in the
epidemic area, pay tribute to frontline workers and medical
personnel, and wish that the epidemic will be under control
soon.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2019, the Group recorded
revenue from continuing operations of approximately
HK$7,053,000, representing an increase of 102% as compared
to HK$3,4983,000 for the year ended 31st December 2018.

Loss for the year amounted to HK$335,731,000 as compared
to a profit of HK$1,053,519,000 for the year ended 31st
December 2018. Such turnaround is mainly attributable to
the aggregate effect of: (i) the absence of recognition for
profit from discontinued operation of HK$1,458,855,000 from
disposal of the hotel and gaming services operations of the
Group in last year; (ii) the substantial increase in impairment
loss recognised in respect of film rights for the year ended
31st December 2019 of HK$125,246,000 from HK$571,000 for
the year ended 31st December 2018; and (iii) the substantial
decrease in the recognition of loss arising on change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$183,582,000 for the year ended 31st December 2019 from
HK$360,209,000 for the year ended 31st December 2018.

Loss for the year from continuing operations amounted
to HK$335,731,000, representing a decrease of 17%
from HK$405,336,000 for the year ended 31st December
2018. Profit for the year ended 31st December 2018 from
discontinued operation amounted to HK$1,458,855,000.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2019 amounted to HK$335,226,000 as
compared to a profit of HK$1,053,530,000 in the previous year.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2019 (2018:
nil).

During the year, the board of directors recommended a special
interim dividend of HK12.5 cents per share in aggregate
amount of HK$339,008,000 to the shareholders and bonus
convertible bondholders of the Company. The special interim
dividend was paid on 18th October 2019 out of the Company’s
contributed surplus after the approval by the shareholders
of the Company in a special general meeting held on 27th
September 2019.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the board of
directors declared a special dividend of HK15 cents per share
in aggregate amount of HK$420,326,000 to the shareholders
and bonus convertible bondholders of the Company. The
special dividend was paid on 25th January 2019.

9
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing Operations

The Group has three continuing reportable segments - (1) film
related business operations; (2) property development and
investment operations; and (3) restaurant operations, a new
business in the year.

Of the total revenue for the year, HK$6,466,000 or 92% was
generated from film related business operations, nil or 0%
was generated from property development and investment
operations and HK$587,000 or 8% was generated from
restaurant operations.

Film Related Business Operations

Film related business operations included investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and television
drama series and provision of other film related services
including artist management services.

In year 2019, revenue from film related business operations
amounted to HK$6,466,000 (2018: HK$3,493,000) and
its segment loss amounted to HK$169,199,000 (2018:
HK$14,477,000). The segment loss were mainly impairment
loss recognised in respect of film rights of HK$125,246,000
(2018: HK$571,000) which come from the film released
by the Group during the year. The Group has released its
new production, “Chasing Dream” which received positive
feedback from the film industry. However,
and revenue were below expectation. Various external
factors have impacted the Hong Kong environment in recent
months, making for a challenging time for the film industry in
Hong Kong and China. As majority revenue of Chinese film

the box office

contributed by the China market, the Group incurred significant
loss from this film. The Group has been engaging in the film
business for more than 20 years. Film production normally
involves three stages including pre-production, production or
shooting and post-production. From the pre-production stage
to theatrical release of Chinese film in Hong Kong, it normally
takes more than one year and sometimes several years to
complete. The majority of revenue in film will record within
the following two years after the film is released. As such, it
is the characteristic of film production and distribution that
revenue is not recognised evenly with time. The Group also
has investment in production of film which is co-financing with
other production companies and will shared revenue from the
invested film according to the investment percentage in the
relevant agreement. The Group takes a passive role in this
kind of co-production arrangement but needs to contribute
less human resource.
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For television drama series, the Group has prepared a few
story board of television drama series and assessing the
feasibility of these story board. No production of television
drama series had started during the year 2019.

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
in early 2020, all preparation for film productions have slow
down recently. No film is now in shooting stage. The Group
will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on our film operations.

Property Development and Investment Operations

Property development and investment operations included
investing and development of properties located in Macau.
Currently, the Group has two projects under development in
Macau, namely (i) Lot C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da Baia de
Praia Grande, located in the Nam Van Lakes Zone, at Avenida
Doutor Stanley Ho, registered with the Macau Land and Real
Estate Registry under no. 23070 (the “Property C7”); and (ii)
the combined site at Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona de
Aterros do Porto Exterior, Macau which is tentatively named as
“Tiffany House” (the “Project Tiffany House”).

In year 2019, no revenue was recorded from property
development and investment operations and its segment
loss amounted to approximately HK$14,071,000 (2018:
HK$9,206,000). The segment loss mainly represented
administrative expenses in this segment.

Under the Urbanistic Conditions Plan, the Property C7 which
is a lot of land with the site area of 4,669 square meters, will
be developed for residential and parking purpose, with the
maximum allowed height of the building of 34.5 meters above
sea level and maximum utilization rate of 5.58 (parking not
included). An architect has been engaged and is still in the
process to compile a development plan of the Property C7 in
accordance with the parameters for submission to the Land,
Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau (“DSSOPT”) for
approval. The very preliminary development plan is to develop
a building under strata title with gross floor areas (in square
meters) for residential of 26,047 and parking of 5,200. The
development of the Property C7 is expected to start after the
development of the Project Tiffany House.
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Project Tiffany House is adjacent to Macao Polytechnic
Institute and next to Golden Lotus Square, and is a couple
of blocks away from Macau Fisherman’'s Wharf and Sands
Casino. Project Tiffany House has a gross floor area of (a)
residential — 31,192 square meters, including approximately
1,900 square meters for clubhouse (b) commercial — 3,716
square meters and (c) parking — 11,250 square meters and
will provide 230 units in two towers, with units ranging from
studio flats to four-bedroom apartments as well as special
units. A prestigious clubhouse will provide a wide range of
facilities and retail space at the podium will become a major
shopping arcade in the neighbourhood. Construction works
started in June 2017 and has obtained its occupational permit
in December 2019. Project Tiffany House is now under interior
renovation and is expected to launch for sale in the fourth
quarter of year 2020. Upon completion of all renovation, the
neighbourhood will be greatly upgraded which provides its
residents with a unique living and shopping experience.

The Group acquired the property leasehold rights (and the
inherent transfer to China Star Creative Development Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company (“CSCDL") of the legal titles)
of Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona de Aterros do
Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”) from Sociedade de Turismo
e Diversoes de Macau, S. A.. Lot 6B is in trapezium shape
with a site area of 1,420 square meters next to Million Dragon
Hotel (the hotel was owned by the Group at that time) and
Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E are in rectangular shape with each
site area of 1,292 square meters next to Lot 6B and adjacent
of each other with three six-meter width roads dividing them
separately. In order to enhance the commercial value of the
Sites, the Group had decided to build a luxury residential and
commercial complex of two towers with spacious apartment
units in Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E, i.e. the Project Tiffany
House and Lot 6B would be developed into recreational area
in front of the Project Tiffany House, which was expected
to have higher selling prices than the existing development
plan of the individual Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E.
This development plan also responded strongly to the local
planning authorities requirements for connectivity with the
existing city and thus considerable portions of the area of the
Sites have been dedicated to public use. Finally, the DSSOPT
has approved the combination of development of the Project
Tiffany House in July 2016.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#k

P2 S B GBAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B P g G ¥ J% 73 Bt Management Discussion and Analysis

DREESZSHENLIHHEEER  AEE LS EBMK
MLZEBFIRITEE BRESHRSHBRBERAS
6B ER - FE6CHIER - FODHI B R FoEM R & R E
HoRZE—ZFRA AEEBRAREREEEN
BRERHAMERES T IR K - 2% X BH
BB ESMPASBRERZERENS - ZRZRFH
BB MTRME TSR R EEKERBNRFIGRE
B AEEEYE BEEENERSBETES RMA
ATSEE RORPI S DB E IR ERRR - BUBERPIBRT
REBEREENZEERREBAEUAE « S HE M
EEZEAESHETIR  BERCEESTANTE -
AR PI BT E 2R #E 6B ER  F6CHIER - S6D R
REGEHMEBMAMNERES  FOBHBRMN THFIED
R-ZE—NME+-_A-+ABER THIEBERE
TE-ME=ZRERZBMAFLHE  BBE-_Z—X
F+—AZ+=BHEFRHREA7IETIEE50/20165%
HRFRRE L TR IE EHE2EBER T
—MEF+—A-TRATHEFEE RS ARER L -
REFEER T FE+-A=Z+RHEBRIPRERR
EREEF - RZZE—NFXRA+—8 ARAIKEE
FBARELARBSEAE-T—\FEXANBHRHE
FERBEEREE &K EFORE ((ZAT]D) - Bt 8
6B B % F R PTER T UL Bl -

Bk

Immediately after the acquisition of the property leasehold
rights of the Sites, the Group held meetings with various
departments of Macau Government to seek their views on
the proposed development of the Sites as the combined
development of Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E. In May
2012, the Group submitted the architectural design and
drawings of the Project Tiffany House to the DSSOPT for
approval. Following the submission, meetings have been held
with various departments of Macau Government for following
up the proposed development plan. Given that the location of
the Sites is adjacent to Macao Polytechnic Institute and several
tourist spots, Forum de Macao, Grand Prix Museum, Wine
Museum and Golden Lotus Square, and is a couple of blocks
away from Macau Fisherman’s Wharf and Sands Casino, it is
believed that the Macau Government required longer time to
study the impacts of the proposed development of the Project
Tiffany House on traffic, environment and cultural heritage
in the surrounding area, before the grant of an approval.
Owing to the delay by the Macau Government in granting the
proposed development of the combined development of Lot
6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E, the land concession of Lot 6B
has expired on 25th December 2014. DSSOPT has started
the administration work to reclaim it on dispatch 50/2016
published in the Official Gazette no. 47, Il, of 23rd November
2016 according to Macau new Land Law effective in March
2014 for the reason that Lot 6B is undeveloped land on the
expiry of the land concession on 25th December 2014. The
Group has filed an appeal to the President of the Macau
Second Instance Court on 30th December 2016. On 11th
June 2018, the Company received a letter dated 8th June
2018 from the Tribunal de Ultima Instancia (43)AFT) of the
Macau Government, in which the Tribunal de Ultima Instancia
(4238 5%Bt) rejected the application of the final appeal (the
“Decision”). Accordingly, Lot 6B will be reclaimed by the
Macau Government.
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As stated above, Lot 6B is planned to develop into a
recreational area besides the Project Tiffany House and the
Group treated the development of the Sites (i.e. the Project
Tiffany House and Lot 6B collectively) as one development
project in its financial position since the acquisition of the
property leasehold rights of the Sites. In addition, in order
to increase the chance of combined the development of Lot
6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E, one of the conditions for DSSOPT to
approve the combination of development of the Project Tiffany
House was to keep Lot 6B as an undeveloped land. Although
Lot 6B will be reclaim by the Macau Government, based on
the property valuation report as at 31st December 2019, the
market value of the Project Tiffany House is approximately
HK$4,537 million (no value added factor of the recreational
area of Lot 6B was included in this valuation) which together
is higher than the book value of the cost of the Project Tiffany
House and Lot 6B. Given that the valuation of the Sites is
higher than its book value, no impairment loss is recognised in

respect of the stock of properties as a result of the Decision.

According to the legal opinion obtained by the Company, the
Group has legal ground to seek civil claims against the Macau
Government for compensation of damages sustained by the
Group. In this situation, as Lot 6B is intended to develop as
recreational area and the Macau Government has approved
the development plan of the Project Tiffany House, the Group
considers that it is difficult to sustain its damages incurred. As
such, the Group will closely monitor the development of the
Project Tiffany House and ensure to maximize its investment
return from this project.

Restaurant Operations

In the third quarter of year 2019, the Group opened a new café
at Sheung Wan, Hong Kong in the Group’s owned property,
serving various high-end international cuisine in the brand
name of “Obba Bar”.

In year 2019, revenue from restaurant operations amounted to
HK$587,000 and its segment loss amounted to HK$4,083,000.
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By using our experience in the catering services in Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong Macau in the past few years, the Group has
extended its business to catering services which aims to
deliver high quality food, luxury ambience and thoughtful
service at affordable prices. Our customers are impressed by

our services and food provided.

Discontinued Operation
Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

Hotel and gaming service operations was discontinued during
the year ended 31st December 2018.

Hotel and gaming service operations included the hotel
operation in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (currently known
as Million Dragon Hotel) which was recorded in an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
(Macau) Limited; services provided to the casino situated in
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau which was recorded in an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Classic Management
& Services Company Limited and other ancillary services
provided in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau.

As the disposal of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has been
approved by the shareholders of the Company in a special
general meeting held on 11th December 2017 and completed
on 3rd January 2018, the hotel and gaming service operations
was recorded as discontinued operation for the year ended
31st December 2018.

The Group had shared revenue and segment loss for the
period from 1st January 2018 to 3rd January 2018 (completion
date of disposal) of HK$3,957,000 and HK$6,376,000 from
the hotel and gaming service operations and recorded a gain
on disposal of the hotel and gaming services operations of
HK$1,465,231,000.

Geographical Segments

For the geographical segments from the continuing operations,
revenue of HK$752,000 or 11% (2018: HK$719,000 or
21%) was sourced from Hong Kong, HK$5,861,000 or 83%
(2018: HK$1,233,000 or 35%) was sourced from China and
HK$440,000 or 6% (2018: HK$1,541,000 or 44%) was sourced
from other territories.
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Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2019, administrative
expenses from continuing operations amounted to
HK$78,546,000 (2018: HK$84,312,000),
decrease of 7%.

representing a

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st December 2019, the Group had total assets of
HK$5,398,206,000 (2018: HK$5,483,222,000) and a net current
assets of HK$3,156,891,000 (2018: HK$3,961,647,000),
representing a current ratio of 2.9 (2018: 4.8). The Group had
cash and bank balances and time deposits of HK$498,020,000
(2018: HK$1,156,735,000).

As at 31st December 2019, the Group had total borrowing
of HK$1,042,644,000 (2018: nil) which comprised a secured
bank term loan (the “Term Loan”) of HK$1,030,150,000 and
lease liabilities of HK$12,494,000. The purpose of the Term
Loan is to finance the construction costs and any other
soft costs in relation to the Project Tiffany House. The Term
Loan is in multiple drawdown and secured by the leasehold
land and properties to be erected on the land of the Project
Tiffany House with carrying amount as stock of properties of
HK$1,651,619,000,
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) for three or six month period selected

interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank

by the borrower plus margin of 3.35% per annum for each
interest period and repayable by the earlier of (i) 36 months
from date of the agreement of the Term Loan or (ii) 9 months
after date of issuing of the occupation permit of the Project
13th September 2020. The Group has
planned to negotiate with the bank to extend the maturity date

Tiffany House i.e.

of the Term Loan to a date after the sales of the Project Tiffany
House. No negotiation has started yet and the Group does not
foresee any problem with this extension.

As at 31st December 2019, the Group had banking
facilities amounting to HK$1,600,000,000 which were
utilised to the extent of HK$1,030,150,000. The Group’s
gearing was acceptable during the year with total
debts of HK$1,042,644,000 against owners’
HK$3,687,539,000. This represents a gearing ratio, calculated

equity of

in the basis of the Group’s total borrowings over owners’ equity
of 28% (2018: 0%).
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As at 31st December 2019, the net proceeds from the
allotment and issue of 1,807,406,986 rights shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.25 per share on 6th August 2018
of approximately HK$448,850,000, of which HK$350,000,000
was unused and will be used for its intended purpose to
finance the business operations of the property development
and investment; and HK$98,850,000 was used to fund the film
and television drama series related business operations as
intended.

The net proceeds of HK$50,400,000 from the allotment and
issue of 90,000,000 shares from the exercise of 90,000,000
share options during the year ended 31st December 2018 was
used as the general working capital of the Group as intended.

As at the date of approving these final results and as at 31st
December 2019, the fair value of the Group’s equity securities
listed in Hong Kong held at 31st December 2019 (excluding
suspend trading securities as at 31st December 2019)
was approximately HK$152,368,000 and HK$221,432,000
respectively.

During the year, the Group acquired HK$75,945,000 equity
securities listed in Hong Kong and disposed proceeds of
HK$32,495,000 equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss of HK$51,987,000 was resulted
from change in fair values of equity securities listed in Hong
Kong between the year ended 31st December 2018 and 31st
December 2019. As at 31st December 2019, no single equity
security’s fair value held by the Group accounted for 5% or
more of the total assets of the Group.

As at 31st December 2019, the Group had loan receivables in
carrying amount of HK$199,127,000 which are interest bearing
at 3% to 8% per annum and will matured within the next twelve
months. All interest due from loan receivables were received in
accordance with the terms in their corresponding agreements
on due date except one borrower who has stayed in China
since his loan interests due and cannot come back to Hong
Kong to settle it. The Group will closely monitor this loan and
take appropriate action if necessary.

During the year ended 31st December 2019, no share options
of the Company were granted, exercised, lapsed, expired or
cancelled.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December 2019, stock of properties of the Group in
amount of HK$1,651,619,000 (2018: HK$1,113,595,000) and
quota capital of CSCDL which is engaged in the business of
property development and investment had been pledged for
banking facilities of HK$1,600,000,000 granted to the Group,
and time deposits of the Group in amount of HK$249,000
(2018: HK$249,000) had been pledged as guarantee to
Macau government for deposits in the development of stock of
properties in Macau.

EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, Macau Pataca, United
States Dollar and Renminbi. The exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates in Renminbi mainly arises from receipts
and expenditure incurred in film investment, production and
distribution. The Group has closely monitors its exposure to
this fluctuation and consider appropriate hedging activities if
necessary. The exposure to fluctuation in other currencies is
considered to be minimal and no hedge activity is considered

necessary.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2019, outstanding commitments
by the Group amounted to HK$640,480,000, of which
HK$373,110,000 as development expenditure for stock of
properties in Macau, HK$263,452,000 for film rights, films in
progress and film deposits and HK$3,918,000 as expenditure
for leasehold improvement.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2019,
contingent liability.

the Group had no material

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

There were no significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31st December 2019,
staff (2018: 52 staff) with employee benefit expenses of
HK$43,886,000 (2018: HK$58,740,000) from the continued
operations. The directors believe that the quality of its

the Group employed 64

employees is the single most important factor in sustaining the
Group’s reputation and improving its profitability. The staff are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional
experience and prevailing industry practices. Apart from basic
salaries, pension fund, housing allowances, meal allowances,
medical schemes and discretionary bonuses, share options
are awarded to certain staff according to the assessment of
individual performance.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no significant event took place subsequent to end of
the reporting date.

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across region. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and operation
results of the Group. As at the date of approving these final
results, the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects on the financial statements as a result of the COVID-19

outbreak.

19



20

e EB B AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %F$R

B P g i 2t % 73 Bt Management Discussion and Analysis

Al 5%
EAR-E-NEFEBSEREME KBRS

FEFE AT CHE -  BE_Z=_ZFYMHCOVID-19&
o

REZHBEGREEGRMERERRELEER
W%FEE%$ ERHEBRFEHNRE RS  RAKHE
BERBFURAREREL -AEECHEEXBRERE
RRHEAHBERENEBRREXT HEBTUH—HE
BONSEEETRER NERERRELEEBI®E
BEERRE - ZEHASNFHFTERLRE A
T_EERARAEERLEUN—F - FREPIRET MR
BEBRSEMEKRIE  SAKEHAMAMET SR
REBRERHRMAMIERBEDL ARESEERE
FBEREAGEARBNEY R EREEB HIERET
ES R h”%%&%ﬁ@ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬂwaﬂ'$%ﬁ
DNl EREEBRERRETZHANK

= g2/

& 7
EFTER “ﬁ@%%'ukmﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ o BRE
RMEEZREREEBRFNERRAEZITROET

B FEEHREEZREREABNKCERBTRR
Eh - HETERARERARMNEEME R

COVID-19@ B N HAKEM B ENEEGE
HHASEERMEBLENEE - AEEFEDER
COVID-19BEMER KT HEETREEBHTE -
N S R A R

RERAK AKEREEXNRERRERBEEE
ReEAENEN BEREREZGADREUSFEEHHE -

PROSPECT

Hong Kong has faced great challenges in year 2019 with
China-USA trade war and social unrest during the year and
COVID-19 outbreak in the beginning of year 2020.

Owing to the fact that film related business operations and
property development and investment operations are not
able to generate steady periodic revenue, the Group cannot
provide stability in its yearly revenue. The Group has extended
its business to restaurant operations which can provide
relatively steady revenue but it still need time to implement this
new business. For the property development and investment
operations, Year 2020 is expected to be a fruitful year for the
Group as the Project Tiffany House will be launched for sale in
the fourth quarter. With Macau’s calm, organised handling of
coronavirus crisis, the Group has an optimistic attitude towards
the property market in Macau and persisting confidence in the
prospects of Macau. The Group will continue its furtherance
and development of production and distribution operations
in its own established film and television drama series. The
Group has also undergone various co-operations with well-
known film/television drama series production companies to
produce new films/television drama series if their plots are
attractive in order to increase our production capacity. Given
our experience in film and television drama series production
and distribution network in the film and television drama series
industry, the Group is confident in the production of film and
television drama series operations and can maximizing our
value and return.

Although the COVID-19 outbreak will not have material impact
on the Group’s financial position, it may slow down the
progress of our business operations. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on our operations and if necessary, rethink

our business strategies.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to strive to achieve
healthy and stable growth by enhancing profitability, maximize
its investment return and position to appropriate business
opportunity.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 71, is the Chairman and
executive director of the Company. He is the husband of Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, Vice Chairman and executive director
of the Company. He has over 30 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries. He was the founder
of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win's”) and One Hundred
Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred Years”), which
produces films recommended by audiences and distributors
around the world. He is also the honorable chairman and
director of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr. Heung was appointed
as an executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 63, is the Vice Chairman
and executive director of the Company and the wife of Mr.
Heung Wah Keung. She has over 25 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries and over 10 years of
experience in property development. Ms. Chen has produced
a number of blockbuster films for Win’'s and One Hundred
Years. In 2003, she was selected as one of 2003 Women
in Entertainment — International Power by The Hollywood
Reporter. For the years from 2006 to 2010, Ms. Chen was
involved in the planning, monitoring and management of the
renovation and operation of “Beijing Jianguo Apartment” into
serviced apartment by Beijing Shama Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd. Ms. Chen was responsible for all planning and
monitoring of the purchase of Macau Kingsway Hotel in 2007
and then renovated and designed it into two years later’s Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong Macau that launched in August 2009. Hotel Lan
Kwai Fong Macau has been awarded with several international
accolades, which included the “5th China Hotel Starlight
Awards 2009 - Best Designed Boutique Hotel of China”
and the “2012 TripAdvisor Travelers’ Choice 2012 Winner —
Trendiest”. In respect of promoting the notion of environmental
protection, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has won the “AHF Asia
Awards 2010 - Leading Green Hotel of Asia” and the “Macao
Green Hotel Award 2010 — Bronze Award”. The result has been
obvious and encouraging. Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has
been disposed in 2018 and brought considerable profit to the
Group. Other than the duties and responsibilities of the Vice
Chairman, Ms. Chen is also responsible for implementation,
monitoring and management of the approval, planning and
development of the property development projects of the
Group. Ms. Chen was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in 1996.
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Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 52, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 20 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 2001.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 79, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the
chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to
1995. He was also appointed as a consultant of the China Film
Association. Mr. Hung is also a member of the 1,200-member-
HKSAR Election Committee and a vice-chairman of the Cultural
Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macau Cooperation Promotion Council (B4 EREESIERE
e ALEEZEGEIT(LES), and was elected the vice-
chairman of Film Association of Guangdong, China for the
period from November 2016 to November 2021. Mr. Hung
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR
Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to the
Hong Kong film industry.

Mr. Hung was an independent non-executive director of
Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited during the period from
22nd January 2013 to 25th January 2017. He was an executive
director of Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
during the period from 16th October 2013 to 1st February
2019 and re-designated as a non-executive director during the
period from 1st February 2019 to 31st July 2019. He was also
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Unity
Investments Holdings Limited, Miko International Holdings
Limited and Oshidori International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Enerchina Holdings Limited) since 10th October
2014, 14th April 2016 and 6th April 2017 respectively. All
these companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Hung was also appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Koala Financial Group Limited, and an executive
director of Eje (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited since 15th May
2015 and 23rd May 2016 respectively. Mr. Hung was also the
chairman of the board of Eje (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
during the period from 23rd May 2016 to 20th November
2017. Both companies are listed on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company in 1996.
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Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He is the managing
partner of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, United
Kingdom and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Ho was an independent non-executive
director of Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited during the
period from 15th February 1997 to 30th September 2018. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Ngai Hing
Hong Company Limited, both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996.

Mr. TANG Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 69, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior partner
of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He was a director of Pok Oi
Hospital in 1993 and a member of the Kowloon West Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme between July 1991 and November 1995.
Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma in
Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in Macau.
Mr. Tang was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 55, is the Legal Administration
Manager of the Group. She has over 15 years of experience
in the TV & Film Industry. Ms. Tsang has extensive
experience across production, distribution and library content
management of the Film & TV business and expertise in legal
related aspects in Film & TV production, distribution and
copyright enforcement. Ms. Tsang oversees the Department
of Legal Administration, Film & TV Distribution and Content
Library Management of the Group. Ms. Tsang also involves
negotiation on Film & TV production and distribution projects
and took on responsibility of Film & TV production, distribution
and copyright legal-related aspect for the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Tsang worked at the Legal Department
of Hong Kong Hospital Authority and TVBI International
Limited.
studies and had been studied LLB of University of London

Ms. Tsang has completed Company Secretary
and a graduate of Diploma for Legal Studies. Ms. Tsang has
achieved the qualification to use the benchmark as Legal
Executive of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang joined
the Group in 1999.
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Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 57, is the Film and TV Consultant of the
Group. Mr. Wai is a renowned Film and TV Producer, Director
and Scriptwriter, he has produced, directed and script-written
films and TV drama for more than 20 years. Mr. Wai's Feature
Films Production has been invited by Worldwide Film Festival
for screening and nomination for awards, many of Mr. Wai's
Feature Film earned awards in Hong Kong and Worldwide.
Mr. Wai's TV series “Look Back with Anger” and “The Greed of
Man” is hugely popular on the premiere run, after many years,
re-run of these TV series is also a hit and has pull in lots of
new generation audience. The feature films produced and/or
directed by Mr Wai include “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”,
“Fat Choi Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All
Seasons”, “Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics”,
“Mad Detective”, “Written By” etc. Mr. Wai joined the Group in
2000.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 54, is the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company. She
graduated from the City Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in Accountancy in 1990. She is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. Ms. Wong joined the Group in 2001.
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Ms. YEUNG Porlin, age 54, is the Regional Director of the
Company. She has over 15 years experience in TV and
film industry and as of 2006 she has extend her scope of
services to serviced residences, hotel operations and project
development in Beijing and Macau. In 2013, Ms. Yeung was
appointed as the Executive Director of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
Macau. She graduated from the University of Leicester,
UK with a MBA and is an Advanced Certification holder
in Hospitality Management at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Yeung joined the Group in 1997. Ms. Yeung
is actively participating in the Company’s residential and
commercial real estate project in Macau.

Mr. TODD Evan, aged 54, is the Project Manager of the
Group. He graduated from Cornell University in the U.S. with
a bachelor degree in 1989. Over the years, he has worked for
Andersen Consulting and Swire Pacific Limited. He first joined
our Group in 1995 and worked over five years in the area of
film distribution in Mainland China. In 2009, he rejoined our
Group and began involved in the operation of Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau. Mr. Todd was appointed as the Chief Operating
Officer of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau from 2013 until 2018.

Ms. SHAW Lai King, Sandy, aged 59, is the Controller
(Network and TV) of the Group. She has over 30 years of
experience in television and movie creation and production.
Her television drama works such as “The Justice Of Life”, “At
the Threshold of An Era”, “Best Selling Secrets”, “Off Pedder”
and so on were well received in terms of approbation and
viewership. Her movie creations included “A Roof with a view”,
“The Heroic Trio”, “A Moment of Romance III” and etc., and
among them, “Justice, My Foot” was once nominated for the
Best Screenplay of the Hong Kong Film Awards. Ms. Shaw
was also the producer of “Come Home Lover: Dinner At 8”, a
long television drama series, and “Sky of Love”, a movie, and
so forth. Ms. Shaw joined the Group in 2017.



26

b2 EE G AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

H

LR

]
rrREE((E5)e(E58) kE
HEEEAFRIER - ARBLEMBAR ([KREE])
—ABEFRKFZAXBRTREXERER  LWHAK
BIRZ— - RRAMEE - RFEEERARHEZRE -
LHEREE EBRNERIEYRFOEXCEBERM
B2 HIRERRZEER-

BEMNRIR

TEERESR

ARRZEEERRINZEESEER BRIAMNE
2 U AHERRRAZAELEEL - ERRAEE
ZERERES  AREREHANEREMERERER
EmMERRREARZEL - BE-_FT-NE+_-A
St HEEREMBFEE  ARRCEALERE LY
ARZMERAR ([BM])ESH EHRA (T EmHRA D)
frext sz KeEERTRD (TR ZMBEERT
Al - E—BRBEEERIN BRAFBRARE HE
[MREETRIZEH] — ML - EFEAMIMERNER
REBCEEREREITLTRIEK  —BEEERR
AEERCEERFRCERNERFTERE - NA A
RERBIZREH  INEERALKEEERER
EEEHHANREMIESIHE  NBREENEFEH
CEERERZEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %F$R

&t #t ¥ Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company and the management of the Company are committed
to establishing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The maintenance of high standard of business
ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the goals of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency will
be improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders
and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 31st
December 2019, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions laid down
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) save for one deviation, details
of which will be explained in the section “Deviation from the
Code” in this report. The Board has, since the amendments
to the Listing Rules regarding corporate governance
practices were first proposed by the Stock Exchange,
continued to monitor and review the Group’s progress
in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance. Meetings were held throughout the year and
where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes were
issued to directors and senior management of the Group to
ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance
practices.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of the
Company including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and overall
strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior executives. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by these senior executives
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its
responsibilities.

Composition

As at 31st December 2019, the Board comprises six Directors:
including three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung (Chairman), Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (Vice Chairman,
performing the role of chief executive as stated in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules) and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hung Cho
Sing, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The number of
independent non-executive Directors is more than one-third
of the Board. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 21 to 25.
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The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between
executive and non-executive Directors. The Board is of the
opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors provide
to the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience
so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised
as well as ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest,
serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, scrutinising the Group’s performance
and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management
process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal
and professional ethics and integrity. All the Directors give
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board believes that the ratio of executive to non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide checks and
balances that safeguard the interest of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
new director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the next following annual general meeting. Any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 99(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Ho Wai
Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman (performing the
role of chief executive as stated in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules) are separate and not performed by the same individual
to ensure that there is a clear division of responsibilities at the
board level to entail a balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of the executive Directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Group
has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence. The Company
considers these Directors to be independent under the

guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship among
members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung, the
Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the
Vice Chairman of the Company.

DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2019, the Company
complied with the Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except for the following deviation:

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. However, all the independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Bye-laws. The Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the

Code.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
remunerated at HK$240,000 for the year ended 31st December
2019.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times every
year to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meeting
are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion.
Apart from regular meetings, senior management from time
to time provides Directors with information on activities and
development of the businesses of the Group. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the
meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied
with. The finalized agenda and accompanying board papers
are then sent to all Directors at least three days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed minutes
of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.

During the year under review, 11 board meetings were held.
Details of the attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings, meetings of the Board and its respective committees
are as follows:

HESBERH
Number of meetings attended
BRRBEE E=g ERZEEE FMEES REZES
RE o a5 b £
Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination
EZn General Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BITES
Executive Directors
mE 11 11/11* i A TiE A 11
Heung Wah Keung N/A N/A
e BR 2 11 10/10 TNEA 2/2 TNEA
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany N/A N/A
FERE 11 10/10 NE A NEA NNEA
Li Yuk Sheung N/A N/A N/A
BYFHTES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
HEE 11 11/11* 4/4 2/2 11
Hung Cho Sing
EE 0/1 11/11* 4/4 NEA TER
Ho Wai Chi, Paul N/A N/A
B2 11 11/11* 4/4 2/2 1/1

Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

YRR - RERE S RHERR IR AR ANTESHE
ZER TN REIFRTEFRT

* Included a Board meeting where the Chairman of the Board met
with independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of
the executive Directors.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances and discuss the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide on
other significant matters. The execution of daily operational
matters is delegated to management of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions by the Board together with concerns
Drafts of

board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and

raised and dissenting views expressed (if any).

approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times as the Chairman ensures that the management
will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to

request for further information.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the company secretary, who is held responsible for
providing Directors with board papers and related materials
and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at
the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial shareholder or a director, such matter will be
discussed in a physical meeting and will not be dealt with
by way of written resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in

board meetings for all committee meetings.
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The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary forum for communication by
the Company with the shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as
directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the
Group provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each
newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that
the new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their
legal and other duties as a director as well as the business
and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes
are tailored to each individual director taking into account
their background and expertise. The company secretary will
continuously update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors.

All Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes provided or procured by the Group,
such as external seminars organised by qualified professionals
update materials regarding laws and regulation and the Listing
Rules, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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The participation by individual Director in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a Director of a
listed company in 2019 is recorded in the following table.

HEEERE SHENMRBBER
BEER WmieE EE
Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
EEnE Name of Director updates programmes
BITES Executive Directors
[EEEE: Heung Wah Keung v/
GEEES Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany v/
FERE Li Yuk Sheung v/
BIFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
HEE Hung Cho Sing v
fAfEE Ho Wai Chi, Paul v v/
B IEM Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert v v

BEERREERREZERBEREFALAEEHERLR
DRRABRABAETZBUBALEE  UREMBE
RASE -

5MEES

GMEBRCMMRT YABETHLABBEGE -
K-E—AF+-A=+—0 HHEEQAMEEY
FHTEE RAE EERBERE L) R—ANTE
B (RS R KRR R EBUER G EE -

YHMZESRENERMESTSEBFTMBE LA
SEHENATESRSREBAGNFHGENESS
RtEZ HZBEeRIEERRERRZSAAER
MBRBERE TARNBEXER -FMEESTER
MEMERABITHRE -

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter
on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and
nature of offices held by such Director in public companies
and organizations and other significant commitments.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was formed with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31st December 2019, the
remuneration committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang
Chak Lam, Gilbert, and an executive Director, namely, Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Mr. Hung Cho Sing is the chairman of
the committee.

The remuneration committee is responsible for formulating
and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and members of
senior management of the Group. This committee consults
with the Chairman on its proposals and recommendations and
has access to professional advice if deemed necessary. The
remuneration committee is also provided with other resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The remuneration
committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held two meetings to determine the remuneration package of
each executive directors, independent non-executive directors
and the staff of the Group for making recommendations to the
Board for approval.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2019 by band is set out below:
Remuneration band Number of individuals
Nil to HK$500,000

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

— N =+ N

Further details of the executive Directors’ emoluments for the
year ended 31st December 2019 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee was formed with specific written
terms of reference. As at 31st December 2019, the nomination
committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Heung Wah
Keung. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The duties of the nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the vice
chairman.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The nomination
committee meets at least once a year.
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During the year under review, the nomination committee held
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of

the Board and to review the Board Diversity Policy.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in
2013 and amended pursuant to the resolution of the Board
passed on 26th March 2019. The key terms of the Policy are

set out as follows.
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Purpose

This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board.

Vision
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of

having a diversified Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

Policy Statement

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees an increase in
diversity at the Board level to be an essential element
in the attainment of its strategic objectives and
sustainable development. In achieving diversity of the
Board, a number of aspects of each director candidate
will be considered, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and the candidates will be considered
based on the objective criteria set out in this Policy
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to the
candidate’s gender,
background,

age, cultural and educational
ethnicity, professional skills and
knowledge, and working experience. The ultimate
decision will be made by the Board based on the merit
and contribution which the candidates may be able to
bring to the Board.
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5. Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the
Board’s composition under the diversified perspectives
in the Corporate Governance Report, and monitor the
implementation of this Policy.

6. Review of this Policy

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of its
implementation. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

The Board considered that the current structure, size and
composition of the Board to be appropriate in enabling it to
perform a balanced and independent monitoring function
on management practices to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and diversity within the Board has been
achieved as the Board is composed of director from a diverse
range of background.

An analysis of the composition of the Board at 31st December
2019 is set out in the following:

Accounting (17%)
25t (17%)

Gender £ 5) Designation B#7  Age Group F#:A B! Expertise 5K
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules requires that the audit committee
must comprise a minimum of three non-executive directors
only, at least one of them should be independent non-
executive directors with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
main duties of the audit committee include the followings:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
external auditor before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s
website. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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As at 31st December 2019, the audit committee has three
members, namely Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (chairman of the
audit committee), Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang Chak
Lam, Gilbert, all being independent non-executive Directors.
No member of the audit committee is a former partner of the
existing auditing firm of the Company within two years on
the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial
interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management team of the Company. During the year,
the audit committee held four meetings to review the Group’s
annual report and interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes as well as
the re-appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. There is no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Group’s external auditors is HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has written to
the Audit Committee confirming that they are independent
with respect to the Company and that there is no relationship
between HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and the
Company which may reasonably be thought to bear on their
independence. In order to maintain the external auditors’
independence, it would only be employed for non-audit
work if the work does not compromise the external auditors’
independence and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee. During the year, the external auditors provided
audit services and non-audit services to the Group. Audit
services include services provided in connection with the audit
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Non-audit
services include services such as issuance of special audit
reports or interim review or other regulatory purposes.
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The Company’s annual report for the year ended 31st
December 2019 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit
committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

For the year ended 31st December 2019, the fees paid and
payable in respect of audit services and non-audit services
provided by the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
amounted to approximately HK$1,273,000 and approximately
HK$187,000 respectively.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent with
Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft and final
versions of audit committee meeting minutes are circulated to
all members of the audit committee for comments, approval
and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members
of the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors securities transactions throughout the year
ended 31st December 2019. The Model Code also applies to
other specified senior management of the Group.

The directors’ interests in shares of the Company and its
associated corporations are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 47 to 59.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the
financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company.
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The Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 60 to 68 set out
the reporting responsibilities of the auditors of the Company
for the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. The company secretary reports to the
Board, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and for facilitating information flows and
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders
and the management. Ms. Wong Shuk Han, Dorothy has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company
with effect from December 2001 and Ms. Wong has complied
with the professional training requirement of the Listing Rules
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board will therefore be responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc.

During the financial year ended 31st December 2019, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority.



42

e EB B AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %F$R

1 € B 78 ik ¥ Corporate Governance Report

AEBEREBETEARDTERNRGREFETTGE
HERENE 28 AREZRAREERE Bl
Ao EfSAsEEENRREERE YAERTE
BEEMNEETA ZARERRAEMFBHRER
e HR B RPUR IR K -

AEBTEANEENE  EFRORTEA T NBE
BEGIRA - BNRAREAEEEBORN  HE
R BEDEAAEBNRT NHBEDE - %
TR T R T AR 3T o

AEERBEE_ZE-NF+_A=1T—-HLFELEMR
IBEXBEREREEARAR ETBLANEESE
B ARAERMRAFHRABMETEAK -

BEZ-AFtT_A=+—HILFE BEFERAEAK
SENANBEZERABRARAER BARRCETT
RINA B R Eb SR 6 <7 B SC -

ESERICER
EESREMAREEB CBBRBMEERIELRE -
MEESHAELAZAEE FTHARZEZERBIR
G- ARARBEBZTHRES  ERARBERYE
AEZARERRATZCEAERTAREEEE

o

EZEe (AERLZES FTHEEEMREZES)
BEABBERE ARATHBZEGZEIREE -
FMEZEGRARERBHEZRTENERE HRNHE
BEENEFERE  URETHEBRT  ERIE
TR EESIAE -

The Group has conducted a review of the implemented
system and procedures, including areas covering financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year under review. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is
exposed and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day
operation of business. The system can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function as the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and is currently of the view that there
is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within
the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed from time to
time.

The Group had engaged Infinity Concept Ripple Limited,
external professional consultant, to conduct independent
internal control review for the year ended 31st December
2019 and the review is completed as at the date of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31st December 2019, the Board
considered the Group’s internal control system as adequate
and effective and that the Company has complied with the
code provisions on internal control of the Code.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors
have formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment. Due to the diversity
and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation
to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business
plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, have specific terms
of reference clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities
of the respective committees. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to
their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking
any actions.
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The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the
Board to different committees to ensure that such delegations
are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Company
as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board, in respect of the Board members and senior
management members of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be
reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders, the annual general meeting provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and
personally held the annual general meeting in 2019 in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the
Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed
from time to time to ensure the Company conforms to the
best practices regarding corporate governance. The annual
general meeting circular, which is circulated to all shareholders
at least twenty-one days prior to the holding of the annual
general meeting, sets out the details in relation to each
resolution proposed, voting procedures (including procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. At the Company’s 2019 annual general meeting, all
the resolutions were put to the vote by poll and Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the
votes were properly counted. The rights of shareholders and the
procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’
meeting are contained in the Bye-laws.
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The Company also communicates to its shareholders through
its annual and interim reports. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.

The annual general meetings and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary communication between the
Company and the Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged
to participate in general meetings. Board members,
appropriate management executives and external auditors
will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions at the general meetings. The Company’s website
provides the Shareholders with corporate information, interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars issued
by the Company. It also provides information on corporate
governance of the Group and the compositions and functions
of the Board and the Board committees.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (the “SGM”)

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the
shareholders of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company upon which all calls or other sums then due
have been paid, forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of
the original deposit.
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PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3409, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2313 1888

Email: mail@chinastar.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
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The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’'s website (www.chinastar.com.hk)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a new dividend policy
on 26th March 2019. This policy aims to provide shareholders
of the Company and potential investors the dividend policy of
the Company.

Under the new dividend policy, the Company does not have
any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The declaration,
payment and amount of dividends are subject to the Board’s
discretion having regard to the following factors:

a. the earnings, financial condition, capital requirements
and future plans of the Group;

b. the shareholders’ interests of the Company;
C. the Company’s availability of reserves;
d. the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

by the Company to its shareholders;

e. the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company; and

f. any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the Listing Rules, the Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, there had
been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerable effort
to strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate
governance of the Group.
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P2 S B GBAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and television
drama series, provision of artist management services,
properties development and investment and provision of
catering services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries and joint venture
are set out in notes 47 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2019 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 69
and 70 and page 71 respectively.

The financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2019
is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 72 and 73.
During the year, the Group declared a special interim
dividend of HK12.50 cents per share in aggregate amount of
HK$339,008,000 to the shareholders and the bonus convertible
bondholders of the Company. The special interim dividend
has been paid on 18th October 2019 out of the Company’s
contributed surplus after the approval by the shareholders
of the Company in a special general meeting held on 27th
September 2019.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and analysis of the
development, operating performance and financial position
and particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31st December
2019 are set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 4 to 8, pages 9 to 20 and pages
254 to 255 respectively. Such discussions constitute part of
this report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including the
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The
Board believes that the employees are one of the Group’s
most important assets. The Company will strive to ensure
that the remuneration level of its employees is in line with
relevant industry practices and prevailing market conditions.
Remunerations of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Details of employees benefits are included in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a long-
term and stable relationship with the Company’s customers
and suppliers for the continuous success and growth of the
Group’s businesses. Generally, the Group strengthen its
customer service by providing superior quality service to the
users, and strive to achieve the fastest response times and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the relevant industry.

Supply chain is a critical part of all our operations. Our
suppliers must meet our selection criteria, which include
security, safety, cost, quality, delivery and reliability. The
Group will enter into suppliers’ agreements with qualified
suppliers in order to secure our services and products are
being supplied to our standard within our budgeted costs.

The Group’s continuous effort to build trust and emphasise
mutual benefits with its customers and suppliers has
contributed to the long-term relationships with them.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The possible business risks and uncertainties, interest rate
risk and foreign exchange risk facing by the Group are set out
in section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 9 to 20. The financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operating its various business
segments in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Group
also educates its employees on their awareness in promoting
a “green” environment. The Board believes that operating
the Company’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling the Company’s corporate social
responsibilities.

Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in the
offices of the Group. Such initiatives include energy saving
measures and water saving practices, use of recycling
papers, recycling of used papers and encourage paperless

environment.

Details of the environmental policies and performance of
the Group will be disclosed in our environmental, social and
governance report to be published before 30th June 2020.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year ended
31st December 2019,
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the Group has complied with the

the business and operation of the Group. Furthermore, as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Company is also subject to the rules and requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2019 is set out on pages 254 and 255.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment, interests in leasehold land and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to

the consolidated financial statements respectively.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in stock of properties of
the Group are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements during the year in borrowings regarding
bank borrowing and lease liabilities of the Group are set out
in notes 39 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31st December 2019, the total issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,711,000,479 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 74 to 76. Movements during the year in the reserves
of the Company are set out in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,504,465,000 as at 31st December 2019
(2018: HK$2,921,875,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2019, revenue attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 28% of the Group’s revenue and revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 11% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31st December 2019, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 96% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 95% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hung Cho Sing
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Ho
Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 25.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable
accounting principles. These mainly relate to transactions
entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business,
negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length
basis. Particulars are set out in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

These transactions do not constitute “continuing connected
transaction” or “connected transaction” of the Group that need
to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
which requires the Company to give a period of notice of
more than one year, or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than one year’s emolument.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
The changes in information of directors as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since
the date of the 2018 Annual Report of the Company are set out
below:

Mr. Hung Cho Sing, an independent non-executive director of
the Company, resigned as non-executive director of Universe
Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (Stock code: 1046)
with effect from 31st July 2019.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations and other donation
during the year of approximately HK$252,000.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December 2019, the interests of the directors
and their associates in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register (“Register
of Interests”) maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

were as follows:

Interests in ordinary shares of the Company

FRiFRERR

ERaled -

R B EE Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held interests held

AR L
Mr. Heung Wah Keung

HYEAE 2 m

PREAZ Z £
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

RYRE 2 e

LESERTR o

* I E R E F1,611,133,9518% i 10 i 171 oC 4 & R &2
£ 9 Bl $150% K% 50%H# &5 Z A AlHeung Wah Keung
Family Endowment Limited+s & }1,6440% i {7 /A R &2
T REEED BB R EEO0% A% IER 2 AFIZER
RAFRA o

@tm%ﬁﬁ%%'\*i—ﬂ¢+*ﬂj+—a'ﬁ
BESECDMASEREZETIARNARD i
X%Zﬁm'$Aﬁ§$&§EﬁﬁAﬁiﬁﬁZ %
ATWERRAARSETMBEHEE (T LESF LS
BB EXVE) 2 E@MEHD - HEROKESFPHEST
Rk R

1,611,135,5695 59.42

Interest of controlled corporation

1,611,135,695% 59.42

Interest of controlled corporation

All interests stated above represent long positions.

These shares are held as to 1,611,133,951 shares by Heung
Wah Keung Family Endowment Limited (a company owned
as to 50% by Mr. Heung and as to 50% by Ms. Chen) and
as to 1,644 shares by Dorest Company Limited (a company
beneficially owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen and as to 40% by
Mr. Heung).

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2019, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.



Ty

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#k

# 3 & #t %5 Directors’ Report

ESBREROIEST 2EF

AR R 3 E AT AT T B ) 70 6 7 1] B 3 B 2 AR ]
ZH BEARRZEFARESAZERHEALCE
ERLWRR) AREBALARRSEMEMEABRRE
Al B AD AR 7 T 4

TERR
W=B—n%+=A=+—0 BEESRHEEHE
BeHEARAATHEZ TERRERAMARE B

B 5 5 5 B BR 2 n) CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company or their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2019, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of

FYBELETESE RN UTREHEBEARLTE  the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
BITIRANS %A £z g in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the

Company:
RO SEBRAEE IR A
Number of shares Approximate
28 54 or underlying percentage of
Name Capacity shares held interests held
Heung Wah Keung Family EmEAA 1,611,133,951 59.42

Endowment Limited Beneficial owner

LiigmERER -
BEXHEEEN RZB-AF+-A=+—H K

RAMARENGEEFMEMALTHEBEARR D ETRAE%
AL ZBEEKE ©

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2019.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2019, the Company

BT PR @Ak - T - repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange

as follows:

BRER
Price per share

BBE A5 ZRRYE BS B EfERE
Month of Number of Highest Lowest Aggregate
repurchase ordinary consideration
shares paid
T BT ETT
HK$ HK$ HK$
—NFEHA May 2019 74,280,000 0.80 0.74 57,795,900
ZE-NFRA June 2019 15,830,000 0.76 0.75 11,892,000
90,110,000 69,687,900
+31190,110,0000% & 3@ % 2 7 —NF~A+NABiF The above 90,110,000 ordinary shares were cancelled on 19th

i o

EEARARARB L RRBETRBG 2 EEFEA
1 8  BEIEHE B A ) B AR AR 2 R -

BREXHBEEES REE_Z-AF+_A=1t—H
FFER ARAREETANBARMERE HERX

BOERARRZ EHES -

June 2019.

The directors considered that the Company’s shares were
trading at a discount to the net asset value per share, the
repurchase would increase the net asset value per share of
the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31st
December 2019.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to their duties
and responsibilities in the Company. Details of the emoluments
of the directors are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year, except for the share
option schemes of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 28th June 2012, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)
to replace the share option scheme adopted on 21st January
2002. Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Apart from the Option Scheme, the Company has no other
share option scheme in place as at 31st December 2019.

No share option was outstanding, granted, exercised, lapsed,
expired or cancelled during the year ended 31st December
2019.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2019 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Company has undertaken and
maintained a collective liability insurance policy covering,
among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as such term is defined under the Companies

Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors of the Company or their respective close
associates had any interest in a business which competes with
or may compete with the business of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
26 to 46.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed amount
of public float during the year and up to the date of this report
as required under the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 69 to 253, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31st December 2019, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group at 31st December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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FAREZSE

BREESCEXAE BRELZZRAREZERAYME
MNERMBRRTREENEE ESEBREANT
BERPUERSAFEELFER NTEHRUES
HEBRERER -

HEEREE

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

EEzENIHRNMNEEBRREERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WEFEZKREE

Carrying amounts of stock of properties

BIR IR A KR 5E24 -
Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RZE-NF+ZR=+—H URRFZWEEFE
2 BREE#)/A3,047,123,000/8 70 « ¥ BEXEEER
BEEEX-

At 31st December 2019, the carrying amounts
of stock of properties located in Macau was
approximately HK$3,047,123,000, which was
significant to the Group’s total assets.

EEAHEERBHEFTEZREENN G ZERREFBEE
PRI

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to:

. MEERBENEREFMAAEZRE —
checking the consistency of management’s calculations
against the methodology used in the prior years;

. EREE/ESER
ZEELLE

evaluating the properties areas by comparing them with

HAERBZ BERERAREZELER

the areas which were verified and confirmed by the
relevant institution;

. RBEFTEE  HAREBZMEMAMERNIREB R
HR BB A FRHEEER LR
examining the estimated sales price by comparing it
with the recent sales price and recently available public
sales information of neighbouring properties;

. FHERTAERRRO A EM RIS
assessing the fairness and appropriateness of the
source of information used;
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BREEXZSEE(E)

HRBELEE

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEzENITHRNMEEBRREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WH*FEZIREE (F)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)

PR PTRF BT BUR BT (DR PIEUR ]) R R IE R
IR INEIE SR BB ER ([ 5 6Bi’@E§J)Z¢%¥§§J§
KRR MIFBEFEA@E T MBEEHRROFA -
BHORPIB TR E U B £ i 2 1T B TAE -

The development of the property located in Lot 6B
at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (“Lot
6B”) could not commence development due to the
delays caused by the government of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau Government”)
and the Macau Government has started the
administrative work to reclaim it as a consequence
of ongoing litigation in respect of the terms of the
land lease.

ERENZ2RERNDELHNEEREHEEHIME
EMERGFENTERFE  EhFRERE A&
oo

Management determined the net realisable values
of stock of properties by reference to recent sales
price of similar properties less selling expenses,
which involve managements’ judgement and
estimation.

EEEHERRUHMEFECREEN M ERIEFBEE
TR : (&)

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to: (continued)

. IMEFEFEBHMERUNERBERERE  TAZSHEE
MERERE SR HEERETEAR
conducting site visits to stock of properties projects
to observe the development progress and evaluating
whether the development progress for each project was
consistent with the development plan;

. R EEAFBU R 2 T EREERDERR T O
EREBEMRENRAIIEDERE R REMIM
inspecting the external legal opinion and other
documentation referred to by management in its
assessment of the outcome of the court proceedings in
relation to the litigation in respect of the land lease for
the Lot 6B;

. 2EHARESENM TR BN RER AR RIHEH
xR
evaluating the construction costs to be incurred and
selling expenses by reference to information such as
project budgets; and
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REEXSEE(E

HRBELEE

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEZENITHRNNEEFAREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WRFEZIKREE (E)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)

EEEHERRUHMEFECREEN M ERIEFBEE
TR : (&)

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to: (continued)

o FHESNEfLER 2 BB  BUMREESE  UHES
2RI A REINE (L BT R E LR -
assessing the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external valuers, and compared out test results
with the valuations made by the external valuers.

EERBYERECEHAL AN ERNRIIEAZ -
We found the carrying amounts of stock of properties were
supported by the available evidence.
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BREEXSEE(E

BREERSHE
Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEzEN ITFRNNEERREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EXRBRRBEFEZZAETE
Impairment assessment on film rights and films in
progress

IR AR A B R M sE25 1226 -
Refer to notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RZE-NF+_A=+—0 BELHREREEFSE
&2 BREES B A12,792,000% 7T 12 115,156,000/ 7T ©
At 31st December 2019, the carrying amounts of film
rights and films in progress were HK$12,792,000
and HK$115,156,000 respectively.

EEEPEEZEER DREEEMETG P RE
FRFIET - R ERRR RAFHEL -

We focused on these areas as the assessment made
by management involved application of judgements
and was based on assumptions and estimates.

ErTEYMEREFETFESEOIIERER  EEES
ZE BREMATINETREEBEARER ™
T TEORITE BRI R B M AR e BT R AR W A B
WRESME - BEBEDISRATREHEENEFEEE
CHERR - BE_ZT-NAF+_A=+T—HLF
E ENRnETRELRERECERRESE
125,246,000/ 7T % 10,275,000/ 7T °

In determining whether impairment on film rights
and films in progress is required, management
takes into consideration of the distribution and
licensing agreements entered into by the Group and
the current market environment to project cash flows
expected to be received through film box office
receipts and distribution and licensing income.
Impairment loss is recognised in the period in which
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount. During the year ended 31st December
2019, impairment loss of HK$125,246,000 and
HK$10,275,000 was recognised in respect of film
rights and films in progress respectively.

EEAMETCIRENBEETFEY ZRENENEREFB2FENR
i

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment on
film rights and films in progress including but not limited to:

. THRERBHETME MBI EPEETRER HIEF
understanding the process of how management
performs impairment assessment on the film rights and
films in progress;

. AZEEERNETEEYRERRIERER 2 AT E £ /R
FERATEANREN - &
evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology
used by management in determining the recoverable
amounts of the film rights and films in progress; and

. AEARBRERERATARRNAGENE  WEHRER
EEMHEYECRERREPEYHELENTAH K RF
e DERBEXREMERETREERZZLANTHE
B URBEAEXEFEREE FMANALEZHE
SLBIEE Y -
evaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions used
in the future cash flow projection and challenging the
management’'s assessment on the expected revenue to
be generated from film rights and films in progress by
checking the film budget summary to the contracted
amounts of the distribution and licensing agreements
and the estimated film box office receipts to the
historical trend of similar film released.

BEERRNBEYRERRETERY
XFF o

We found the impairment assessment on film rights and films

RERHESE P R EEFR

in progress were supported by the available evidence.
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Hi&H

EEAWHMENAERE EMEHBRANFRL

BR ETERGAMBRRRESZREMES ([H
hER]) o
BEUGAVMBHRRAMELERY TREREMER M

FETRUHBANEREMHRNES SR -

RESERGAUBHRRNE BESZ2ETAMERM
BR tmEEEMERES & ?éﬁﬁﬂ‘%#ﬁﬁ&éi
EZARPEENENFEEANA  IUFHFEEKR

BRI WETSENDETZ THRAEMERH
BEARRML ESAREEHEE -RUME 5
% mE IR -

%E&%&%E%ﬁ%é%ﬁﬁ

EXAAERBEERSHMASRANTEUBREE
ARERBBRAGINBERR  REEEMTH
WERRIEANGEMBERE  THERRREVBHRE
MEE T FERRRTFRERMEHMWEAHERRAPT
THOANREHEE

EREGAMBRRE EXAQENE E£ESE
Remeh YTEERBATHREESELLEABNE
Ho-BHERHEK BEXEBEFRAUBULZE Kt
M\ﬂ"ﬂﬂiﬁ@:‘i[‘%ﬂﬂﬁ@%‘ﬁﬁ% C BRIAR AR EL
ERERTER -

ERZBEERAEE ERENMBHRERERE-

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other

Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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BRBMRERGS U BRRAK
ENEME

EEZRABAYHEAVMBRRERMEAaFEARK
FRERMERNBAERRARSAIERE - L HEH
AEEEEANBEMMRE BEFRBARE- NN\~
FRAVEEOHERZEBRRBE - BRI AIIREET
FEMRE BEERIRABRENATEEMEMLAL
BLIRAETNEE -AEREBSBRZKRE ER
BEBEFENET ERIETRREREEEBNRT
ERMERFRERL - SHREA A ARFFRFAREL - i1
B ERERREMBER T ERAERBELER
AFBHRRELNLEDRAER - AIRRAERHERRL

ERBERBRAEUETRANBED  FFEREEX
A R BRIREEE - BE

. BRI MR AR AR ERM BN S AP BRR
FEEAERBGENER - Rt RBTEERF
NEHZERR  ARERTRIEERNETE
EFEEREEERNER - mRBFFARS RE
#oRE ERER ERRAKNEEABER
BIER - EUEREEHRARFMEHMEANER
R EBR BN AEERRERMGBNEKE
ARERAL 0 R B o

o TREBEBOABEE LRHEEOBH
B RLFEEY EEEABEZOETRE
BRER

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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BRBMRERES
EWEE(E)

B 5 2R A K

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

. AREERASHRENREERELSHE  °
MR ENA RN

. HESRARBLERGHERNBEEELE °
W URBEMEDNNENEE BERSGFLE
FENBABHENERNNETIE WA EE
H EEENRECERNELERER - WME
ERRBFEERTHTN  MALEEZHEN R
ERRFEEAEIRGAMBHRRTOEBRE -
WEBNETE BEXRFEREER -BF
,umﬁgﬁf\ﬁziﬁ%{ﬁﬂi#&iEIHJ%JJ:F)?HX Gk
BRE o AT RRFBEHBE A B E&H

IR ERE o

. TREAVBRRNEEZHRAIA BERRE - °
BREEEEN URGAMBREREFARM

HBZXZMER -
. o EEECERSEBEDOMBERERT  °

REEEMNENEE UERHSEAMBRRER
ER -BFAEKEFNOTM  EEMHT -
EERERERAERNEME -

=
=

J,Hi

SHEZZBEH (AP R B TIENtE&E -
BRZHERBEAEFERER ERESESTBED
BRI A EPEE M R B RERK ©

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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BRBMRELGS U BRRAK
EWEE(E)

BENAEZZEGELBE BHESCHAEHE
VHMHABERER YERFEAUENSHERA/E
FEESBUMNMABRREMEE  AREEL®E
e (@A)

REEXZBEBBNERT EEETHAHBES
MBBRNBHAEREEINTR AMBKBEREZS
B BEERBMBETRHMAZEER  RIPDERIE
RIAFAHREZSEE  AEBFKFROBERT
MEEBHEESHETABRERERNNAERRE
HEENRARNE  AESRENEERSPHELZER -

HEABIZBMBENETHEEEARETE

BEEtMBEERERAT
WESRD

ARE

MEZFERT  P06417

BE% —E-TF=-A=+H

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah

Practicing Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 30th March 2020
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% & W A £ Consolidated Income Statement
HE—_T—NF+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
T—\F
2018
M iF FHET
Notes HK$'000
HEREER Continuing operations
U 2= Revenue 7 7,053 3,493
84 & AR Cost of sales (1,998) -
EH Gross profit 5,055 3,493
Hqth 5 2 S H At g A Other revenue and other income 8 95,252 84,725
TERAX Administrative expenses (78,546) (84,312)
TG HEE KRBT Marketing and distribution expenses (29,167) (91)
BBEZARTFEENNEZ Loss arising on change in fair value of
SRMEEZATEESR financial assets at fair value through
FTEA 2 B8 profit or loss (183,582) (360,209)
HAp &M% Other operating expenses (144,030) (45,993)
R EE Loss from operations (335,018) (402,387)
BE KR Finance costs 9 (408) (2,835)
EiE—MEEREER Share of loss of a joint venture (270) (114)
BREATEE Loss before tax 10 (335,696) (405,336)
FRERR % Income tax expense 11 (35) -
BEKEEBZFTEESR Loss for the year from
continuing operations (335,731) (405,336)
BRIEREER Discontinued operation 13
PRIEEEER 2 FE R Profit for the year from discontinued
operation - 1,458,855
F£E(FFE) RF (Loss)/profit for the year (335,731) 1,053,519
UTALTEREE (Loss)/profit for the year
(F5|) %7 attributable to:
ViN/NETE ¥ =N Owners of the Company (335,226) 1,053,530
S Non-controlling interests (505) (11)
(335,731) 1,053,519




%% & W A F Consolidated Income Statement
HE-_ZT—hE+-A=1+—BILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

—E—NhF —T-NF
2019 2018
bt iF Al Rl
Notes HK cents HK cents
BR(ER) BA (Loss)/earnings per share 14
REBFELER From continuing and discontinued
BRIELSEEK operations
ERKREE Basic and diluted (12.17) 62.90
REFELEER From continuing operations
ERR#E Basic and diluted (12.17) (24.20)
RECKRIEEEEL From discontinued operation
EARREE Basic and diluted - 87.10

BEM < M EB AR SERA M BRER 2 —

|
=]

B

7

o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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BE-Z—NFT+-_A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

—E-N\F
2018
FHET
HK$'000
FE(EBR) EF (Loss)/profit for the year (335,731) 1,053,519
Hih2m (FE) A Other comprehensive (loss)/income
HEGHEEF ST HEREZ Item that may be reclassified subsequently
HE to profit or loss:
BMEFINEBEEZ Exchange differences arising on translation
N EH of foreign operations (205) 90
FEZ2E (BB WALHE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (335,936) 1,053,609
UTATEGNEESZE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
(B8) WAL : for the year attributable to:
KRABHEB A Owners of the Company (335,431) 1,053,620
SRR = Non-controlling interests (505) (11)
(335,936) 1,053,609

BEM 2 M ERBAR U SERAMBRERZ — 8D -

consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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RZZE—NF+-_HA=+—H At 31st December 2019

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %F$R

—T-N\F
2018
M iF FHET
Notes HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
Y2 - HES MR Property, plant and equipment 17 151,144 88,608
HE T ER Interests in leasehold land 18 - 53,409
REME Investment properties 19 - _
[ Goodwill 20 - -
BT FRIE Prepayment 29 16,000 -
RETFT - REFZER Loan to a director 21 369,974 327,903
R—HaBrEER Interest in a joint venture 22 - 270
537,118 470,190
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 101 -
Yyt Stock of properties 24 3,047,123 2,508,568
ERX-AT Film rights 25 12,792 11,478
FERER Films in progress 26 115,156 201,005
BEEKRE Investment in film 27 29,939 29,939
B 5 MR K Trade receivables 28 1,377 -
e ENFREREAmERK Deposits, prepayment and
I8 other receivables 29 644,169 451,826
BREBEAQNFEBRIEZ Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 30 313,284 453,481
R E R Loan receivables 31 199,127 200,000
FHITFER Time deposits 32 272 269
e RIRITHH Cash and bank balances 33 497,748 1,156,466
4,861,088 5,013,032
wWEE Total assets 5,398,206 5,483,222
BEARRGEE Capital and reserves
LN Share capital 34 27,110 28,011
f# 18 Reserves 3,660,429 4,403,951
AATEEABEESR Equity attributable to
owners of the Company 3,687,539 4,431,962
FEE R M = Non-controlling interests (630) (125)
s Total equity 3,686,909 4,431,837
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% & B %k 3t & Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZE—NF+=-HA=1+—H At 31st December 2019

—E-N\F
2018
B it AT
Notes HK$'000
FREBAE Non-current liabilities
R Promissory note 35 - -
HEARE Lease liabilities 36 7,100 -
7,100 -
REEE Current liabilities
B SRR Trade payables 37 78,251 38,421
BUWEE S - FEFTIEE K& Deposits received,

H b e 3008 accruals and other payables 38 87,254 509,848
HEAE Lease liabilities 36 5,394 -
RITEE Bank borrowings 39 1,030,150 -
FEA FE4E AR 25 SRR Amounts due to

non-controlling interests 40 503,116 503,116

FERT IR Tax payable 32 _
1,704,197 1,051,385

EEHEE Total liabilities 1,711,297 1,051,385
EZRkBEAR Total equity and liabilities 5,398,206 5,483,222
REEEZFEE Net current assets 3,156,891 3,961,647
BEERARBERS Total assets less current liabilities 3,694,009 4,431,837

REAMBREN-_Z-_ZF=F=+HHEEEHE The consolidated financial statements were approved and
DERETIEITHTIIEEREREE authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30th March
2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

[ £ 58 RS
Heung Wah Keung Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EFE EFE
Director Director
BEMT 2 i st B AR L SR A M RER 2 — 350 » The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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HE-Z-NE+-A=1+—HIL¥E For the year ended 31st December 2019

ARAREARLRE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

BE

Share
capital
Tin

HK§ 000

ha®

Share
premium
T
HK$'000
(Hidta)
(Note &)

WEBXE  AHTER

EERE  JHMERE REER

Bonus
Share-based  convertible

Statutory payment bonds
reserve reserve reserve
TEn TER ThEL
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
(W) (Wite) s
(Note g) (Note &) (Note f)

HRHERE NRERER

(BitER)/

REEA

(Accumulated

losses)/
retained
earnings

FiEn
HK$000

it

Total
Tin
HK$'000

L

Total
equity
FiEn

HK$'000

R-2-N\E-5-A

EREN/ (BR)
ERARZEAA

EREERL/ (BR) 48

LEHBAE

BlrEnE
ERARRHR
RHEARR
BAREREENRIZNZ
7B

fifEkE

£\REEA

SRIRE (1)

RIB-NETZAZT-A
RW=Z-nE-A-8

ERER

ERANZARR

ERRERELR

BORERD
BORDEERAAE

BHRARE (Wit
EIN-WN:

RoE-AF+ZAZt-8

At 1st January 2018

Profit(loss) for the year
Other comprenensive
income for the year

Total comprehensive
incomef(loss) for the year

Disposal of subsidiaries
Expiry of share options
Issue of new shares by
way of rights issue
Share issuing expenses
Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments
Exercise of share options
Transfer to retained earnings
Special dividend (note 12)

At 31st December 2018 and
at 1st January 2019

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss
for the year

Total comprehensive
loss for the year

Repurchase and cancellation
of shares
Transaction cost atiributable to
repurchase of shares
Special interim dividend (note 12)
Transfer to contributed surplus

At 31st December 2019

9,087

1,488,186

(563,100)

3281574

3,281,460

1053530

1,063,530

]

1,053,519

20

1,003,530

1,093,620

1,053,609

18,074

@m
(3501)

67,844

91
55,665

1382476
(420326)

151851
(3501)

18,344
50,400

(420326)

151851
(3501)

18,344
50,400

(20.326)

1,986,306

1,508,638

4431962

4431837

(335,226)

(335,226)

(205)

(335,731)

(205)

(335,226)

(335,431)

(335,936)

(901)

(68787)

(29%)

(69,688)

(29%)
(339,008)

(69,686)

(2%6)
(330,008)

2,10

1917223

1 55,665 1132
(291) - -
S () -
kI -
S (183 -
- - 112
- - 1132

1173312

3,687,539

3,686,909
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f#E %3 3% B 3 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—NFE+ZA=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

REBRE-NAN—F Q8L (KER]) -
BETREMRAAR 2 RETRND
TFPARARBRE -

RN i g7
AERBUR AL

AEBZAMBARBDERAR_ZEZE_FNLAT+AE
Wz BRASBIR & Ho Ak 2% & AR T 88 B IR AN ER 2 5008 -

REABRE-NAN—FR8DE(KER])  BARKBI#
DRKILEFSRABEZFABARARBE ZER
%'@%@$ﬁ%ﬁ¢ﬁ%$“ﬂ&ﬁ%%%%“ﬁﬁ'
RUTIER  ARBTBEHABBFP SRR KE
SAEH DR ¢ (VAR T%HW%Wﬁﬁ&ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂ%
MEEEZEE  W(iNVAAREEZIZREKAMK
REBEREBETRARBRGOEER -

EXRBESARESNEB 2 FEEARDERER
i$%@1WE%(W%E(%ED)ﬁ@ZER§
P W E RN E R E R AR LR E N #E R - &

#FERﬁﬁ%JZER$$#ﬁ BINEE R EH S
BEBxE -

RIBRPIRRB BT AR B RNBAFEMK L2
M EA MhifﬁmﬂZEﬁ%%L%iimﬁﬁ

BEEMBENEEAEE250%R/1E - EE QR FHEH
BoORERETAUAREBSHEMPEADIK -

AR S 2 IR - HER R M ARBRIER G
AREEEERRARGZRE 2 A FEER  EEHD
NRHERREBREZATEBREE -ZRBERH
Mz AEKAERBREZATFEEERRREY
B(HE) NEDFE  WHRRABETIRARERRX -
VARG AR RSB AN VA B AD 32 9 2 SROR e A

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the share premium of the Company can be used in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to shareholders
of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Group brought forward
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002 and
various capital reduction subsequently.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is available for distribution or apply
the amount standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
account in such manner as the board of directors considers
appropriate, including but not limited to setting off against any
accumulated losses of the Company. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
the contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (“HK$")) and
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign
operations.

In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial
Code, the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Macau are
required to transfer a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits
to a statutory reserve until that reserve equals 50% of the
nominal value of their capital. The statutory reserve may not be
distributed in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during
the life of the companies.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods,
the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-
based payment reserve.

N
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NE+=ZA=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

Notes: (continued)

()

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 25th October
2012 in relation to the bonus issue of shares (with a right for
shareholders to elect to receive bonus convertible bonds
(“Bonus CBs”) in lieu of bonus shares), Bonus CBs can be
converted into ordinary shares at initial conversion price of
HK$0.01 per share issued by the Company. The Bonus CBs are
recognised as equity and are presented in “bonus convertible
bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted and irredeemable
but have conversion rights entitling the bondholders to convert
into an equivalent number of shares as the number of bonus
shares which the bondholders (the “Bonus CBs holders”) would
otherwise be entitled to receive under the bonus issue had the
shareholder not elected for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do
not carry voting rights at any general meeting of shareholders
of the Company. The Bonus CBs holders can exercise the
conversion rights at any time after the issue of Bonus CBs,
subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable deed poll
constituting the Bonus CBs.

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors
pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the capital
reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting claims on or
liabilities of the Company or contingencies or for paying off any
loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other purpose
to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied.
Considering that the capital reduction reserve has same nature
as the contributed surplus account of the Company which was
also arising from capital reduction, the reserve is transferred to
the contributed surplus account pursuant to a board resolution
approved by the directors in order to simplify reserves of the
Company.

Property revaluation reserve relates the property transferred
from owner-occupied to investment property. The excess
amount between the fair value and the carrying amount of
the property at the date of transfer is included in the property
revaluation reserve, and will be transferred to (accumulated
losses)/retained earnings upon the retirement or disposal of the
relevant property.
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—ZE-N\F
2018
k=3 FHET
Notes HK$'000
REERAERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
SEREER VBT AER Loss before tax from continuing operations (335,696) (405,336)
BERIFCEER 2B ANEF Profit before tax from discontinued operation - 1 458,855
AT EEMERE Adjustments for:
BA B A Finance costs 408 2835
Fl B A Interest income (92,173) (80,863)
RS WA Dividend income (1,344) (1,366)
EXEE Amortisation of film rights 1,747 -
TS 1 i o5 8 5 Amortisation of interests in leasehold land - 1,873
ME - EERERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 14,019 4,293
BBRBYME LD BR Impairment loss recognised in respect
BERE of film rights 125,246 571
FRRETREY 2 EBA Impairment loss recognised in respect of
HEEIE films in progress 10,275 -
BElnE #ERSBHIEER Impairment loss recognised in respect of
HEEE property, plant and equipment 6,814 3,601
FHEHRKER 2 EH’R Reversal of impairment loss recognised
A BB ED in respect of trade receivables (230) (120)
FRERER ZEBRM Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BEEE loan receivables 873 -
BB EA YR 2 B R Impairment loss recognised in respect of
REEE other receivables 822 -
EBRBEENATEEYKY Loss arising on change in fair value of
CREECATEEE financial assets at fair value through
MELZEE profit or loss 183,582 360,209
REMEATEERLE 2 EH Gain on fair value change of investment
properties - (1,300)
HEME EBRREZEF Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - (9)
HERB AR 2 EF Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (1,465,870)
REEDANZEZEE Loss on early redemption of promissory note - 24,778
EBE—HBeELERBE Share of loss of a joint venture 270 114
AR D S 5 2 FRIER X Share-based payment expenses - 18,344
BETFEHOR Write-down of obsolete inventories - 45
MEmE  BERRE Written off of property, plant and equipment 14 -

N
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—T-N\F
2018
k=3 TAET
Notes HK$'000

CEELEHR 2 KLEERE  Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital (85,373) (79,346)
FEGEM /WP (Increase)/decrease in inventories (101) 382
MEZEZN Increase in stock of properties (501,832) (401,192)
B S 21 Increase in films in progress (52,733) (32,013)
BEFREALM Increase in investment in film - (29,939)
Z S EWBER (LM /R (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (1,139) 35,794

Ze BEFEREMEWTTE  Increase in deposits, prepayment

= and other receivables (207,457) (110,629)
ERBRNATEEIERY Increase in financial assets at fair value

CREELM through profit or loss (43,450) (87,701)
Z S EM BT Increase in trade payables 39,830 10,503
BERSE  BEREE R (Decrease)/increase in deposits received,

Hib A ZRIE CRd) /g m accruals and other payables (2,268) 1,103
BERERS Cash used in operations (854,523) (693,038)
BAHIE Tax paid 3) _

REXEMARSFE Net cash used in operating activities (854,526) (693,038)
REXECHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2 AR B Dividend received 1,344 1,366
2 R B Interest received 48,018 46,386
BHER Advance of loan (100,000) -
REBABBA=EAZERER Increase in time deposits with original
N maturities more than three months (3) (114)
HEME BB RREMEHE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 11
HEBZBBEUNATEENERZ Proceeds from disposal of financial
CREEMGNE assets at fair value through profit or loss 65 -
HEMBARELEZHEERAFE  Net cash inflow arising on disposal
of subsidiaries 41 - 1,760,594
BAME BERBERNHE Payments for purchases of property,
plant and equipment (11,257) (2,349)
EERKER Repayment of loan receivables 100,000 -
REXBFBHETE Net cash generated from investing activities 38,167 1,805,894




ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4E$R

P2 S B GBAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

% & Bl £ i & & Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z—NFT+-_A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

—N\F
2018
k=3 TAET
Notes HK$'000

METHZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
BEARAE Interest paid (37,131) (5,416)
EIRAT AR S Dividend paid (759,334) -
AR A BTHR 2 Proceeds from issue of new shares

REE by way of rights issue - 451,851

TR EFIE Proceeds from exercise of share options - 5,040
RITEE 2SR Proceeds from bank borrowings 1,030,150 -
EBERTESE Repayment of bank borrowings - (670,000)
EBEREHERK Repayment of obligations under finance leases - 2)
EEARNE Repayment of promissory note - (200,000)
EBEMREAR Repayment of lease liabilities (5,847) -
LABE S KNS Payment for repurchase of shares (69,984) -
MR 2ETH Share issuing expenses - (3,501)
BMEFZHHRE,/ (A BREFE  Net cash generated from/(used in)

financing activities 157,854 (422,028)
BERBRESHEER (L) /#in (Decrease)lincrease in cash and cash

equivalents (658,505) 690,828
BEHVzRERBSEEER Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the reporting period 1,156,466 424,200
EFOEZEIEABELEZEE Reclassification from assets

classified as held for sale - 41,350
PEERSHIE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (213) 88
BEBAZRGRESEE Cash and cash equivalents at

A the end of the reporting period

BeRIBITHE Cash and bank balances 33 497,748 1,156,466

BEM < MIE BRI SR e B RE 2 — 8D

consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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—WREE

KA RBEEFMA L2 ZHRRER QAT
HROEBBHERZMARAR ([BFT])
o ARAIZEMMERRTELEME 2
4k 5 Bl AVictoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermudalz &8 T &8
F1168-2005% 1= 72 1 /0 P H341209E

H & & &2 7 AHeung Wah Keung Family
Endowment Limited * B [A %58 % 4 ([ 4E])
RAEEZREBMRAEZLE ([t ])) EHESs -

N

AMBRRABTINE  ETFARRAZY
®-BEABAEN MAEEEHFEER

i
E
Mz TRE(TET) -

ARBZIBEBRRE  RIF  BITUAREKRE
EYREREEE RHEZAEERYE MER
BHRRENRRHERRT -

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun
168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong respectively.

Tak Centre, West Tower,

[ts ultimate parent is Heung Wah Keung Family
Endowment Limited which is equally owned by Mr.
Heung Wah Keung (“Mr. Heung”) and Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”), spouse of Mr. Heung.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and
television drama series, provision of artist management
services, properties development and investment and
provision of catering services.
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2. EAFNIERMBHREEL 2
((ERAMBHREEDN]) RHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

EImH 3

ﬂé} m FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)
(a) TEERHERZHIE B KREER (a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

REBITR
ARERAFEAREAEAGHNAE
([BEEEGFEAE])BMEITIFHITEL
S HmEEA R BRI

mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”") for the first time in the current

year:
ERMBHREEN HE HKFRS 16 Leases
E16%%
5% (BBRMBRE EHEEZ HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
nEZEE) THEE M Treatments
— REFE23%
ERMBHREEN ABBWEEZ Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Eclivd AN AT S Compensation
BB ER srElER Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
F195R 2 BT R ERSEE Settlement
BAEGTER REE NI REE Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
E285% 2B R rEZRAERZ and Joint Ventures
ERMBHREERN 2 BEVBRSEER Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
EEIEN —E-hHEE 2015-2017 Cycle
—E—tFEH
2 EE

B NXXPRALSN - AFE AR B AYMH
HELEAREBITAHAKERNFEE LB
EFEEzHBRARKR RS SHRa
MEBRRAERBEARLBEERNTE -

Except as described below, the application of
the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded
HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after 1st January 2019, the Group applies the
definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing
whether a contract contains a lease.
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2. BRHTEBUEEEER
(EBHBHREER]) R E

&

(a)

TA& (&)

FEERHERZHTE B BHREER
REMBITHR(E)

EBMBREENEIRHEE (F)
TERANA
AEECEPEAEBUBREEAE
1655 R ERORERBH (=ZF
—hNE—R—H)ER-

RZZE—AF—A—HB BEHHAEE

[ & B BT S BIZE1655C8(b) (i) 12

BERNERAEEERzeEEREIINEE

EBERFEAREE GEAME HBERR

%) AEMBENHRENRELAZE K

R e B 2 A = SR B R B i A
R MELBRERTEED -

REEHEEREEM B ENE165E R
THRETEN T AR  AEERZERE
EEERBERBEE B ERNEITR
NERREHERREHERNMAENE
ERMNATAITREE

(i) EEARBEERMTRERAH
FEET12(E A MK LA E R E
RREENEERE

(i) MREBBAHGEEREEE
B MBS V)00 B AR AL

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date
of initial application, 1st January 2019.

At 1st January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
(included in property, plant and equipment) at
amounts equal to the related lease liabilities
adjusted by any prepaid lease payments by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective
approach under HKFRS 16 at transition, the
Group applied the following practical expedients
to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease
contracts:

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for leases with
lease term ends within 12 months of the
date of initial application;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application;
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with similar remaining
terms for similar class of underlying
assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain
leases of properties in Hong Kong and
Macau was determined on a portfolio
basis; and

used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances at date of initial
application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases

previously classified as operating leases, the

Group has applied incremental borrowing rates

of the relevant group entities at the date of initial

application. The weighted average incremental

borrowing rate applied is 2.7%.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

ERFFN (&) As a lessee (Continued)
FER
HK$’000

RZZE—-—N\E+=-A=+—H Operating lease commitments disclosed

W e EHERE at 31st December 2018 18,589
W R EKEBEEE Less: recognition exemption — low-value assets (125)
ERABEMBWEERE165% Total undiscounted lease liabilities

RZE—NF—A—RA2Z at 1st January 2019 for application of

AMBREEEEESR HKFRS 16 18,464
o RIRELE B AR Less: future finance costs (123)

—NF—HA—BZMEA[E Lease liabilities at 1st January 2019 18,341

A Analysed as:
& Current 5,847
FET & Non-current 12,494

18,341
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets at 1st
January 2019 comprises the following:

EREEE
Right-of-use
assets
FET
HK$°000
fERE BT EREEB|E 1695 E Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases
MRZEEHERBERAEEE  recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 18,341
m: EfHELEZENHE Add: reclassification from interests in
(H13%) leasehold land (Note) 53,409
A E N R prepaid lease payments 376
72,126
RER By class:
HEWMZE Leased properties 18,717
HELi Leasehold land 53,409
72,126

AEEREREEERME HERR
BIBTEY AEEABEEENRES
BER-ETAZ -

et -

EEHETHESRADEZEHRANIR T
—N\FE+ZA=+—HNHEAHE TS -
EREBMBREENE16RE  HE LR
#53,409,0008 TN EMN D EEFERAEEE -

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
“property, plant and equipment”, the same line
item within which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.

Note:

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in Hong Kong
for own used properties were classified as interests
in leasehold land as at 31st December 2018. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the interests in leasehold
land amounting to HK$53,409,000 were reclassified to
right-of-use assets.
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2. J?E}Eﬁ %ﬁ §T§ /§ Ej‘j’%iﬁ%qﬁ_,ﬁ\lj 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
(Fﬁ;&ﬂjﬁi&%qﬁ_ﬂuj) &E AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
1|é,}%']'$ (/ﬁjﬁ) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) AEERHERZHIE BV KREED (a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
REBITAR(E) mandatorily effective for the current year

EEMBREEABICREL (F)
fEBFHN ()
WoB—hE—A—BZBANBIRE
HERBLENDENT - ETOERE
EMEBYE2EE -

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 1st January 2019. Line items

that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.

RZB-NE
R=B-N\E -R-BHE
+=B=t-H BEHBREER
BAZHNEEE F165MREE
Carrying amounts
previously Carrying amounts
reported under HKFRS 16
at 31st December e at 1st January
2018 Adjustments 2019
TR TR THER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
nE - EEREE Property, plant and equipment 88,608 72,126 160,734
AETiEE Interests in leasehold land 53,409 (53,409) -
THEE Current assets
%e BNTER Deposits, prepayment and other
Efb R receivables 451,826 (376) 451,450
THEE Current liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities - 5,847 5,847
FREHEE Non-current liabilities
HEARE Lease liabilities - 12,494 12,494
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4% & B %5 Ht & Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—E—HE+ZA=+—BIEE For the year ended 31st December 2019

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1st January 2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1st January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2020.

The directors anticipate that the application of
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) 8 {5 22 B (a) Statement of compliance
REARBBENREESETMAS R The consolidated financial statements have been
BT BB RREERTHER o o) - prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued
FEAMEREDEBRTRES FTHa by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
(88 ) REBATIES Y BEET financial statements include applicable
R EEBERE ¢ disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirement of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
(b) EHEE (b) Basis of preparation

A EMBHRRCRELRAELERER -
EENBREMRZAFEEFENETY
EReBT AR AR TXEII &
BRI -

EeRA—MUEREREEZKES
AT EEAEE-

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
(since 1st January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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P2 S B GBAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS &5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard; and
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and
measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term
ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as
the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms
of the lease when compared with market
terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to stock of properties and financial assets at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill
or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (the “CGU”) (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger
than an operating segment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
venture are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of joint
venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
Under the
equity method, an investment in a joint venture is

events in similar circumstances.

initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that,
net investment in the joint venture),

in substance, form part of the Group’s
the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.
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it Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NE+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a portion
of an investment, in an associate or joint venture,
the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are
met, and the Group discontinues the use of the
equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when
the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 which
continue to be measured in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in respective
sections.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct goods or services.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of

that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounting using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Artist management service income

The Group provide artist management service
by arranging for the provision of artist services
to counterparty under fixed-price contracts.
Artist management service income is recognised
in which the services are rendered. Certain
contracts include multiple performance
obligations and the transaction price of such
contract will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on the stand-alone selling
prices. Artist management service income is
recognised at a point in time.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Distribution fee income

The Group licenses of the distribution rights of
films and television drama series internationally
through its sales agent. Distribution fee income
is recognised when the Group’s entitlement to
such payments has been established which,
subject to the terms of the relevant agreements,
is usually upon the master materials have been
delivered or the sharing of the relevant revenue
have been reliably ascertained. Distribution fee
income is recognised at a point in time.

Revenue from restaurant operations

The Group recognises revenue from restaurant
operations which provides catering services.
Revenue from restaurant operations is
recognised at a point in time when the services

are rendered.

Consultancy fee income and management fee
income

Revenue from the consultancy and management
services are recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investments goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Income from investment in film

Income from investment in film is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payment
has been established, which is subject to the
terms of the relevant agreements.

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food
and beverage sales and other ancillary hotel
service

The Group provides hotel accommodation,
food and beverage sales and other ancillary
hotel service to customers. Revenue from hotel
accommodation, food and beverage sales and
other ancillary hotel service is recognised when
the relevant services provided by the Group to
customers. Revenue from hotel accommodation,
food and beverage sales and other ancillary
hotel service is recognised at a point in time.

Service income from mass marketing, table
gaming operations, VIP rooms table gaming
operations and slot machines operations

The Group provides right to occupy and use
space for gaming service provider for mass
marketing, table gaming operations, VIP rooms
table gaming operations and slot machines
operations. The Group recognises service
income from mass marketing, table gaming
operations, VIP rooms table gaming operations
and slot machines operations in accordance with
the license and site agreements and are based
on certain percentage of monthly gross gaming
wins in the mass market, VIP table gaming and
slot machines in the casino. Service income
from mass marketing, table gaming operations,
VIP rooms table gaming operations and slot
machines operations are recognised at a point
in time.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to
the profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interests in
leasehold land is presented as right-of-use
assets under line item of property, plant and
equipment (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
interests in leasehold land (before application
of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates are as follows:
2%-5%

20%-33%
Over the lease term

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Leasehold land

Over the lease term
10%-50%
15%-20%

Leased properties
Furnitures, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Interests in leasehold land

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interests in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “interests in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair
value to property, plant and equipment when the
property begins to be occupied by the owner.

Gain or loss arising from change in fair value
of the investment property upon the transfer is
recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“other operating expenses” line item.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there
is indication that corporate assets may be
impaired. If such indication exists, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU or a group of CGUSs) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a
group of CGUSs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘loss before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a
joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment properties are depreciable and are
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it
is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities
in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income
tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is
reflected by using either the most likely amount

or the expected value.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Effective 1st January 2019, any specific
borrowing that remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or
sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Stock of properties

Stock of properties, which are held for trading,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost and net realisable value are
determined as follows:

Properties under development held for sale

The costs of properties under development
held for sale comprises specifically identified
costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing
costs capitalised, material and supplies, wages,
other direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method as
appropriate. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as cost of
sales or administrative expenses as appropriate
in the period the write-down or loss occurs as
appropriate. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is offset against the
cost of sales in the period in which the reversal

occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r

Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by
the Group. Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The Group begins
amortisation of the capitalised costs of film
rights when a film is released and it begins to

recognise revenue from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total
projected revenue and total production costs of
film rights at the end of each reporting period.
If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the
amount of total projected revenue from the
period when such changes in estimates take
place and re-calculated the ratio for amortisation
of film rights. The effect from changes in
estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.

Amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss
based on the proportion of actual income earned
during the year to the total estimated income
from the sale of film rights. The amortisation of
In the
case where there is any impairment in value, the

film rights will not exceed twenty years.

carrying amount is written down to its estimated
recoverable amount.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amounts of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
estimated recoverable amount. Such impairment

losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(1)

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost at the date incurred, less any identified
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs
associated with the production of films including
remuneration for the film director, casts and
production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup
and hairdressing as well as rental of camera
and lighting equipment. Films in progress
is transferred to film rights when the film is
released.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that films in progress are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the carrying amount
of such assets is assessed and where relevant,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit or

the asset to its recoverable amount.

loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived
from the financial assets and shareholders’
rights are presented as other revenue and other

income.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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P2 S B GBAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be
measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other revenue and other income” line item.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including loan to a director, investment
in film, trade receivables, deposit paid, other
receivables, loan receivables, time deposits and
cash and bank balances). The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting period to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting period as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these trade
receivables are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting period with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes

in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability

to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables and
amounts due from customers are each
assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for ECL on
an individual basis);

o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings,
lease liabilities, trade payables, deposits
received, accruals and other payables
(excluding receipt in advance) and amounts due
to non-controlling interests) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
If the

Group retains substantially all the risks and

liability for amounts it may have to pay.

rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

(u)

(v)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or
arising from business combinations on or
after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.
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3. EEE%%‘I’BZ%&E (/Z/ég 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
w) HE#E) (w) Leases (Continued)
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The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes
both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be
made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone prices.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option.

The Group also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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3. E‘EE%%‘I‘B{%&E (/{éﬁg) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
w) HE#E) (w) Leases (Continued)
AEFEZFRBAA (ZHHF2Z2BEKRX The Group as a lessee (upon application of
RSB BHEEREI16% ) () HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)
EHELE Right-of-use assets
FRABEENNABIE The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
. FHEABENVIRGESE . the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;
. REWR BB 2N ETRENHE . any lease payments made at or before
ENR - BAEADKREEES the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;
. REBMREENERIBEEK . any initial direct costs incurred by the
NN Group; and
. FEEBRFTRERBHREBEE . an estimate of costs to be incurred by
BREMEMKERBEEES the Group in dismantling and removing
HEGRRIEGMETENAMRED the underlying assets, restoring the site
EEBK AR - on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
F 1B = TY IR AN BT ] 25147 & KR Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
BEEEAE THHEaEENETTE any accumulated depreciation and impairment
(EECE losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.
FHREENESEANEMETaERBFE Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
HEEHMEFOREETRTE - straight-line basis over the shorter of its

estimated useful life and the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term, upon exercising purchase options, the
carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset
is transferred to property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
“property, plant and equipment”, the same line
item within which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend

on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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3. TEEHKEME (£ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

w) MHEE)
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(w)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment; or

o the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following
a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount
rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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3. TEENHERE(£&) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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FEBERRBA (BRI F22 BEMRKX
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(w)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)
Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

. ZIEEFRBEMNER —BExE . the modification increases the scope of
BRBEENENBERAESHE the lease by adding the right to use one
M or more underlying assets; and

. HEMREZ M BN EMR
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° the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1st January
2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
under the heading of “obligations under finance
leases”.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance costs and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance costs are recognised immediately in the
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs.

Operating lease payments, including the cost
of acquiring land held under operating leases,
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Employee benefits
Annual leave

Employee entitlement to annual leave is
recognised when it accrues to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees during the year. Employee
entitlements to maternity leave and sick leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), pension fund
schemes and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’

contributions to the scheme at 5%

contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s vesting
scales. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group are covered
by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and
paid by the Macau government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees
and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security
Fund Contribution managed by the Macau
government. The Group funds the entire
contribution and has no further commitments
beyond its monthly contributions.

Share-based payment expenses

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity under the heading of share-based
payment reserve. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in the profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to the
profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

(2

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to (accumulated losses)/retained earnings.

Share-based payment expenses granted to
consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured
at the fair value of the services received, except
where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values
of the services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2

(aa)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision, including
those arising from the contractual obligation
specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before
it is handed over to the grantor, is the best
estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ac)

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that

person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ac)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of

resources, services or obligations between the

Group and a related party, regardless of whether

a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those

family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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3. E‘EE%E‘#B{%&E (/{éﬂg) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(ad) CRIEREEK (ad) Discontinued operations
BERIEREEB D REREXH 2 AKX A discontinued operation is a component of
o Eﬁ‘ﬁﬁiﬁéfﬁ§7ﬁ$il,ﬁ\m¥ the Group’s business, the operations and cash
HERERy  BRR—EZREBKIEE flows of which can be clearly distinguished from
nzﬁﬁig%% CEEAEEE—BIRE the rest of the Group and which represents a
BRSO BUTEER  E—GE separate major line of business or geographical
By A HARAEEmHKE area of operations, or is part of a single
ZHEAE - coordinated plan to dispose of a separate

major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

MEEEBREERTEIBFELER Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
BZEE(WRE) AHEBERLERE upon disposal or when the operation meets the
BER MEEEBERLR  EELE criteria to be classified as held for sale if earlier.
EBNEoEADRIEEEE - It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

MERESEBDBARIEEE  Blaig Where an operation is classified as discontinued,

BWARRE—HBEEY  EREE a single amount is presented on the face

of consolidated income statement, which

comprises:
. ERIECEEB BB ERER . the post-tax profit or loss of the
)54 discontinued operation; and
J RERERLIEEEEBCEESR . the post-tax gain or loss recognised
HEHEG HEQAFEERLE on the measurement to fair value less
RASIRELERERZBBER costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
& o assets or disposal group constituting the

discontinued operation.



.. ——"l

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#k

o B i A B

s

Bl B A2 R CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—_T—NF+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

4.

TEGHABRMERARE
HZEERIR

RERGAMBRRMIBMARNEE 2 G5
Ry EFARREMTKREIBRMBRZEER
BEREEEDHE G ERRR - ZEMEER
HABRRDNEELRERAREERZEMRAE
MiE - BRRERAEEABNZFMHET -

fhEt RAAERREBEEERMN - WE G HE
BEZEZHE  MERETSEE G
AR - WEBREIFEEHERARAR - A
BRI S BRI MR MR RIRHER -

EREHBERZEEHE

B hbarEs ARBEFRERAEE SR
EK%ZZBEEP EEEREHNEGE P BERRAHE
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred tax on investment
properties, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred tax on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes
of the investment properties on disposal.

Classification of Sparkle Star Entertainment Limited
(“Sparkle Star”) as a joint venture

Sparkle Star is a limited liability company whose legal
form confers separation between the parties to the joint
arrangements and the company itself. Furthermore,
there are no contractual arrangements or any other
facts and circumstances that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangements.
Accordingly, Sparkle Star is classified as a joint venture
of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Control over Over Profit International Limited (“Over
Profit”) and its subsidiaries (“Over Profit Group”)

The directors assessed whether or not the Group has
control over on Over Profit Group based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Over Profit Group unilaterally. In making
the judgement, the directors considered the Group’s
absolute size of holding in Over Profit Group and the
relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings
owned by other shareholders. After assessment, the
directors concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities
of Over Profit Group and the Group has control over on
Over Profit Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
under Level 3 fair value hierarchy

Certain of the Group’s financial assets classified as
FVTPL under Level 3 fair value hierarchy amounting to
approximately HK$91,852,000 at 31st December 2019
(2018: HK$222,921,000) are measured at fair values
with fair values being determined based on unobserved
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
affect the reported fair values of these instruments.
See note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for
further disclosures.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision of ECL for financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for ECL individually.
The provision rates are based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL are disclosed
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the assets belong. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

Impairment of film rights

Impairment assessments on film rights are performed
at the end of each reporting period with reference
to both internal and external market information, for
example, sales forecast based on expected popularity
of the respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sales, and the general economic condition of the
relevant markets. Changes in assumptions used in
this assessment, including the forecasted revenue,
may result in additional provision being made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of films in progress

Impairment assessments on films in progress are
performed at the end of each reporting period. The
recoverable amounts are determined with reference to
sales forecast and expected production and distribution
cost. Changes in assumptions used in this assessment,
including the forecasted revenue, may result in
additional provision being made in the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Group carries out
review on each film at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for any films in progress which no
longer proceeds.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining provision for taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development classified as stock of properties

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market and the estimated market
value (i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of selling expenses) less estimated costs to
completion of the properties. An allowance is made if
the estimated market value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on properties
under development is less than expected as a result of
change in market condition and/or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, may result in
material provision for impairment loss.
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5. QEQIE\_ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) SBMIAEH: (a) Categories of financial instruments:
—E-)N\F
2018
FHET
HK$’000
SRMEE Financial assets
BBBHEARTEEER Financial assets at FVTPL
ZeMEE 313,284 453,481
1D Amortised cost 1,733,994 2,160,364
o y=L Financial liabilities
1D Amortised cost 1,711,265 1,051,385
(b) SREBEEASREX (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies
AEEBRERHELEXEB 2T ESRT The Group’s major financial instruments from
ERRREREFRESZER BEE continuing operations include loan to a director,

B BHRWENR ke EhEk
RE FRESUNATEEIE SR
BE RBERER THEFH RE KRR
#e MERE BHEMER 2R
% EFEAREMEMNRE  RITEE
RENSEERERENIA  AREERTA
ZHBER R M HRABMM T HRE -

HzEem T ABBNEREETZ AR
(SNER B BRAE S R R FI=ER)
EERBRGEESER - AEMNZSE
Bfg 2 BRHIN AT - BEEEER REE
ZERR  UHERLEAVRBEEE
i

investment in film, trade receivables, deposits
paid, other receivables, financial assets at
FVTPL, loan receivables, time deposits, cash
and bank balances, lease liabilities, trade
payables, deposits received, accruals and
other payables, bank borrowings and amounts
due to non-controlling interests. Details of the
financial instruments for the Group are disclosed
in respective notes to the consolidated financial

statements.

The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign
exchange risk, equity price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

There has been no change to the types of

the Group’s exposure in respect of financial

instruments or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risks.

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong,
Macau, Netherlands and The People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and majority
of transactions are denominated in
HK$, US dollar (“US$"), Macau Pataca
(“MOP"), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”).
from future commercial transactions,

Foreign exchange risk arises

recognised assets and liabilities, which
are denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the Group.

The Group is not exposed to material
foreign exchange risk exposure in respect
of HK$ against US$ and MOP as long as
these currencies are pegged. Therefore
US$ and MOP are excluded from the
analysis below.

The transactions and monetary assets
the
Group considers there has no material

denominated in EUR is minimal,

foreign exchange risk exposure in respect
of EUR. Therefore, EUR are excluded
from the analysis below.
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5. ﬁﬁﬂl =1 (HZE_ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) <BEABREEEERBE(Z) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
mEE R (E) Market risk (Continued)
(i) SME R S () (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
RERERR FEEUARE At the end of each reporting period,
GEDEEEB) SHECEBEER the carrying amounts of the monetary
BEZEERENT : assets and liabilities of the Group, which

are denominated in RMB, that is not the
functional currency are as follows:

aE BE
Liabilities Assets
—E-hEF —E-N\F —ZE—NF —E)\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
THET FET FHET T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000

AR RMB 87,401 79,663 144,787 225,140
NEBBEWESYUININEE The Group currently does not have
ZEEMEBENIING EIRHE - a foreign currency hedging policy
TEEBZ)EE R A INE R in respect of assets and liabilities
I B B Y E RN [E denominated in foreign currency. The
f& o management will monitor its foreign

currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#k

w0 B A R

HE—
5.

T—HFE+-A=1+—BIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
EMIA(E o
(b) LREAREEEERBE(E)
mEERE (E)
(i) SME R S ()

TRFHBTHEAREE MR
DE% M RNEE 2 GURE © %5% )5
PRAGRELE REXEEEYH
SNEBEXRS AL EE) 25T o
ZHRESTERERAKEEN
SNEEE BB IBE W INEE
R I5%EHABRARBERRZ
BRE - TRPNEHBERATL
ARBEIE%EHATEER D -
ﬁ%ﬁiAE%ﬁﬁw&~ﬁ%
EXeRSUAERZZE -
TXHTHREE -

(b)

P2 S B GBAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used which represents
management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in pre-tax loss
where HK$ weaken 5% against RMB. For
a 5% strengthening of HK$ against RMB,
there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss and the number below
would be negative.

— N\
2018
THETT
HK$'000

B TH AREERE% If HK$ strengthens against
RMB by 5% (2,869) (7,274)

P TTH AR EE355% If HK$ weakens against

RMB by 5% 2,869 7,274
ERERRZBRED M AR Management considered the sensitivity

REAIERR  AREHEH
RZBBRTRBRERNZER

analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting
period does not reflect the exposure
during the years.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in equity
securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted
in the Stock Exchange, the directors
manage this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the Group also invested
in equity security listed in the Stock
Exchange without quoted market price.
The management has monitored the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. Sensitivity analysis
for equity security listed in the Stock
Exchange without quoted market price
with fair value measurement categorised
within Level 3 fair value hierarchy were
disclosed as below.

If the prices of the listed equity securities
with quoted market price had been 5%
(2018: 5%) higher/lower,
loss for the year ended 31st December

the pre-tax

2019 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$11,072,000 (2018:
HK$11,524,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity
securities under Level 1 fair value
hierarchy classified as FVTPL.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NF+-A=1t—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

At 31st December 2019, the Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank borrowings
obtained for financing construction
project in Macau. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the Group’s
HK$ denominated bank borrowings. The
Group aims at keeping borrowings at
variable rates. The Group manages its
interest rate exposures by assessing the
potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate
level and outlook. The management will
review the proportion of borrowings in
floating rates and ensure they are within
reasonable range.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each reporting
period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. If interest
rates had been 25 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were
the Group’s interests
capitalised to stock of properties for the
year ended 31st December 2019 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,575,000.

held constant,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31st December 2018, the Group has
no interest-bearing borrowings. Therefore,
the Group is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk exposure.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to loan to a director, investment in film, trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables,
loan receivables, time deposits and bank
balances. At 31st December 2019 and 2018,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk,
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amounts
of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with loan to a
director is mitigated because loan to a director
is secured by way of a share charge over the
entire issued share capital of Reform Base
Holdings Limited (“Reform Base”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") and wholly owned by Ms. Chen.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the
directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group applies simplified approach to
measure lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
directors assessed customers’ ability to settle
the receivables based on historical observed
default rates. Since those customers have
good track record with the Group, the directors
conclude that there is no significant change
in credit quality and no impairment losses are
recognised at the end of the reporting period.

The Group assessed the ECL for loan
receivables and certain other receivables
collectively. These balances are grouped under
provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to past default
experience and have been adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors that affecting the
ability of settlement. During the year ended
31st December 2019, impairment loss of
approximately HK$873,000 (2018: nil) and
approximately HK$822,000 (2018: nil) are
recognised in respect of loan receivables and
other receivables respectively.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The directors considered the credit risk of
the Group’s investment in film and deposits is
relatively low as they have a low risk of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

The Group had advanced a loan to a director
and considered the credit risk is limited since
the borrower has an appropriate credit history
and good reputation. The directors monitored
the financial background and creditability of
borrow on an ongoing basis.

The Group actively monitors the outstanding
amounts owed by each debtor and uses past
due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Group deposited time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may
cause the Group’s right with respect to time
deposits and bank balances held to be delayed
or limited. The directors of the Company monitor
the credit rating of these banks on an ongoing
basis, and consider that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk at 31st December 2019 and 31st
December 2018 were minimal.

At 31st December 2019,
concentration of credit risk as 100% (2018:

the Group has

100%) of investment in film was due from a
production house.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by the management. Reports with maturity
dates of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or
refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.

At 31st December 2019, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$569,850,000
(2018: HK$1,600,000,000).
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SRMITE (& 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREREBEERBEK(E) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
FEELER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRIITAEBEZETESRABEZ R The following table shows details of the Group’s
AHHRFR RERBDHERNEAEEA remaining contractual maturity for its non-
EEXNZHPEPRESMEEL RN derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
RREREER - been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
ETESMABZESMA B EERE The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
RAEERR - RAMEBRSBENIRES liabilities are prepared based on the agreed
HREBEIRAFFEELOT - repayment dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, are as follows:
mEFS REXY, RER
ERAIE R-ER  ZZEER BENE RENEST  REESH
Weighted ~ On demand Total Total
average or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
effective rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
% TER TER TEn TR AR
% HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-NE+ZA=+-H  At31st December 2019
FiEemas Non-derivative
financial liabilities
BHERER Trade payables - 78,251 - - 78,251 78,251
g - BHEA R Deposits received,

EERTE accruals and other payables - 87,254 - - 87,254 87,254
HERE Lease liabilities 27 5,651 7,220 - 12,87 12,494
BieE Bank borrowings 5.62 1,088,074 - - 1,088,074 1,030,150
el FEE R ERE Amounts due to

non-controlling interests - 503,116 - - 503,116 503,116
& Total 1,762,346 7,220 - 1,769,566 1,711,265
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5. ﬁﬁml =1 (/ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) <BEREEEERBE(Z) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
RBELERE (E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
MERY BEXS AHR

LIRS K%M “ELFR TENE ReRELd  REESH

Weighted ~ On demand Total Total
average or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
effective rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

% TEL TEL TAL TAR TEL
% HKS000  HK$O00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000

WZE-\FE+-A=T—H  At31st December 2018

FTESRAR Non-derivative

financial liabilities
BARMER Trade payables - 38,421 - - 38,421 38,421
EWERS  EHEE Deposits received,

REMEMFE accruals and other payables - 509,848 - - 509,848 509,848

R ERERIE Amounts due to

non-controlling interests - 503,116 - - 503,116 503,116
st Total 1,051,385 - - 1051385 1,051,385
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the
directors at the end of each reporting period to
explain the cause of fluctuations in fair value of
the asset.

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which
market data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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@@IE{ (ﬂfég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) EMIBECAFEE(E) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
F-ZR FTER EZER @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THT TET THT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=Z-hF+=-A=+—-H At 31st December 2019
BREEREEZ N TPER Fair value on a recurring basis
EBBEUAFEETIR Financial assets at FVTPL
SREE
- KRB LMz RAES - Equity securities listed
in Hong Kong 221,432 - 4,059 225,491
- RT-E2EE2 ~ Call option embedded
ERNFTE 2 REHRE in loan to a director - - 87,793 87,793
221,432 - 91,852 313,284
RZE—\E+ZA=+—H  At31st December 2018
BAEENEEZ N IEE Fair value on a recurring basis
BRBRNATFEEIEL Financial assets at FVTPL
- BRB LT 2 RAES - Equity securities listed
in Hong Kong 230,480 - 3,549 234,029
- EBBZFLMERES ~ Unlisted club debenture
in Hong Kong - 80 - 80
- RET-EEFL ~ Call option embedded
BERAME s REE in loan to a director - - 219,372 219,372
230,480 80 222,921 453,481
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and out of fair value hierarchy levels at
the end of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

On 27th November 2017, one of the Group’s
equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified
as financial assets at FVTPL was suspended
trading, therefore, no unadjusted quoted price
in an active market is available. The Group
measured fair value of suspended trading
security by reference to the valuation carried out
by Graval Consulting Limited in which fair value
was measured by using significant unobservable
inputs, thus, the fair value of suspended trading
security was reclassified from Level 1 to Level 3
valuations.

During the year ended 31st December 2019 and
2018, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The following table presents the changes in
financial assets at FVTPL which are classified
as Level 3 category for the year ended 31st

EREE December 2019 and 2018:
FAT
HK$'000
RZE—-N\F—H—H At 1st January 2018 217,579
FRBEEUATEBEIRZEREEY Gain arising on change in fair value
N EEZEEE G of financial assets at FVTPL 5,342
RZB-NFTZA=1T—HRK At 31st December 2018 and
RZZE—-NF—H—H at 1st January 2019 222,921
FERBENAFEENRZ Loss arising on change in fair value
TREECATEEREDGELZER of financial assets at FVTPL (131,069)
R-ZE—-NAF+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2019 91,852
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about level 3 fair value

measurements
BETEE
fHERM BWARE BETTEEGAMBHERATEEZER
Significant Relation of significant
Valuation unobservable unobservable
Techniques input inputs to fair value
RETFT-—RESER ZEAHR HEAEEEE HAEEEEERBE L
WATE 2 R EEERX NEEBEFEFAELEERE
Call option Binomial option Underlying The underlying assets value is
embedded in pricing model assets value positively correlated to the fair value

loan to a director

IS
- T
3 o8
FoE it

ok

\
/

&
o

Suspended trading
security listed in
Hong Kong

A

Market
approach

TEHR iR

Expected
volatility

B EIREES
42.44% (=&

— A\ : 53.15%)

Holding return
basis of
negative
42.44%

(2018: 53.15%)

A KA LR 12
(ZF—N\F:
27.13)

Price-to-earning
basis of 48.12
(2018: 27.13)

FIREET4.29%
(ZF—N\F:
78.01%)

Discount rate of
negative
74.29%

(2018: 78.01%)

measurement of the call option

T HA R e HE R R B 2
N EEFEFHEEERBE

The expected volatility is positively
correlated to the fair value
measurement of the call option

FEROHREERTEESERE LTES
ZNFEEFEFELEERE

The holding return basis is positively
correlated to the fair value
measurement of the suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong

mETEEAE?TT%%
MHEHZ AFEETE
ﬁEEE@%
The price-to-earning basis is
positively correlated to the fair value
measurement of the suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong

PFrIREMESEEE R L3
ZRAVFEEFEFEAERE

The discount rate is negatively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the
suspended trading security listed in
Hong Kong
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HEZ
5.

T—-HFE+-A=1+—BIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
5.

EMIA(E
() SBMIAZATMEEE)

EHE=ERLFEETBZEH (B

RIEFEEZATEER BB REE
CEEMARAREINAIE  UHELEE
BERMEZEA Z2GARE - EEER
BEREMRAEEERRAAER - ARE
EERATEERSZRA -

BRAEE LR FEEMRA A ERNT
RBABBRZER TR EXHRE -

PR 2 HERB B NREE
BEA -R-_F-NER_F-N\F+=
A=+ —BA&BRA 2B ABENT

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
management work closely with Graval Consulting
Limited to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors
at the end of each reporting period to explain
the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the
asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the above fair value
are disclosed above.

Binomial option pricing model is used for
valuation for the call option component. The
inputs into the model at 31st December 2019
and 2018 are as follows:

—E-N\F

2018

HEEEEE(THET) Underlying assets value (HK$'000) 469,568 507,478
TEE(FET) Exercise price (HK$'000) 500,000 500,000
T8 HA K 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 32.22 43.00
% B W2 (%) Dividend yield (%) TEAN/A TEAN/A
BARER WE (4F) Option life (years) 2.27 3.27
47 [ B8 1) 2R (%) Risk free rate (%) 1.72 1.72

BRAFEEELAZE-SHTERRET
—RESZERAMEZRABERRZAT
EEFE WA EEEREARESY
MR AE%M AT H fth B RIS T
ARET—ZES2ERNAME 2 RES
2 BRTEE G N R 2 494,390,000/
JTL(ZZF— )\ 10,969,000 L) °

For fair value measurements of call option
embedded in loan to a director in Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy, a 5% increase/
decrease in the underlying assets value and
expected volatility holding all other variables
constant would increase/decrease the carrying
amount of the call option embedded in loan to a
director by approximately HK$4,390,000 (2018:
HK$10,969,000).
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HE—
5.

T—HFE+-A=1+—BIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
5.

EMIA(E
() SBMIAZATMEEE)

BFHE=ERLFEETBZEN (%)

BRATEEERZF=-"SHTEHERFE
EESLTEEZAVBENE  EK
BIREERTAREER N RD5%
VA R 47 B Sk > 3 5% 1 BT A H
HRFAE  AEEBEERALWRESLZ
AR B #5315 0% > 49203,0007% 7T (=
T — )\ : 177,000 7C) °

BAFEENUSHEZ S RAER AN
AFEE

BTXHESN  RZE-AFRZE-N
FHZAS+—8 AR B
MAHEZ CRAERSBAELBAE
BEATEELEEALA ;

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

For fair value measurements of suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong in Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, a 5% increase/
decrease in the holding return basis and price-
to-earning basis and 5% decrease/increase in
discount rate holding all other variables constant
would increase/decrease the carrying amount
of the suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong by approximately HK$203,000 (2018:
HK$177,000).

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

Except as disclosed below, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at
31st December 2019 and 2018:

—E-NF —E-)\F
2019 2018

REE NEEE

Carrying Fair

amount value

FHT FHET

HK$'000 HK$’000

REF—REEZEHK  Loan to a director 369,974 413,923 327,903 330,923

RATEEBRRERT - RESZEXN
RTEEDEREZSH  DHERKERER
RERENMEEEEMAZEBRAE
T HERBERABE AT R LA RS
BARKRERBEUESR T AMBRAE R -

The fair value of loan to a director is classified
as Level 3 category in fair value hierarchy
which has been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the return required by the holder for
investing in similar financial instrument.
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AEEEBEEAR  UBRRASEE @R
BRFEEE  TEBBLEBRERS
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debts (which includes bank borrowings and
lease liabilities) and equity attributable to owners
of the Company (comprising share capital and
reserves).

The Group is not subject to any external imposed
capital requirements.

Gearing ratio

The directors review the capital structure
on annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of new shares or repurchase of
existing shares as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.
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5. %Eﬂl =1 (/ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) EXEHE#E) (d)  Capital management (Continued)
BESEHEE) Gearing ratio (Continued)
FAEBEEHBEERBRBRLET RS The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
50% c RRERARZEEBRB/LERNOT ¢ of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at the

end of the reporting period was as follows:

“E-hE —T-)N\F

2019 2018

TET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

RERS (M) Total debts (Note) 1,042,644 -
Ao EBETARR S Less: time deposits and cash and

RiRITHE B bank balances (498,020) (1,156,735)

BEBFE/ (Re) Net debt/(cash) 544,624 (1,156,735)

RARER AELER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,687,539 4,431,962

ERFRERRLE Net debt to equity ratio 15% TEA N/A

BEBYHERLE Total debt to equity ratio 28% TEA N/A

K BEXLFHEaGREFTES # Note: Total debts comprises lease liabilities and

BRI RAERE B &M E36 %39 ° bank borrowings as detailed in notes 36 and

39 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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HEZ
6.

AEEREARAES (EXBLEREE (X
EEERRE]D) BN BEETHLEEH A -
LIRS EREERSERERSERBETANE
BEORTE o

—

AEBENEATHREND B -EXHBEBLE
X DMERERRELEED EBRKEER
IRBEERBYRBEEED - ZE0BHRIE
BERASERERB AR (BRERUMELRE)
£l
AREATHEDBNHEETRAEREE 2 KK
EBEN - mRZEEBEIATERTENTR
BT 5 1 RS ES MBS RB LI o
ARERBEREEBRERIELEEBRATH
EOBZHBHEDT
FECEER
BRI - RE ®HF BOEE
EHBEREH RETREREE
BIARRHEME
FHEARYE  2R/E
ANE B IR
WMERE R - BRENMBBEMRER
REREXRH iokYES

o

=

B

i

HE

S8
|

REBEB-—HEE
REERIRG

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”),
for the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments and that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has four reportable segments — film related
business operations, property development and
investment operations, restaurant operations and hotel
and gaming service operations. The segmentations are
based on the information about the operations of the

Group that management uses to make decisions.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that operate different activities. They are managed
separately because each business has different
markets and requires different marketing strategies.

Particulars of the Group’s reportable segments for
continuing and discontinued operations are summarised

as follows:

Continuing operations

Film related - Investment, production,
business distribution and licensing of
operations films and television drama

series and provision of
other film related services
including artist management
services

Property — Investment and development of

development properties located in Macau

and investment

operations
Restaurant — Provision of catering services
operations through a restaurant in Hong

Kong
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6. ﬁ;ﬁﬁﬂéﬂ. (/Z/gg 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BRIEREER Discontinued operation
B IE RIGF - RBMABEEHBEEIR Hotel and - Provision of hotel services,
R 75 45 & 2 7% HOBERY - B& gaming service food and beverage operation
oS TSR operations services, provision of right to
RESHEAER occupy site and marketing
BEEEEK T services for gaming
%5 1 B R operation in Hotel Lan Kwai

Fong Macau

REBE-_E—HhhE+-_A=+—HLFER & During the year ended 31st December 2019, the Group
EEREAHKREEELEER- commenced restaurant operations in Hong Kong.
REZE-_ZE—N\E+-_BA=+—HUILEER "B During the year ended 31st December 2018, the hotel
EREERBEEERDRIELE - and gaming services operations discontinued.
UTHENSEER T TAEHEERIIREEK 2 The segment information reported below does not
FREE  ERNGAEWBEREMFISIEEFAE include any amounts for the discontinued operation,
FE o which are disclosed more detail in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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6. DEBER(£E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
%%ﬁ%“:"**%i% Continuing operations
EHZSRAEER Y DEERZHMT - Segment information about these operations is

presented as below:

(a) AEERELE PRI KRB REEDIH (a) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segments
ARk PEEE
Segment revenue Segment results
—Z-\E —E-N\EF
2018 2018
FHEL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EVIREEBLEER Film related business operations 6,466 3,493 (169,199) (14,477)
MERERIELLEER  Property development and
investment operations - - (14,071) (9,206)
ERB2EH Restaurant operations 587 - (4,083) -
7,053 3,493 (187,353) (23,683)
REHBELLERZHEEE Reconciliation from segment results
SR AR 2 8 to loss before tax from continuing
operations
RAEEERA Unallocated corporate income 87,517 83,437
EBIBENATEENEZ  Loss arising on change in fair value
SREECATRER of financial assets at FYTPL
ek v B8 (183,582) (360,209)
ElE-HaErEER Share of loss of a joint venture (270) (114)
RARGERR Unallocated corporate expenses (52,008) (104,767)
BEFESE Loss before tax (335,696) (405,336)
FXRERZ D BENFERBINATEZ Segment revenue reported above represents
Wz MEFERNHESEREE - revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales for both
years.
PREBEESIBERPEEIARADERDE Segment results represent the loss suffered
ERT BT 2HBHTHAS  BoME by each segment without allocation of central
AR EMEERY  [ROBEE administrative expenses, partial finance costs,
HSU\JIETﬁB HtmREmBA - 5F and partial other operating expenses under the
BIEER $1E{§§IJE§Z§H§§FZ AN heading of “unallocated corporate expenses”,
Eﬁ%@jﬁﬁéiz}éﬂﬁu&ﬁﬁ*ﬁéﬁ partial other revenue and other income under
CEEEBNRAEZER I ARTE the heading of “unallocated corporate income”,
EERREZREERDERFHERZ loss arising on change in fair value of financial
RTEE e assets at FVTPL and share of loss of a joint

venture. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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6. f_—}ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ} (IZEE 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BEREER (E) Continuing operations (Continued)
(b) ZAEEELEDEE D 2HBRRDIF (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position

by operating segments

—E-hF —E-N\FE
2019 2018
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
DEEE Segment assets
— BEXEBAEBLEET - Film related business operations 660,535 526,100
— MERER — Property development and
REREER investment operations 3,234,065 2,596,602
— BREEEB - Restaurant operations 7,071 -
DIHEERT Total segment assets 3,901,671 3,122,702
RKOMEE Unallocated assets 1,496,535 2,360,520
5,398,206 5,483,222
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
8E LIABILITIES
NEEE Segment liabilities
— BYMHBAERSEER  — Film related business operations 88,118 76,074
- MERER — Property development and
BT EET investment operations 1,597,986 538,365
- BELCEER - Restaurant operations 2,227 -
NEAERRE Total segment liabilities 1,688,331 614,439
KOBEBE Unallocated liabilities 22,966 436,946

1,711,297 1,051,385
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—NFE+ZA=1t—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
6. SEER(£) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s financial position

by operating segments (Continued)

For the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment between segments:

FEEEDSETAETREDE .

MRET-—BEFZ2ER K-

MEELERER Hoks &

RYERIE & HAh e WA IE - B R 1B
u@iﬁ@ﬂ%Z%ﬂﬁE‘

EWE - BinH e RRITHER
f’E#@a‘BﬁBZﬂ%LZ“ DWE
ERREREE L ERRI

K

PIBEREDAETATHREDE - .

D ERIRE  EEFBEERE
fENFE RSO HE R BRI

all assets are allocated to reportable

segments, other than loan to a

director, interest in a joint venture,
partial deposits, prepayment and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL,
loan receivables, partial cash and bank
balances, partial property, plant and
equipment and interests in leasehold land

for central administrative purposes; and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments, other than partial deposits
received, accruals and other payables
and partial lease liabilities.
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6. DEER (& 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BEREER (E) Continuing operations (Continued)
(c) HthoBER (c)  Other segment information
EYREREEERE  DERBRRRESERE fELEEE #9R B
Film related Property development and
business operations investment operations Restaurant operations Unallocated Consolidated
= O “3-\F B SEA D30\ B EEA C3-0F (B EEA CE-)F (8 Dk CF-)F
2019 2018 2019 018 2019 2018 2019 218 2019 018
T Tin T Tin TR TR 7 TER T TR
HKS'000 U3V HKS 000 U3 HKS'000 Y0 HKS'000 [0 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAHEAEEEY Amounts included in the measure of

PREEZRA: segment results or segment assets:

EYMELH Amortsation offim rights 1747 - - - - - - - 147 -
BETiEREH Amortisation of interests n

easehold land - - - - - - - 1873 - 1873
0% BERRENE Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 1,085 19 4161 1350 612 - 8,161 2750 14,019 429
BHEMEZCEIAEEE  Impaiment oss recogised n

respect of fim rights 125,246 571 - - - - - - 1256 571
BESEREYL Impairment loss recognised i respect

BEZEEER of fims in progress 10275 - - - - - - R V1] -
EEN: BERREL Impairment loss recognised in respect

BEIAEER of property, plant and equipment - - 6,814 3601 - - - - 6,814 3601
EERSRUES Reversal o impaiment loss recognised

BB ERERE in respect of trade receivables (230) (120) - - - - - - (230) (120)
HERRERL Impaimen loss recognised n respect

BEZEEER ofloan receivables - - - - - - L1 - in -
EBLbRNTEL Impairment loss recognised in respect

BEIAEER of other receivables - - - - - - 62 - 7/ -
HENE BERREL Loss/{gain) on disposal of property,

FE/(4F) plant and equipment - - - 1 - - - (10) - ]
fiEng BERSE Wrten off of property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 1 - 1 -
RENFATEEZHZET  Ga onfai value change of

investment properties - - - (1300 - - - - - 1,300
FENE BERRE Additions o property, plant and equipment 1 1 3799 1015 7,33 - 115 19 1 2349
EHOTTEERRARL  Amounts reqularly provided to
BRFAFEAERAD the CODM but not included in
ABEEZRE: the measure of segment results
or segment assets:
H-BRErE R Intrest in  jint venture - - - - - - - m - mn
FHERA Barkinfrest income bAE 291 379 1 - - 8016 149 s 150
EEGIELON Loan nerest income - - - - - - TR &SR T B35
EfFIRMA Other nterest income - - - - - - 0 87 10 &
BENA Finance costs 5 - 8 - - - o 28% 408 28%
El-HRELEER Share ofloss of a joint venture - - - - - - m 114 m 114
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6. f_—,\iﬁﬁ*ﬂ. (/Z/E_ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BEREER (E) Continuing operations (Continued)
d EEXEEFzEHR (d) Information about major customers
RBEFEEBAEELHEEI0%A L Revenue from customers of the corresponding
ZREPZWEMT years contributing over 10% of the total sales of

the Group is as follows:

s ==
2019 2018
F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

HHEBERREEL Film related business operations

B (R EG)) Customer A (Note (i) 794 -
8P (KaE) Customer B (Note (ii)) - 1,541
BPERA K aE) Customer C (Note (ii)) - 718
BPT (Baii) Customer D (Note (ii)) - 358
BRI (K aE) Customer E (Note (ii)) - 360
B PR EN  RREEE - fEHi Except disclosed above, no other customers
EPERAEEREH10%3A L - contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue

for both years.

Hiet - Notes:

(i) BHE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HBLHF (i) No revenue is derived from Customer A during
ERABREREEFEF 2z - the year ended 31st December 2018.

(ii) BE-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—HB1tE (i) No revenue is derived from Customer B,
ERABERBREFZL BTFR TP Customer C, Customer D and Customer E

TREPKRZHE - during the year ended 31st December 2019.
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6. f_—,\ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ. (/Z/ég 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

BEREER (E) Continuing operations (Continued)

(e) ih & & H (e) Geographical information
TREHEB()REINARE 2 Wz (i) The following table sets out information about
FRBEE (TREBENRELSRTIA) geographical location of (i) revenue from external
ZHESE AR c REMAMETHER customers and (ii) non-current assets (excluded
RERBARINERZFAEWE © IR prepayment and financial instruments). The
BEEHEDNERNZSEE 2 ABEM geographical location of customers is based on
B the location at which the services were provided

or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the assets.

FRBEE
(FEEANRER
REMREF W SWMIA)
Non-current assets
(excluded
Revenue from prepayment and
external customers financial instruments)

SLISED -z B RPN —z- s
2019 2018 2019 2018
FiB F#T Fi# F#TT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

E5 Hong Kong 752 719 145,015 141,289
JRPY Macau - - 6,128 995
Hh The PRC 5,861 1,233 1 3
HAh Others 440 1,541 - -

7,053 3,493 151,144 142,287
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HEZ
7.

T—-HFE+-A=1+—BIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
7.

I =
0)

(i)

SIFREEFAERZKE

REVENUE

(M

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

UTEHYEEPALY 2 WEEEDEER A Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
RSB HE - from contracts with customers with the amounts
disclosed in the segment information.
—E-N\F
2018
FHET
HK$'000
BEKSEEL Continuing operations

BITERA Distribution fee income 4,174 1,541
2B EREWA Artist management service income 2,292 1,952
BEEEED Restaurant operations 587 -
HEEAEHZWE Revenue from contracts with customers 7,053 3,493
—E-N\F
2018
FHET
HK$’000

W 25 1 3R 2 B [ Timing of revenue recognition
K — AR A point in time 7,053 3,493

ITBEEETFENBKRTANEEIZRS

REBREBEABTEREBRAEAET SR
EREEBFEISREI2IRZATERA
FORBENIEIERESNN —F
UTHR BEAEETAEREEEAE
ERBITEAEEANBRTROETRE
ZHKEZER -

(i)

Transaction allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its artist
management service income such that the Group
does not disclose information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations under
the artist management contracts as all contract
works have an original expected duration of one
year or less.
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8. E@WE&E@L&A 8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
—2—n5 JEEEESYIC
2019 2018
FHExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEQEER Continuing operations
B8 ] AR 75 M A Consultancy service income 972 972
% S A Dividend income 1,344 1,366
HEME  #RR Gain on disposal of property,

A 2 A plant and equipment - 9
s — R B A E 2 F Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 639
RITH B WA Bank interest income 14,544 15,244
B A B A Loan interest income 77,559 65,532
Hth 7 S A Other interest income 70 87
BEEBRA Management fee income 390 720
BB RKERZ Reversal of impairment loss recognised

ERAEEERRD in respect of trade receivables 230 120
FIERA Sundry income 143 36

95,252 84,725
9. ﬁmﬁﬂzj& 9. FINANCE COSTS

—2—n5 JEEESYIC
2019 2018
FHExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BHEKEER Continuing operations
RITEEZFE Interests on bank borrowings 36,723 964
AR ZF A Interest on promissory note - 1,871
HEAGBEZHME Interests on lease liabilities 408 -
37,131 2,835
MEFEZERMEF R Interests capitalised to stock of properties (36,723) -

408 2,835
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10. BRBIAIEE

BRBAEREME, (Gt A) THI&E :

10. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

—E-N\F
2018
FHT
HK$'000
BEREER Continuing operations
HE T mdE Amortisation of interests in leasehold land - 1,873
BRRERE GIAHESNE) Amortisation of film rights (included in cost of sales) 1,747 -
RN I & 2 H At AR 7 - Auditors’ remuneration and other services:
riN/NSIE S i Auditors of the Company
—EiT IR — audit services 1,273 1,219
—EE R - non-audit services 187 186
H fth 7% E8D Other auditor 282 -
1,742 1,405
BEFERA GEAHERR) Cost of inventories sold (included in cost of sales) 251 -
mE - ERRRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,019 4,293
EERAHZ (FI3E15) Employee benefit expenses (note 15) 43,886 58,740
EREHHEEREMBENYIX  Expense relating to short-term leases and other

EREEUNBRELRNE165E 2 leases with lease terms end within 12 months of

BR12EARNER2HEZMY  the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 7 -
BEHEEEEECHEZHE Expense relating to leases of low-value assets,

(TREEEEEEZNEMAE) excluding short-term leases of low-value assets 95 -
HEME BRRZE2RT Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (9)
BEMEZAFEEEZSH %A Gain on fair value change of investment properties

(FrAEAMEERS) (included in other operating expenses) - (1,300)
ERETZREZCHARBMEEE  Impairment loss recognised in respect of film rights

(FIAEMEEHRT) (included in other operating expenses) 125,246 571
BRAEERFEY 2O R MERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of films in

(FRIAEMEEHT) progress (included in other operating expenses) 10,275 -
BHEME BRRFHEZ Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,

ERERAEEE plant and equipment

(FEAEME ) (included in other operating expenses) 6,814 3,601
BEHERERZEERFBERBE Impairment loss recognised in respect of

(FFAHMERRAY) loan receivables (included in other

operating expenses) 873 -
EREMERFEZCHERRMA  Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BiEGIAEMEERT) other receivables (included in other
operating expenses) 822 -
REBLANZEZEE Loss on early redemption of promissory note

(FRIAEMEEHT) (included in other operating expenses) - 24,778
BRBEUAFEEYR 2SR E Loss arising on change in fair value of

EsATEEEZDMEEEE financial assets at FVTPL 183,582 360,209
fE 5 &8 % Net foreign exchange loss 261 4,253
BAmEsgEHERS Operating lease rental in respect of premises - 5,791
EREZRKERZEHRA Reversal of impairment loss recognised in

HEBERRE respect of trade receivables (230) (120)
BEBEBRBURNENZ Share-based payment expenses in respect of

FIEMAX consultancy fee - 1,839
WM - WBERRE Written off of property, plant and equipment 14 -
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1. FFEBBEX 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—ZE-N\F
2018
FAET
HK$'000
BEQSEER Continuing operations
BEARR I8 - Current tax:
—HEMNEN - Hong Kong Profits Tax 32 -
—HRERERER - PRC Enterprise Income Tax 3 -
35 -
RZE-NF=ZR=+—HB @BLEBE_ On 21st March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
T~ EF(E]) (B75) &M E = ([ 1§10 Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.
BZE]) 5| ANERAAE - ZIEFHERER-Z 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered
—NF=ZA= +}\EI,$&;§%7,%E‘( i&x#ﬁ profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
REBFZ -RBENESEERAT  2EREEE on 28th March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
BEWEEE TS H%?Zi&ZS%a’*R RIEHE - B day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
BB BB ITEIR16.5%F REE - TG A FE first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity

5t

MR EBNEEERHR
16.5%H) £% S o

R4 1 % 12 58
— B

Al

T 0 9 {8 F 1% fh At

EERAERINEHEMAS TS REEY
BREZETK - BEFB
JERBEF 2 16.5%5H & o

RN A EEEARE B 2 BRTUEF H &
EFRATENC 2BETAAR B RIEBE 8
VTEREE T N\F+_A=+—HIEFEZ

BREMNEHIELEE -

BB A )R B AR $9 1R 25% 5 Al R B 1b
FT{S 8t o JRPIF B 2 )5 M 18 & 2 19 4R (5 5T FE R
FRFl 2z o RERER12% SRS H TR
17 0 P /8 /2 7] 1% £ BR200,0008% It #9 & 5% B e A
Z20% M ET - mA UL AR R25% M o

will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the year ended 31st December 2018 as the Group
has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or
taxable profits were wholly absorbed by estimated tax
losses brought forward.

The PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% for both years. Macau subsidiaries
are subject to Macau Complementary Tax at the
maximum progressive rate of 12% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years. Netherland subsidiary
is subject to the corporate tax at 20% of the taxable
income up to and including EUR200,000, above which
the rate is 25%.
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B BRZMEFEZ2RPIRAEHAR REHE

RUELRE -

HRAAEBERBE_ZT-—N\F+_A=1+—H1
FRELERPRELBRTOGEN - FUL I EEH

PRI EASRAEE -

FRAAEGERARARKRABRERZAEH

HE-ZT-NE+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

No provision for Macau Complementary Tax and
Netherland corporate tax has been made for both years

as the Group has no assessable profit arising in Macau

and Netherland.

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has
been made for the year ended 31st December 2018 as

the Group has no assessable profits arising in the PRC.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled

R to the loss before tax per the consolidated income
statement as follows:
—E-NF —E2-NF
2019 2018
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEQSEXER Continuing operations
B Al ES 18 Loss before tax (335,696) (405,336)
HEHMAERBEFH 2B  Tax at domestic income tax rate (55,070) (66,650)
ity = Tax effect of:
EE—HEEREZEE Share of loss of a joint venture 45 19
T PE R T WA Income not taxable for tax purpose (18,856) (16,396)
GRS Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 62,482 83,060
KRIERZ BT HEEE Estimated tax losses not recognised 11,434 181
BABTARERMIBEEE Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised - (214)

FEMBHRAX

Income tax expense for the year 35
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BE-Z—NFT+-_A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
12. B e 12. DIVIDEND

FARBR/DRTEARAEBRRR 2SR

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company
recognised as distribution during the year:

—E-N\F
2018
FAT
HK$'000
A% 8125781 Special dividend of HK12.5 cents
(ZZ—N\F - 15810) (2018: HK15 cents) 339,008 420,326

RZB-AFNRA=1+H BEFERAR-ZT-N
FTANBREIARRBRREMZBR - kAT
AREAFARBRESHEAFEAERTHE
AR B BRRATH S 2 AR KERN ) & M2 407
BB ESRFAEATRE T HRESRE AR
12581l - ZFHHBEEER_F—NF+A
TNABEERRRBABRIKN -

RZZE-NFE+_A+TN\B EE2GRAR_E
—NF-ANBEINARAREEMZBE - &
BIARALA TR ESITEA (5B AER
TEARAFRRMAMS ZBRLER) &tz
AFATRRESFFTAEASTREIRESREAR
15751l - ZFERIBRBEERZ=ZZ—NF—A=+HA
HIRAS -

FALERMNSEZRTRBBE - RBEHR
& EFENERIRNEFRS (ZT-N\EF:
&) -

On 30th August 2019, the board of the directors
declared the payment of a special interim dividend of
HK12.5 cents per ordinary share of the Company to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s
register of members and the Bonus CBs holders whose
names appear on the Company’s register of Bonus CBs
holder (holders conferred the holders with the same
economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
Company) on 8th October 2019. The special interim
dividend was paid on 18th October 2019 out of the
Company’s contributed surplus.

On 18th December 2018, the board of the directors
declared the payment of a special dividend of HK15
cents per ordinary share of the Company to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s
register of members and the Bonus CBs holders whose
names appear on the Company’s register of Bonus CBs
holders (holders conferred the holders with the same
economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
Company) on 9th January 2019. The special dividend
was paid on 25th January 2019.

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year,
nor any dividend has been proposed by the board of
directors subsequent to the end of the reporting period
(2018: nil).
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HE=
13.

ORIEREEK

RZTE—tF+A+H AEEITVERGEE
EhE Bt AEBERELEMEFREEBEA
AR F 2 &K B R FCharming Era Investment
Limited » Exceptional Gain Profits Limited J¢
Most Famous Enterprises Limited A & % & &
BzMBAR (MBIEHEEE]) 22BEX
BabHEEBMAERBEEER ERER
2,000,000,000/8 7T (AR FEFR 2 EE S T A
B)((MESHESEE]) - HESEERMKRE
BEREYREECEEL BHESHEFEDR
ZE-NF-AZHEKR MEBEEZET-N\F
TZAZST-HLEFEREREYRBELEES
CHBEEE P BRRERIEEEEK -AHEE
ENABENAREELEEE 2 BN 2 HEFER
e BmKRMT4IRE -

13.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 10th October 2017, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement, in which
the Group agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed
to buy the entire equity interest in Charming Era
Investment Limited, Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
and Most Famous Enterprises Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and their respective
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Disposal
Group”), and sale loans due by the Disposal Group
at total consideration of HK$2,000,000,000 (subject
to adjustment of actual working capital) (the “LKF
Disposal”). The Disposal Group is engaged in hotel
and gaming service operations in Macau. The LKF
Disposal has been completed on 3rd January 2018 and
the financial results for the hotel and gaming service
operations have been classified as discontinued
operation for the year ended 31st December 2018.
Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of and
the calculation of the gain on disposal of the Disposal
Group, are disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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13. E%E%gg%%j’% (/éfg 13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)
BE-_Z-\F+-_A=1t—HILFEKBEK Profit for the year ended 31st December 2018 from
BRI DTWT discontinued operation are analysed as follows:

AT\
—A—B%
& E A A
Z iR E
From

1st January

2018 to
respective
date of
disposal of
subsidiaries
FAET
HK$'000
REBERIEERBEGLE Loss from hotel and gaming
ES Pl F service operations (6,376)
HEBEREYREELEK 2 Gain on disposal of hotel and gaming service
i (Bt at4at1) operations (note 41) 1,465,231

RE DRI ET 2w A Profit from discontinued operation 1,458,855
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4% & B B it 3 Bt 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The result of the discontinued operation for the year
ended 31st December 2018, which have been included

in the consolidated income statement, were as follows:

BT —N\F
—A—RZE
HE KB QA
il A

From
1st January

2018 to

respective

date of

disposal of

subsidiaries

T

HK$'000

& Revenue 3,957

HER A Cost of sales (1,985)

EF Gross profit 1,972

Hoph U e I H U A Other revenue and other income 465

THRAX Administrative expenses (8,561)

TISHRE HERBITHX Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (252)

B Al S 18 Loss before tax (6,376)

Fr 5 i £ Income tax expense -

(6,376)

BRI S 25T Gain on disposal of discontinued operation 1,465,231

KEBRIEREER 2 & Profit from discontinued operation 1,458,855
LATATEGEREE KL Profit from discontinued operation attributable to:

REEBZ RN
RRRHER A Owners of the Company

1,458,855
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

13. DRILBEEK (&

BHE-_ZT-\F+ZRA=+—HLEFEXRAEL
IS EB RN TR/ GEA) |

charging/(crediting):

Profit for the year ended 31st December 2018 from
discontinued operation has been arrived at after

BE-ZE—N\F

—A—H=Z

HEMBAR

Z AR EH
From
1st January

2018 to
respective
date of
disposal of
subsidiaries
T
HK$'000
ERIEREEK Discontinued operation
% ERAD BN & I H b AR 7 - Auditors’ remuneration and other services:
— B R - audit services -
—JEER R - non-audit services -
BEEFERA GIABEEKRAR) Cost of inventories sold (included in cost of sales) 110
EERAAZ (REEZHH) Employee benefit expenses (included directors’
remuneration) 813
VE 5, M) JF 58 Net foreign exchange gain (1)
FEMEZREHERS Operating lease rental in respect of premises 16
8 17 B OB Write-down of obsolete inventories 45
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13. DRIFRB R (& 13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)
HE T \F+_A=Z+—HIEFEDLELL Cash flows of the discontinued operation for the year
EEXEBCHERENT : ended 31st December 2018 were as follows:

B )\F
—HA—RZE
& E A A
Z A EH
From

1st January
2018 to
respective
date of
disposal of
subsidiaries
FHTT
HK$'000

REXBEE RS FE Net cash generated from operating activities 34,719
WEXBEEX RS FHE Net cash generated from investing activities -
MEFBAACREFHE Net cash used in financing activities (966)

Be&mAFE Net cash inflow 33,753
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HE—
14.

sR(E8E) BF

REFEKERCRIERERT

ARRHEABERFELERCRIELEEB
BREAREE (BR) /BFNTDZATHENE

14.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
per share from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—E-NE
2018
FHET
HK$'000
(F8’) BA (Loss)/earnings
ARFTESREARALEE (Loss)/earnings for the purpose of
(B58) &BFz (EBE),/ basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
AR (RAR AR AEM per share ((loss)/profit for the year
FZ (E18) aF) attributable to owners of the Company) (335,226) 1,053,530
—E-N\F
2018
TR
‘000
RO EE Number of shares
RAREATEGRERNREE Weighted average number of ordinary
(E8B) /&BF .z T shares for the purpose of basic and
TmRe e diluted (loss)/earnings per share 2,754,030 1,674,902

RBAFATRBRES 2 FEZE - AR TRRE
SBFHBEALARBBREME Z R L
EFE o F I 15 A] K 4B BE 49265,0008 L (=8
— /\5F : 265,000/ 70) 2 i ARIT AL R I #2 R &
SR 060,317 (ZZ— )\ : 1,060,3170%)
SREEOCOIBILZHACE BRI AARTES
BRER(EB) /BRI MEFHLRBRHE -

ARRARNBE_T-NF+_A=T—RALFE
RERETMABERERN - At SREEE
BESREKREBRAR -

MR ARAHARITEZBRESERELRF
ZAHERBEREEYE HHERE_T-N\HF
T-A=+t—BLFEESRETRNEL TRK
1T LB EER -

Pursuant to the deed polls of the Bonus CBs, the
Bonus CBs conferred the holders with the same
economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
Company. Accordingly, 1,060,317 (2018: 1,060,317)
fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each which
shall be convertible from an aggregated amount
of approximately HK$265,000 (2018: HK$265,000)
outstanding Bonus CBs are included in the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for calculating the
basic (loss)/earnings per share.

The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares
throughout the year ended 31st December 2019.
Accordingly, diluted loss per share is the same as
basic loss per share.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where
applicable had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic
earnings per share calculation, the exercise of the
above potential dilutive shares is not assumed in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31st December 2018.
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14. ER(EE) BAN(Z)

REFHERSLEER
ARBEAANRERELEEE 2 BRERRE
EBRDEATHEFE

14.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

—E-N\F
2018
FHET
HK$'000
BB Loss
AR EERERR#EEE L Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted
BB (KRNARHAE ARLFHE loss per share (loss for the year from
KEXBzFEEBR) continuing operations attributable to
owners of the Company) (335,226) (405,325)

e BE P ER A 2 DNHE P35 B AR BB B E SO R A
AR ERELERERIIRLEEB 28R
EXAREE(BR) /BARKAEAR -

RECKRILEEEXR
ARBEAEANBECRUERERT 2 BREAR
HERNTVRAT RIS -

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used herein are same as those detailed above for
the purpose of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share from continuing and discontinued operations
respectively.

From discontinued operation

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from discontinued operation attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

—Z—)\F
2018
FHET
HK$'000
ZR Earnings
ARFTESREARBERZFZ  Earnings for the purpose of basic and
BF (KRBHEE AR diluted earnings per share (profit for
BRI EER 2 FERE ) the year from discontinued operation
attributable to owners of the Company) - 1,458,855

It BE P ER AR 2 R P35 8 B AR BB B ST
DHANHESBRENCRITKEEB 2R
ERREE(BR) /BAFMKAERR -

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used herein are same as those detailed above for
the purpose of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share from continuing and discontinued operations
respectively.



15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

FESEXE

EE el
—Ex4E
—#re RH MR
— R IRAE R B¢

FroRHEMER
BERAREUBROXNZ
HIRRF X
RRAEFIE 4K
(TEREBEEFEZERNK
(EREE K9
BERANAX

Continuing operations

Directors’ remuneration

— directors’ fee

— salaries and other allowances

— retirement benefits scheme contributions

Salaries and other allowances

Share-based payment expenses in
respect of employees

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
(excluding directors’ retirement
benefits scheme contributions)

Staff welfare expenses

4% & B B it 3 Bt 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z-NE+-A=1+—HIL5E For the year ended 31st December 2019

15. EERABX

—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FTHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
720 360
17,050 15,827
36 36
17,806 16,223
25,325 25,202
- 16,505

669 687

86 123
43,886 58,740
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15. EE?EE %l F’;ﬁ jz ( I) 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
(a) EEHS (a) Directors’ Emoluments
ARG EEGENARA=-ZR(ZE—N\F: The Company’s board of directors is currently
SHR)BIUHRTEEFR=F(ZFE—N composed of three (2018: three) independent
Fr=RB)PITEFMEK - non-executive directors and three (2018: three)
executive directors.
BHEEEXER Continuing operations
he HeRHtRE RIERIT AL 3
Salaries and Retirement benefits
Fees other allowances scheme contributions Total
-N\g -N\E —3-N\% ZE-NE
2018 2018 2018 2018
T TR T T
ESi? Name of director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HTEE Executive directors
Bl Mr. Heung - - 8,060 7,340 - - 8,060 7,340
Bat Ms. Chen - - 7,440 7,080 18 18 7,458 7,098
X3 T o Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - S1E0 1407 18 18 1568 1425
BUFymES Independent non-executive
directors
i Mr. Hung Cho Sing 20 120 - - - - 20 120
feHLE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 240 120 - - - - 240 120
¥EhEL Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert 240 120 - - - - 240 120
720 360 17,050 15,827 36 36 17,806 16,223
He_Z—-— QW Frh-ZE—N\F+=A During the year ended 31st December 2019

:+—EJJ:¢EW CAREBERNESES
NI ERMAR S BN BE R 2 ZEh
KRERM2AE - REIIMBEFEHEE

ERRXFABEREEMME -

Bire B RRITTi62 ERMEAL
A R 3 A AE ] B
> RRBRARREAMERARES
B VEBAKSEXEMEFEZRAME
BAEEAEDZZHMRS  THRAD -

R EEI

and 2018, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments in both years.

Except for those disclosed in material related
party transactions in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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15. BEERAAX (& 15.

LEREHFMAL (b)

(b)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Continued)

AEBAFEREESFTHZALTEE
ZHR(ZT-N\F WMB)EF HBeR
R £ X(a)F| /R A17,086,000/4 7T (ZF
— J\FF 114,438,000/ 7T) © &F A JE T H
BRA(ZE—N\F ZR)2ATZHE
;R

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
three (2018: two) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in (a) above and amounted to
HK$17,086,000 (2018: HK$14,438,000). The
emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2018: three) individuals during the year were as
follows:

BESEER Continuing operations
—E-NF
2018
FH&IT
HK$'000
o kHEAMER Salaries and other allowances 3,356 4,341
VARR 0 32 1+ 2 SRIB B 32 Share-based payment expenses - 5,509

RARAE R E SR Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 36 54
3,392 9,904

ZmH(CE-N\F: =ZR) ALBE %
(ZE2-NF - ME)REERERER
ANERE|-—HRELSREEAS -

BE-_Z-—NWGF+ZA=+—BLFE
N BEAEEEENERRRBEE -
BE_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BLFE
N BREERFRRFMIITHEES
EAAKERBREARAERE S
RETHERE BREASFBEEANGS
BT IRR P 7246

The two (2018: three) individuals include one
(2018: two) senior management as disclosed in
the section “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management”.

During the year ended 31st December 2019,
no share option was granted to directors and
employees of the Group. During the year ended
31st December 2018, certain share options were
granted to non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees, in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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15. {EE:&E ﬂ E.ﬁ 3'2( I) 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

(b) IHEREEFMALE) (b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
BEKEEK (E) Continuing operations (Continued)
HBMEB(ZE—)N\F:=8) 55 5 The aggregated emoluments of each of the
ATEA 2B @EEE N FUTER remaining two (2018: three) highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals

—E-N\F
2018
1,500,001/ 7t £2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 -
3,000,0017%8 7Tt £3,500,000/% 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 3
2 3

16. Lﬁ‘?ﬁﬂ*” A'-|- J 16. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

AEBRBEAFNERBE ST RGN ZRA
REPAEMBEEEEBAZBERIS
Eeitd - AEBEMAREREREHAZMN
BEERTE AEECEEREEEHRN
RE HEEREESABBKRAZS%
fﬁ%’& B8 AMA LR RIETE 230,000/

HHRNELBELZS RARME - &
aié$§‘l2é§§§@$%l2ﬁ§’ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
B UIMBUEEEERE -

(a) (a)

KEBZHBEBRARIRERMERZEER
EEREHEMTEE - FHEMATED
MBYEERARRILER ASEKE
SmZTEELSHEARR HERREL
BREGAERARATE -

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its employees in
Hong Kong. All employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme.
The Group has chosen to follow the minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ monthly relevant income but
limited to the mandatory cap of HK$30,000. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements as incurred. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrative
fund.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.
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HE—_T—NF+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

17. #@% N %%ﬁ&%ﬁ{ﬁ 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AgNE &R EER
HEL# £ HENE £ EL] k] ag
Furniture,
Leasehold Leased Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land Buildings properties improvements  equipment vehicles Total
TiEn Thn T TR ThL TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost
RZZ-\E—-R—H AttstJanuary 2018 - 12,280 - 6,473 8,854 13,065 40,672
HE Additions - - - - 429 1,920 2,349
HE Disposls - - - - (694) (1,444) (2,138)
HEMBAR (Mi41) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) - - - - - (3,123) (3,123)
EEREME (W##19)  Transfer from investment
properties (note 19) - 82,400 - - - - 82,400
RZZ-\ETZA  At31st December 2018
=f-1 - 94,680 - 6,473 8,589 10,418 120,160
EREAHKEEEE  Application of HKFRS 16
2165 (Hit2) (note 2) 53,409 - 18,717 - - - 72,126
RZZ-NE-A—3  AttstJanuary 2019 53,409 94,680 18,717 6,473 8,589 10,418 192,286
HE Additions - - - 10,038 467 752 11,257
i Written off - - - - (1,031) - (1,031)
RZE-A%FTA At 31st December 2019
=f-f 53,409 94,680 18,717 16,511 8,025 11,170 202,512
ZiHTERAESRE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss
RZE-NE-F-8 At tstJanuary 2018 - 6,838 - 5,623 7,692 8,329 28,482
ERk Charge for the year - 1526 - 252 463 2,052 4,93
ERZREEE Impairment loss recognised - 3,601 - - - - 3,601
HERGH Eliminated on disposals - - - - (692) (1,444) (2,136)
HEWHBAFBESSE  Eliminated upon disposal of
(Wi41) subsidiaries (note 41) - - - - - (2,688) (2,688)
RZE-\ETZA  At31st December 2018 and
=t-8k at 1st January 2019
RIE-NE
-A-A - 11,965 - 5875 7,463 6,249 31,682
Bl Charge for the year 1,876 2,013 6,330 1,39 446 1,959 14,019
ERZREEE Impairment loss recognised - 6,814 - - - - 6,814
kiilege Eliminated on written off - - - - (1017) - (1017)
RZE-AFTZA At 31st December 2019
=t-f 1,876 20,792 6,330 7,210 6,892 8,208 51,368
BEE Carrying amounts
RZE-A%E+=8  At31st December 2019
=t-H 51,533 73,888 12,387 9,24 1,133 2,962 151,144
RZE-\ETZA  At31st December 2018
=f-1 - 82,715 - 598 1,126 4169 88,608
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HE-_Z-NE+-A=1+—BI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2019
17. %% N %%&%ﬁﬁ (/Z/gf_ 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

R-ZT—hF+_A=+—"H8 EF2EHBY At 31st December 2019, the directors conducted
AEREELEMTEIEEBEMARARET a review of the recoverable amount of the Group’s
ZHEEHAEEEF2AINESEETEN I buildings with reference to valuation performed by JP
15 i 4 5m B B F R SRR B B 18 496,814,000/ Assets Consultancy Limited, a firm of independent
7T (ZZF — )\ 5 : 3,601,000/ 1) ° #2518 & qualified professional valuers, and concluded that
BTXEARLXBNHTLBEYWEZEE  TERE impairment loss of approximately HK$6,814,000 (2018:
RPN HK$3,601,000) has been recognised in respect of

buildings. The impairment loss recognised mainly due
to the lower of market value by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties.

EXFRTREFERERRE The carrying amounts of buildings shown above
comprise:

—B-AF —E-N\F
2019 2018
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

NRBEBZETF Buildings located in Hong Kong:
— R EFFA 49 — Medium-term lease 4,588 5,015
—REAY - Long-term lease 69,300 77,700

73,888 82,715
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17. %% N 1%%%&%&1% (IX/E_) 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
rEBEEREBEA The Group as lessee
RABEE (FTAYFE  #ERRE) Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant

and equipment)

HELH HEWE @it
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
TER TER Tl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHE Carrying amounts

RZE-NE—A—H At 1st January 2019 53,409 18,717 72,126
FENEER Depreciation charge for the year (1,876) (6,330) (8,206)

REE Carrying amounts
R-E-hE+=A=+-8 At 31st December 2019 51,533 12,387 63,920
MEZRERLAE Total cash outflow for leases - 6,357 6,357
EXFIREE LA RER - WARBHBELREE - The leasehold land shown above is located in Hong

Kong and is held under medium-term lease.
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18. *E_Ej: iﬂ’,*gé 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
—E-N\F
2018
FAT
HK$'000
B AR Cost

R—A—BE+ZA=+—H At 1st January and 31st December 69,660
REHE Accumulated amortisation

Hn—HA—H At 1st January 14,378

NEEPTEH R E I Amortisation provided for the year 1,873

R+—B=+—H At 31st December 16,251
BREE Carrying amounts

Hn+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 53,409
Y RHE I ES ERESR The carrying amounts of interests in leasehold land

shown above comprise:
—E-)N\F
2018
FAT
HK$'000
REPBHAOEEZ Leasehold land located in Hong Kong,

URBEBNEE T held on medium-term lease 53,409
AEREBV B RELEDNE165 HE LR Upon application of HKFRS 16, the interests in
53,409,000 T EF N EEFEHEEE Gt A leasehold land amounting to HK$53,409,000 were
WIE - IR RERE) o reclassified to right-of-use assets (included in property,

plant and equipment).
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HE—_T—NF+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

19. REY% 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E-N\F
2018
FET
HK$'000
®n—A—H At 1st January 81,100
AT EEEHELEZET Gain arising on change in fair value 1,300
R WRREEWE17) Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 17) (82,400)
R+=—A=+—8H At 31st December -
—E-)N\F
2018
FH&T
HK$'000

ABREBARZREMELTEE Unrealised gain on fair value change of investment

ARG (GFAEMEERT) properties included in the consolidated income

statement (included in other operating expenses) 1,300
RZE—NEWNA=1H —HEEWEDIKE On 30th April 2018, an investment property was
NF(EES2,400,0008 T EEEME - HBERK transferred to property, plant and equipment at its
B ZATFEBEINZEBIAEBREEGEMT fair value of HK$82,400,000, which was reference to
BT EEBEARATRNERBEETZMHE - valuation performed by JP Assets Consultancy Limited,

a firm of independent qualified professional valuers, as
at the date of transfer.

REBRESLHEREURDNE SR ENEE The Group’s properties interests held under operating
B 7 MERIPERBATEERKTE X H leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
R AR AIEEYE o purpose is measured using the fair value model and are

classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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HE-_ZT—hE+-A=1+—BILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

20. & 20. GOODWILL
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RS Cost

R—A—BE®R+ZA=+—H At istJanuary and at 31st December 108,703 108,703

At REESE Accumulated impairment losses
W—A—BREW+ZA=+—H At 1stJanuary and at 31st December 108,703 108,703

BRMEE Carrying amounts

R+=—A=+—H At 31st December - -

BEZBRENR Impairment testing of goodwill
RERREERN  PEERSELBEUEEZ Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
HEEmMENT : amounts of goodwill were allocated to groups of CGUs

as follows:

= —ET0F
2019 2018
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B2 E S S Film related business operations 108,703 108,703
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T—HFE+-A=1+—BIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
=] . = 4% £h

};E'ﬁ:l\:% %§$Z§TA 21. LOAN TO A DIRECTOR
—E-NF
2018
FET
HK$’000
n—A—H At 1st January 327,903 293,371
HE R B WA Imputed interest income 67,071 59,532
B0 & FE U F B Interest received and receivables (25,000) (25,000)
R+=ZHA=+—8H At 31st December 369,974 327,903
E-RNF+—HAZ+hB KXRARIZE2EMW On 29th November 2016, Best Combo Limited (“Best

Best Combo Limited ([Best Combo]  {E
7%9; AN) B Z+ (ERERAN) ST LER B
(TExH#]) - ¥t - Best ComboEﬂuﬁW
Z+E i — % AR &% A500,000,000% 7T (8 TE
ﬁ@%ﬁ{’ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ)ZEHﬂ%%&(f%ﬁD BERiz
FHESEFE - ARERZIREA B 51601E
AERzZBEE RURZT2EHREG2ZREEB
RS FMALZ A FReform BaseZHE 2
TRARKROFCIERER -

Rt RNERARRBEERCEEAMNE) M
® 5K - MR MBest Combo® i 4+ & &
EHMELREEBA

BIEERWZE ML+ B R ERBest Combo
57 B HA (Hb BEHIME]) » 2 FFBest Combof
EFREARCEAERZITERRNERKML
=+ £A500,000,000/% 7T (1R F & H & 5 1E L &)
i & Reform BaseZ S5 B B /TR AN o

RZZE—+FMNANH " BEFIERRA ZME%
ﬁj §1%§¥1ETEEWHT§ TEBEERA
zwarrﬁ HEOQFEE i%ﬁ?@w@%?ﬁa
1 REHELSD 22D R4 5271,908,000
i’émzzzzs,ogz,ooo,%m o

HE-_Z-NEFR-_ZE—NF+-R=+—
BEFER WAEETALEBEZEaEEA
500,000,000/ 7T ©

Combo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as a lender, and Ms. Chen, as a borrower, entered into
a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) pursuant
to which Best Combo has agreed to grant a fixed
term loan (the “Loan”) to Ms. Chen in the principal
amount of HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment). The Loan is interest bearing at 5% per
annum, repayable on the date falling 60 months from
the drawdown date of the Loan and secured by way
of a share charge over the entire issued share capital
of Reform Base, a company incorporated in BVI and
wholly owned by Ms. Chen.

Ms. Chen can repay the Loan (together with accrued
interest) in full after the date of drawdown without
penalty provided not less than ten business days’ prior
written notice has been given to Best Combo.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Ms. Chen has
agreed to grant the call option (the “Call Option”) to
Best Combo which allows Best Combo to require Ms.
Chen to sell the entire issued share capital of Reform
Base at HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment) during the exercise period falling on the
expiry of 60 months from the drawdown date of the
Loan.

On 6th April 2017, the drawdown date of the Loan, the
directors has recognised the amounts of approximately
HK$271,908,000 and HK$228,092,000 for the loan
portion and the call option portion respectively by
reference to the fair value arrived on the basis of
valuation performed by Graval Consulting Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers.

During the year ended 31st December 2019 and 2018,
the maximum amount outstanding to the Group is
HK$500,000,000.
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HE-ZT-NE+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

22. N—REABLE RS 22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
= —T0F
2019 2018
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—HEEEREZRENN Cost of investment in a joint venture,
REE - FEL™ unlisted in Hong Kong - -
JE—HABELEWEREF K Share of post-acquisition profit and
HE2mEEA - NBREREE other comprehensive income in a joint
venture, net of dividend received - 270
- 270
REB ZABLEAELITOOEMEE  WEEE The Group’s joint venture is a unlisted corporate entity
BEMERE - which quoted market prices are not available.
REBABLENREHRZFEHYMOT - Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the
reporting period are set out below:
rEEAREREER
RELEER EERERS SMAYRE  HAEROER REEZLH TEER
Form of Proportion of ownership
Business Place of Class of interest and voting power
Name of joint venture structure incorporation  shares held held by the Group Principal activities
“E-hE  Z2-)\#
2019 2018
% %
KE B3z Av 3 LaER 50 50 REEAEERBR
Sparkle Star Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary HEEREER
Provision of artist
management
services and
production of
television drama
series
ZABNENRBESINLSHHHREANALR - The joint venture is accounted for using the equity

method in these financial statements.
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23.

= 22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

22, A—EEEL¥ R (&

—BFENEAZEELRXZAEEN

(Continued)

individually material

AEBERIEFEBER
E2HEEERE

AEER-—HAEELRERZ
fREfE

AEREE-—BHBENEAZEELEZER

The Group’s share of loss and total
comprehensive loss for the year (270)

Aggregate information of a joint venture that is not

Carrying amount of the Group’s

—B-AF —E-N\EF
2019 2018
FTER TAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(114)

270

interest in a joint venture -

not individually material

FEAREREBE-—HEELEZ
&8

REARHERARE-—HABELEZ
518

FE

Unrecognised share of loss
of a joint venture for the year (2)

Unrecognised share of loss of a joint venture that is

Cumulative unrecognised share of
loss of a joint venture 2)

23. INVENTORIES

—z- 5 JEEEE RS
2019 2018
FHRT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
—2- 5 JEEEECS
2019 2018
FHRT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000

ERGEEBZRMERM
AR A 4815 B

Food and beverage, and other operating
item for restaurant operations 101
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24. Ykt 24. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

—E-NF
2018
FET
HK$'000

BEHEZRRTYE Properties under development

held for sales

mn—HA—H At 1st January 2,508,568 2,107,376
NE Additions 501,832 401,192
&AM B Interest capitalised 36,723 -
R+=—A=+—H At 31st December 3,047,123 2,508,568

MEFEMRNRFILREPBEORKE -

The stock of properties is located in Macau and held
under medium-term leases.

RELEZERTOERPNBEBR —FRED -

RZTE-NF+-_A=+—H AEEZDE
7 &5 BR E (B 491,651,619,000/ 7T (ZF — )\ 4F :
1,113,595,000/% 7t) B B H{E R AN & B FrE R IR
TiEEE B -

RZZB—=FA BRFIEHTHRERBA (DR
B B LR (T Lx]) YR -F
—ME=ZHER - THERT O RPIBUR SR
REERREINSREMEMNRTERZDEER R
/AR B B N R AR P I 6 8 L 3 T R R
AP EEE AEEMEE -

Properties under development held for sales are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

At 31st December 2019, the Group’s stock of
properties with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,651,619,000 (2018: HK$1,113,595,000) have
been pledged to secure bank facilities granted to the
Group.

In September 2013, the government of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau Government”)
promulgated the Macau New Land Law (the “MNLL")
which came into effect in March 2014. The MNLL
provides that the Macau Government will have the right
to resume the land of any property development that is
not completed and/or where the conditions as stated in
the land concession for which have not been fulfilled by
the stipulated expiry date without any compensation to
the property owner.
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HE—
24.

MEFE (&)

H 7R P R RE AR AL 2 R SN B BB B 6Bt
B ([E6BHER ) 2 MEMBERAFBH XRFFA
BB F 6B BT B R 4A 3 R TR PIBUR B R fa
WEl 32 TR T - 6B A —EEEDIA
B e mEng s —  MEBHERMRERR—E
KR - REBEER -Z—XRFT-_HA=1+HMA
BRAPRERRERELE EF -R-F-N\F XA
T—HB ARBERIRFBARBERASR A
F-A\ERNANBNRME - BERRBELARKE K
BRI R o Bk - F6Bi R BRI BT IR
B REARBDBMENERER  ARBEEZER
BERAESERGRIZBESREE Ak
#E R MAA R BERFIBMER L
Re B AEBESHKERFPVERRR AR
BERCUEBNEBERERUIRL RS -

ES2ERUAAREXRGEMTS K FEL
HORF) ERARMEFEEERERAFME
THEMFEERTYELAZERFE  LRE
HAZRFESNEREAE SRR ERE
& o ) 5 2 R T B4 L ORL

24.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES (Continued)

Owing to the delays caused by the Macau Government
in granting the requisite approvals and permits for
the development of the property located in Lot 6B at
Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (“Lot 6B”),
Lot 6B could not commence development and the
Macau Government has started the administrative work
to reclaim it. Lot 6B is one of the four lots of land in a
project held under development and Lot 6B is intended
to be developed as recreational area. The Group
has filed an appeal to the president of the Macau
Second Instance Court on 30th December 2016. On
11th June 2018, the Group received a letter dated 8th
June 2018 from the Tribunal de Ultima Instancia of the
Macau Government, in which the Tribunal de Ultima
Instancia rejected the application of the final appeal.
Accordingly, Lot 6B will be reclaimed by the Macau
Government. According to the legal opinion obtained
by the Company, the Group has legal ground to seek
compensation for damages sustained by the Group as
a result and the Court will consider and rule taking into
account all the essential points including delays caused
by the Macau Government. As such, the Group has
sought legal advice from its Macau legal representative
and consider to make an application in this regard if
necessary.

The directors had assessed the net realisable value
of the properties under development with reference to
valuations performed by Savills (Macau) Limited and
JP Assets Consultancy Limited, firms of independent
qualified professional valuers, and concluded that no
write-down of carrying amounts of the properties under
development are considered necessary as the net
realisable value are greater than the carrying amounts.
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—NFE+ZA=1t—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
== /
ﬁ%hﬂﬂé FILM RIGHTS
—)\F
2018
FET
HK$'000
2% Cost
R—A—BER+=-A=+—8 At st January and at 31st December 758,178 758,178
EERERER (Hit26) Transfer from films in progress (note 26) 128,307 -
886,485 758,178
ZitBHRERERSE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
Hn—A—H At 1st January 746,700 746,129
NI 3 Amortisation provided for the year 1,747 -
EERIBEEE Impairment loss recognised 125,246 571
R+-—A=+—8 At 31st December 873,693 746,700
BRE B Carrying amount
W+=ZA=+—8 At 31st December 12,792 11,478
EXREZRENR Impairment testing of film rights

BRENANS  EXRECOEEEX A
BEBZREELEN -

Fal

Io

RZZB—NEF+=ZA=+—8 EFLEZERE
RECERTBEMEMIGRESREZESEL
BzAKEEE At BEZT—NF+=
A=+ —HIEFE R ERMMEEIE125,246,000
B (ZF—/\F : 571,000 L) °

BYMEZRSELBELZATRESBEDENS
HEZEZMEATERFELAGAARERER
Zﬁ%m%&ﬁi%ﬁW%%W%ZF%WAﬁ
BEE -R_F— h¢+ R=+—8 " &M
*Xiﬁéulbi( H)RH2ERTEERERE

UNCIEiF:S ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂ%Lq
ﬂ\% F17%) o

For the purpose of impairment testing, film rights have
been allocated to the CGU of film related business
operations.

At 31st December 2019, the directors assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights with
reference to the film budget summary prepared by
the management. Accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$125,246,000 was recognised during the year ended
31st December 2019 (2018: HK$571,000).

The recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights was
determined based on either net realisable values of film
rights to be disposed of or estimated future cashflows
from box office receipts and licensing income of
film rights over a five-year period. At 31st December
2019, discount rate of 17% (2018: 17%), which was
referenced to valuation performed by JP Assets
Consultancy Limited, was considered in the calculation
of estimated future cashflows as appropriate.
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T—NF+_A=1+—HBILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019
= B '
= RRE (& 25. FILM RIGHTS (Continued)
SEYMEZRENR(E) Impairment testing of film rights (Continued)
T BEBEESRA/ TEEANHEZI T EBR Key assumptions for the above calculations in relation
BIEEEHEEARENEX EBRERXGITREK % to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
B AREBRACRREEBRMBREZTES - include budgeted sales and gross margin, growth rate
and discount rate, such estimation is based on past
experience and management’s expectations of the
market development.
FRNERZBREEEELAAEB  EFZHBEE The impairment loss recognised during the year
BREXBHH BRZREEEEVLEH RS solely relates to the Group’s film related business
Hu o4 54912,792,0008 7c (Z T — \F - operations. As the CGU has been reduced to its
11,478,000 7T) - T E A B £ EAEKA 2 recoverable amount of approximately HK$12,792,000
BREZTRTMEB S| BE— S RERIE - (2018: HK$11,478,000), any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of the recoverable
amount would result in further impairment losses.
;@EﬂE I:FI £5 ?j 26. FILMS IN PROGRESS
—E-N\F
2018
FET
HK$'000
Rn—H—H At 1st January 201,005 168,992
NE Additions 52,733 32,013
B E BN 125) Transfer to film rights (note 25) (128,307) -
BEERREEE Impairment loss recognised (10,275) -
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December 115,156 201,005

SUERBERARAR R HERBE(WA)FE -

HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—RHILEEXN B3
BIER B & 2 BUEAK AR R B B 810,275,000

BLT(CZE-NF B DREREER/RED
EYCHFAIEREL  YR/BEBFEAKT
A4

The films in progress were measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

During the year ended 31st December 2019, an
impairment loss of HK$10,275,000 (2018: nil) was
recognised on the production costs for films in
progress as the management was in a view that the
production plan for the films in progress was halted and
considered that the amount will not be recovered.
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= /, >
27 BEERE 27. INVESTMENT IN FILM
—E-hF —E-)N\FE
2019 2018
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B EIERE Investment in film production 29,939 29,939
REZEEZIRE RN FEHEHEERTZR Investment in film production represents fund advanced
B UEBEFREEEY  BVEFBREELT R to licensed production house for co-financing the
BT AREFBBEARG YNBETHZER production of film, which is freely exploited by the
EOBHEAEESEZRBEESRTHAENER -8 production house. The investment is governed by the
feBEhREERSEHAEEETYNET relevant investment agreement entered into between the
W BENETMEWRE - Z2BEEhEERIE Group and the production house whereby the Group
NaIRE R IER o is entitled to benefits generated from the distribution
of the related film. The amount will be recoverable
by the Group from a pre-determined share of the net
distribution revenue of the respective co-financed
film to be provided and confirmed by the relevant
production house.
REFE7BEZIRETAARKTIE - The Group’s investment in film is denominated in RMB.
28. 2 2 EIRES: 28. TRADE RECEIVABLES

—E-NEF —E-N\F

2019 2018

FTHERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

BERRERER Credit card receivables 16 -
HAnE 5 B ER Other trade receivables 2,324 1,201
B EEEEREE Less: allowance for credit losses (963) (1,201)

1,377 —
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28. g 2 JE LBI,E‘E%k (/%55 28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
NWTAREEEZAM (B FBUREERBEES) The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
2Nz ESRURFREEBEBEBE ZRIEDT presented based on the invoice dates, which

approximates the respective revenue recognition dates
and net of allowance for credit losses:

—E-NEF —E-N\F

2019 2018

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

0&30H 0 to 30 days 1,097 -
31E60H 31 to 60 days - -
61£290H 61 to 90 days - -
@90 H Over 90 days 280 -
1,377 -

REB7EEREEBERTP X SEREEL The Group’s trading terms with its customers from
BeLERAFREE EHRRATZEZEYEE A restaurant operations are mainly by cash and credit
Rt B Eif&7H - card settlement. The settlement terms of credit card

companies are usually 7 days after the service
rendered date.

BTEMCERR 2 FHRIEEN F30H £90H The average credit period granted to other corporate

T o customers ranges from 30 to 90 days.
FREMEZREETNEEBBREZSHNT The movement in the allowance for credit losses in
respect of trade receivables during the year is as

follows:

—E-h#EF —ZT-N\F
2019 2018
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—HA—H At 1st January 1,201 1,336
BERE Reversal of impairment (230) (120)
HNEETE 5 A Foreign exchange translation gain (8) (15)

R+—_A=+—H At 31st December 963 1,201
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20. B4  FANZEREMEYS 29 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER

I8 RECEIVABLES
—E-hE —T—)\F
2019 2018
FTExT FH&IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
[EENEFER Deposits paid 392,015 181,072
TEfT KIE Prepayment 24,612 6,039
H AU GRIE - MR R(EBE Other receivables, net of impairment loss 243,542 264,715
660,169 451,826

BREMABIEIN Analysed for reporting purposes only:

B HA Current 644,169 451,826
JEBNER Non-current 16,000 -
660,169 451,826

LREHTIBERMEFRECNRE  BNE
=]

ANBE RS -

receivable.

The above balances mainly consist of deposits paid
for film production, prepaid artiste fee and interest

BE_Z-NFT-A=+—-HILFEAR B
Hfth 8 Y 5K OB e SRR 1B S 1B 49822,000/8 T (= F
—N\EFE) o

RZZE—NF+-_A=+—8 EtERKRZEY
12,880,000 T RNFETEEEEAS ©

During the year ended 31st December 2019,
impairment loss of approximately HK$822,000 (2018:
nil) was recognised in respect of other receivables.

At 31st December 2018, other receivables with amounts
of approximately HK$12,880,000 was advanced to
certain key management personnel.
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L2 FEE S IR

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AN
2018
FAT
HK$'000
DERFIEEEREZ Listed securities classified as held for
LEWES trading investments:
—REB LT 2 BRAFE - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 225,491 234,029
FELETHE - Unlisted investment:
~REBEZIFLEMEFES - Unlisted club debenture in Hong Kong - 80
TESMT A : Derivative financial instruments:
— BT —REEZEKA - Call option embedded in loan to a director
Fre 2 R s B 87,793 219,372
313,284 453,481

RBEMKR - MEBEBBEEZAR
FEEIEK-
ZETEHF(EFEEETELTES

MEEHAR

FEEN RS
NEAFIFERERE
*BRON) 2 D

BEDZERBzTHSRMEMEE -

RZTE-NF+=ZA=
MEH 2R

3,549,000/ 7T) Ty 48 &

TEECEBERARAD

EZ-AFE+-HA=+—8"

MREHFZRA

(==

—\F :78.01%) #E1THE -
EERMBEREFEEMERES
ZME2HEEMRERRTEER
M K B R 0 5 R B A R

T—H EEEEEREL

F(B{EZ14,059,0008 7T (T — N\F:
EBIA

BRI EMER
AT REMSH - ®
D/(El{ /\E\E/%J:

FEENRBTSERITRE74.29%

IR
W E ) B £
* Bt R B

o

At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair value. Fair values of listed
securities classified as held for trading investments
(other than suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong) are determined with reference to quoted market
closing price.

At 31st December 2019, the fair value of suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong with the amount
of approximately HK$4,059,000 (2018: HK$3,549,000)
was reference to valuation performed by Graval
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers. At 31st December 2019, the fair
value of suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong was valued by using the market approach
with a discount rate of 74.29% (2018: 78.01%). The
discount rate is used to reflect the risk of exposure to
corporate governance, illiquidity and financial distress,
etc perceived by market participants who hold the
suspended shares with remote likelihood of trade
resumption.
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30. ZBIEHUATEEEGIE 30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

RZEB-N\F+-A=+—-R FLTEHRES
Z RV EEH80,0008 LTI 2 ZE BN ALK
BREMTHHEEXHBAIRRBERE  UWE
EREEE -

HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—BLLEERN " kL
MEMESRE THEILHER LS EIEL15,000%8

o

=l

RZE—NAFE+_A=+—8 REBEHEZ
ANF(EEH87,793,0008 L (=T — /\&F ¢
219,372,000 T) &L E WL A BREEEE
TS EBRER ARSI ZEEMSH o
REREZAFEENRA-_EABREEEER
AHTER 15.38% (ZF — )\F : 21.12% ) E 1T/
BE-MBEERREERENBIERE MARE
RERREMEEFEEE 2 SHEIREMARE
ZTEHE R (Sks) = o

REENSEGAMBREBE AEBZFB L
TRAZS (TEER-_E—NE+_A=1+—
AZEEFEEEES) 2AFEEY A152,368,000
BT

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
At 31st December 2018, the fair value of the unlisted
club debenture with the amount of approximately
HK$80,000 was arrived on the basis of market approach
by reference to value of asset through an analysis of
recent sales or offerings of comparable assets.

During the year ended 31st December 2019, the
unlisted club debenture was disposed and a loss on
disposal of approximately HK$15,000 was recognised.

At 31st December 2019, the fair value of the Call Option
with the amount of approximately HK$87,793,000
(2018: HK$219,372,000) was arrived by reference to
valuation performed by Graval Consulting Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers. The
fair value of the Call Option was valued by using the
binomial option pricing model with discount rate of
15.38% (2018: 21.12%). Discount rate is the expected
rate of return (or yield) that an investor would have
to give up by investing in the subject investment
instead of other available alternative investments that
are comparable in terms of risk and other investment

characteristics.

The fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed in
Hong Kong (excluding suspended trading security at
31st December 2019) at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements were approximately
HK$152,368,000.
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31, EWREH 31. LOAN RECEIVABLES

= —T0F
2019 2018
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEUGE B E K - MIBREEE Fixed-rate loan receivables, net of
impairment loss 199,127 200,000
FEWE R IR ENEKIEEZE(—ZFE—)\F : 3E) Loan receivables are interest bearing of 3% to 8%
R CERART-_EARNEE UESAEER (2018: 3%) per annum, repayable within the next twelve
ERBEEZIET  MEIBEARBEE - months and contain a clause of repayable on demand

and thus classified as current assets.

HE-_Z-NAF+-A=+—BLLtEER O During the year ended 31st December 2019,
223601 6538 49873,00055 7T, impairment loss of approximately HK$873,000 was
recognised.
32. EHIEX 32. TIME DEPOSITS
—EB-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIBITHR A 2 E#ER Time deposits held at bank 272 269
R-B-—AE+-A=+—8 THEZXAEF At 31st December 2019, the time deposits are interest
BNTO7EFE165E(ZE—\F:0.7EZ09E) bearing ranging from 0.7% to 1.55% (2018: 0.7% to
A WA EMB #3658 (=2 —)\F : 365H) 0.9%) per annum and mature within 365 days (2018:
A E|HEE o 365 days) from the placements date.

RZE-—AF+_A=+—"HB THEIZY At 31st December 2019, time deposits with amounts
249,000/ 7T (== — )\ 4F : 249,000/8 70) hE&E of approximately HK$249,000 (2018: HK$249,000)
WIEAREREMANBANMETESL T EPBT are pledged for guaranteed to Macau Government for

TR development of stock of properties located in Macau.

REBTHEZERFERIDVRPESE - Time deposits held at bank is denominated in MOP.
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HEZ
33.

ReRBITER
RITEBRIZFRF RS  UERRTHETR
R BEREERT RETHERZFHE—A
EZEANE BFAEENSRESFTEZME -
TEkEsE2HBTERFRFENEN T0.125E
Z29E (ZZT—\% : 0.125B £2.952) B ELF
B8 o

o

REERERERME BERBTEHE
ERe ROTRELEPTHER- R -F
FR-E-NF+_A=t—HEF/RE
REFR 2B & RIRITHRS T EERIEB WKW
T

mF
—h

=
VIlE==8

33.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and
placed with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day to three months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates ranging from 0.125% to 2.9% (2018: 0.125% to
2.95%) per annum.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances include cash on hand
and cash at banks and short-term time deposits. Cash
and bank balances at 31st December 2019 and 2018
as shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows
can be reconciled to the related items as follows:

—E-)N\F
2018
FiBT
HK$'000

FHREE MRITHER
1 HIE B R

R-Z-NAF+-_A=+—0B AEHzBE
RiETHGBR  UET BB BITRAR
BOIMEE D R4 56760008 T (ZT— )\ F:
4,264,000/ 7t) + 2,179,000 7L (=& — )\ :
1,140,000/ L) » 71,0008 L (=T — )\ F :
81,0007 JT) 125,586,000/ 7t (=T — )\ F :
32,459,000/ 7T) °

ARBETBEYFTARLR TR BEHT
BZEeXPEBNETHOIMNEE HIRE - A&
BURNBEERRFANARKIIEZ RS RRITH
B HAZINEE S o

Cash on hand and cash at banks
Short-term time deposits

99,815
397,933

86,597
1,069,869

497,748 1,156,466

At 31st December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank
balances denominated in US$, MOP, EUR and RMB
are approximately HK$676,000 (2018: HK$4,264,000),
HK$2,179,000 (2018: HK$1,140,000), HK$71,000 (2018:
HK$81,000) and HK$25,586,000 (2018: HK$32,459,000)
respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the foreign exchange control promulgated imposed
by the government of the PRC. The Group’s cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB which located in
Hong Kong and Macau are not subject to the foreign
exchange control.
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33. HRERBITHER(E

HE-2-NFR-F-\FT-A=+-RAL
R ARBRBITEBETHETE D
HEFRITHEOTEMEE - AR REEE

34.

33. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(Continued)

S BB 20 CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

For the year ended 31st December 2019 and 2018,
the Group performed impairment assessment on

bank balances and concluded that the probability of

defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and

accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

34. SHARE CAPITAL
R4 E

Number of shares

BRE -

N

SREE0.01B T2 Ordinary shares of
ZER HK$0.01 each

EERAE Authorised:

R—A—BE+=A
=+—A

ERTRBRRA:

n—A—H

fB R H 2 B fn
(Htita)

BABR T3 B 1T R AR
(Ktitb)

1T RB A (A itc)

R+=—A=+—8

At 1st January and
31st December

Issued and fully paid:

At 1st January
Shares repurchased

and cancelled (Note a)

Issue of new shares

by way of rights issue

(Note b)

o]

Amount
—E-AF

2019
TERT

HK$’000

HK$'000

—2-NF

2018
THET

Exercise of share options

(Note c)

At 31st December

50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
2,801,111 903,704 28,011 9,037
(90,110) - (901) -

- 1,807,407 - 18,074

- 90,000 - 900
2,711,001 2,801,111 27,110 28,011
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34. R (& 34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Biat - Notes:

(a) REEZZ-NWF+-A=+—HLFER" (a) During the year ended 31st December 2019, the
AAREEWHHEERFROHMOT Company repurchased and cancelled its own shares

as follows:
ZERYE SRE®K ERHERE
Number of Price per share Aggregate
ordinary 55 H{K consideration
[=AEIDZE Month of repurchase shares Highest Lowest paid
F] BT BT FHET
’000 HK$ HK$ HK$’000
—ZT-NFHA May 2019 74,280 0.80 0.74 57,796
A June 2019 15,830 0.76 0.75 11,892
90,110 69,688
(b) RZZTE—NFNAKRB ARRNUAEBRFXR (b) On 6th August 2018, the Company allotted and issued
AQEE BRI K 3171,807,406,986 1,807,406,986 new ordinary shares at a subscription
BEFLaRk REEATRO2E T EER price of HK$0.25 per share by way of rights issue to
RZE-NFtA+-—HBHEHEE - RAFL the qualifying shareholders of the Company on the
BRI MRRG - HRAERIEFED basis of two right shares for every one existing ordinary
448,350,000 T AR MELRREREE 2 ¥ share held on 11th July 2018. The net proceeds from
HEBRME  ARBREFREREES 2 the rights issue of approximately HK$448,350,000
X EE - will be used to finance the business operation of the
property development and investment and fund the
film and television drama series related business

operations.
(c) REZ-_ZE2—)\F+_A=1t—"HIFERN - (c) During the year ended 31st December 2018, certain

ETHEBRESEATELBRERR  Z1TE
{E & M%0.567% 7T 72 8 90,000,000% & AL

shares option holders exercised their option right to
subscribe for 90,000,000 ordinary shares at exercise

price of HK$0.56 per share.
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35. AN E 35. PROMISSORY NOTE

—E-N\F
2018
TAET
HK$'000
R—A—H At 1st January 173,817
AMEHEEF B Imputed interest on promissory note 1,871
B R ESF A Interest paid and payable (466)
EE N ) Repayment of promissory note (Note) (200,000)

IBREEEANE Y EE (7) Loss on early redemption on promissory note
(Note) 24,778
R+—-—A=+—H At 31st December _

Bt Note:

RZBE—NF—A+N\HBH ARARCABELTELOKRE On 18th January 2018, the Company has redeemed the
#6200,000,0008 T2 8 N R BEANE - 123 8E @& remaining outstanding promissory note with principal amount
NEZ7EB4%5E24,778,0008 T2 RGE WA RIER ° of HK$200,000,000 to Ms. Chen. Loss on early redemption

on promissory note with the amount of HK$24,778,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.



36.

LEASE LIABILITIES

BRERENH

Minimum lease payments

Reg-ng =
-A-0 [EEEREE
At At

31st December
2019

TR
HK’000

1st January
2019

TERT
HK’ 000

ENHEEAE
—FR
F_EERF
(REEEME)
W RRBE KA
HEAGEHE

B —FRINEESR

—FRIPEESH

HEBETABTIIE -

Lease liabilities payable

Within one year

In the second to fifth year,
inclusive

Less: future finance costs

Present value of lease liabilities

Less: amount due for settlement
within one year

Amount due for settlement after
one year

%% & B ¥ it 3 B} 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z-NE+-A=1+—HIL¥E For the year ended 31st December 2019

36. HESE

BEHENNRZRE
Present value of

minimum lease payments
RZB-RE | -
—A—0 ks
At At
1st January il
2019 2019
THERT THET
HK’ 000 HK’ 000

6,255 5,651 5,847 5,394
12,871 7,220 12,494 7,100
19,126 12,871 18,341 12,494
(785) (377) - -
18,341 12,494 18,341 12,494

(5,847) (5,394)

12,494 7,100

The lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.
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37. EFEMNERM 37.

UNTREZERNERFIREZ A ZREDIT

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,
based on the invoice dates:

0&30H 0 to 30 days

31£60H 31 to 60 days
61290H 61 to 90 days
BiE90R Over 90 days

HEEGE T2 FHRKRHMAI0ENRTE -

WEES  EHEEREM %8

38. B
AN E/S]

—E-AF —E-N\E
2019 2018
TR FHBIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
45170 34,932
25,012 225
2,431 -
5,638 3,264
78,251 38,421

The average credit period granted by suppliers ranges
from 30 to 90 days.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES

SN —T0fF
2019 2018
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BUEE € (Kfita) Deposits received (Note a) 79,360 81,301
JEFTIEE Accruals 7,381 7,092
H fth J& 1T 5RIB (B iEb) Other payables (Note b) 513 421,455
87,254 509,848

Biat - Notes:
(a) BUWRESTEREY FE RN ERKE (a) Deposits received mainly represented deposits

BROBCRE -

RZZE-NF+-_A=+—8 HibENFHE
BER-Z-NF+_A+ N \BRERERIRK
B 2 F B 49420,326,0007 7T °

received from distributors prior to the theatrical release

and delivery of master materials of film.

(b) At 31st December 2018, included in other payables
with the amounts of approximately HK$420,326,000
was payable of special dividend declared on 18th
December 2018.
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39. BITLEE 39. BANK BORROWINGS
—E-hF —E-)N\FE
2019 2018
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEMBITEE Secured bank borrowings 1,030,150 -
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
2019 2018
FTHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEEER ZREME Carrying amounts repayable:
—F R Within one year 1,030,150 -
RZE—NF+_A=+—"H xEEZRTE At 31st December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings
EUAAREBERMEL1,651,619,0008 T2 MERF are secured by the Group’s stock of properties with
E FHEEFERERARIZEEELAAKN ML carrying amounts of approximately HK$1,651,619,000,
A RBTTRHZEAAERUARBAQRREEZ quota capital of China Star Creative Development
PEER-—HEREARTSR HAEEMRMEE Limited, personal guarantee provided by Mr. Heung
7 =& A =% /<18 A B IAHIBORMN3.35E B = 2 and Ms. Chen and corporate guarantee provided by
FERRAB - WAEARE E XA BiR:36(E the Company together as securities, interest bearing
BS(NEEAEECERYEZEAFIZEH at HIBOR for three or six month period selected by
BIER (UNBREEAE)EE - the Group plus margin of 3.35% per annum and
repayable by the earlier of (i) 36 months from date of
the agreement of the loan or (ii) 9 months after date of
issuing of the occupation permit of the Group’s pledged
properties.
40. PEATIEIR R RES ST 40. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

N EEREE CRAREER 2RREARE

KEFEE -

INTERESTS

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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41.

Z-NE+=-A=1+—BILEE For the year ended 31st December 2019

(a)

Hj%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁj 41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
HE_ZT—\GF+-_A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
HEHEER (a) Disposal of the Disposal Group
R-ZEBE—+F+A+H AEEVAEK On 10th October 2017, the Group entered into
HEEHR AHEFEERPIEEEE a conditional sale and purchase agreement to
MEBYREELER2HEEB 2 2% dispose the entire equity interest in the Disposal
AEERHEEBMEREEER AR Group, which principally engaged in the hotel
{& %2,000,000,0007% 7 (°] T # %) & and gaming service operations in Macau, and
EFECORZE—\F—A=HEK - & a sale loan due by the Disposal Group at total
EEERHERBRzaEFREOT consideration of HK$2,000,000,000 (subject
to adjustments). The disposal was completed
on 3rd January 2018. The net liabilities of the
Disposal Group, at the date of disposal were as
follow:
PrdzgE s (C1E - Consideration transferred:
FHET
HK$'000
M ReRE Initial cash consideration 2,000,000
FRAECEESFR2EWNRE Consideration received related to
adjustment for net working capital 34,417
wRE Total consideration 2,034,417
kEprEET EEME ES Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
FHET
HK$'000
LE TN Property, plant and equipment 299,126
HE iR Interests in leasehold land 318,366
FE Inventories 3,189
Z 5 IR Trade receivables 16,912
R® - B FIE At B YRIE Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 7,544
RehkBHeEEER Cash and cash equivalents 75,103
g 5 EMNRR Trade payables (33,729)
BUIEE - ERTIEEB R E M ER A Deposits received, accruals and other
payables (36,086)
BEREES Obligation under finance leases (351)
ERNEEZERARIRIEA Amount due to immediate holding company (779,958)
REMRIEE G Deferred tax liabilities (80,888)
B BEFE Net liabilities disposed of (210,772)
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2018 (Continued)

TEHEEE (&) (a)  Disposal of the Disposal Group (Continued)
HELEEEZ 5T Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group:
FHET
HK$'000
BRE Total consideration 2,034,417
& aEF 5 Net liabilities disposed of 210,772
HETE S 2ENEZERARKIE Amount due to immediate holding company
assigned to the purchaser (779,958)
HEHERE 2% Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group 1,465,231

HEHELBRELZHL TRAFE

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of the
Disposal Group:

FET

HK$'000

2R (E Consideration received 2,034,417
B BE_E—+F+_A=+—8H Less: deposit received during the year

FEERE WIRS ended 31st December 2017 (200,000)

FFHEvReRRSEHEEAE cash and cash equivalents disposed of (75,103)

BE&RAFEE Net cash inflow 1,759,314
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HEKNB 2 (&)

HE—

(b)

E-N\FF+ZA=+—HIFE#E)

HEBZRAERQR ([BE])

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2018 (Continued)
(b) Disposal of Ever Journey Limited (“Ever

Journey”)
RZZE-—NFE+A+A AEETKLE On 10th October 2018, the Group completed
Egze2dBRAEZRERERHEHEE the disposal of the entire equity interest of
X #7990,0007% 7T - 42X B 1,280,000/ Ever Journey and a sale loan of approximately
Lo ERRHERBzBEFENT HK$990,000 at a total consideration of
HK$1,280,000. The net liabilities of Ever Journey,
at the date of disposal were as follow:
HregEZ 1B - Consideration transferred:
FH&T
HK$'000
RBeRE Cash consideration 1,280

KERHREZEELRESI -

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

FAET

HK$'000

ME - B RRE Property, plant and equipment 435
e kBN FIE Deposit and prepayment 224
FERHIE B K H fth J& 5108 Accruals and others payables (18)
FERT B IR A B FRIA Amount due to immediate holding company (990)

Prh & 2 BIEFHE

Net liabilities disposed of (349)
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2018 (Continued)
(b) Disposal of Ever Journey Limited (“Ever
Journey”) (Continued)

HEERZHZF - Gain on disposal of Ever Journey:
FHET
HK$'000
BYERSRE Cash consideration received 1,280
FEEzBEFE Net liabilities disposed of 349

HETER 2 ENEZEERATFHIE Amount due to immediate holding

company assigned to the purchaser (990)
hEERZ & Gain on disposal of Ever Journey 639

HEBRMELEZRERAFR

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Ever

Journey:
F#&IT
HK$’000
BEWRENRE Cash consideration received 1,280
W EZRE RIS EEER Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of -
ReRAFHE Net cash inflow 1,280
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42.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At 31st December 2018, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

premises which fall due as follows:

— N\
2018
TAET
HK$'000

—FR

F_EERF (B

KEMENT

Within one year

EERMF)

RIEAKERENEENZES -

NEIBER AMFORAF AEBLERHE
HERsBEREME ZERE -

EEHRR

(a)

RZZE-NAF+ZA=+—H K&

& #91,651,619,000%8 7L (ZZF — )\ F -
1,113,595,00087T) 2 MEHFE - FEHE
BIERBRARZERER  MkEH
PR TRt 2 AABRURAREREZ
REER B —HERIEAREEMER
RITEEB2ER -

- NF+ZA=1+—8 ' £5EH
zmom%nh_j — J\5F : 249,000 7T)
ZEBEFERDBEERERRERANRP
MMEFEL TRMBTZER -

43.

In the second to fifth year inclusive

5,790
12,799

18,589

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable

by the Group for its premises. Leases are mainly

negotiated for an average term of 5 years. The Group

does not have an option to purchase the leased

premises at the expiry of the lease period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(a)

At 31st December 2019, the Group’s stock of
properties with the amounts of approximately
HK$1,651,619,000 (2018: HK$1,113,595,000),
of China Star
Development Limited, personal guarantee

quota capital Creative

provided by Mr. Heung and Ms. Chen and
corporate guarantee provided by the Company
together as securities, have been pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the
Group.

At 31st December 2019,
deposits with the amount of approximately
HK$249,000 (2018: HK$249,000) are pledged
for guaranteed to Macau Government for

the Group’s time

development of stock of properties located in
Macau.
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44,

45.

Eﬂ(}% 44. COMMITMENTS
—E-hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
FExT FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
CEERCITA B REE: Authorised and contracted,
but not provided for:
—URRFZYEFEZ - Development expenditure for
FREKE stock of properties in Macau 373,110 901,776
—THEMERELE - Expenditure for leasehold improvement 3,918 -
—EBRRE  REREY — Film rights, films in progress and
BXED film deposits 263,452 116,597
640,480 1,018,373

IR < zRERXS

BRER-_T-——FAZTN\BEITZAAAR
REAE BBz —HARR ARARAT
— B & ([t &) -

HARARABSA 2 B2 ([ERERE S
ERZZFE—ZFRAZ+BER BUHBER
RIERIRBEEERETEIMBEL - AR Lt
[EmA R ERREE DKL RITEZER
REBNMDAR AR - WA R IREBRIER 8 2 (ER T
JATTE ©

45.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2012, a new
share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
“Old Option Scheme”) was expired on 26th May 2012,
no further options can be granted under the Old Option
Scheme thereafter. However, all outstanding share
option granted under the Old Option Scheme prior
to the said expiry shall remain valid and exercisable
in accordance with the provisions of the Old Option
Scheme.
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45. LR X N2 HRER S (&

B R Bz T 2 ERER T

(iii)

FEEESARFRARNLKESERS
HERNBEE  WMEARFRAKEX
ARERARAREZEMNKEE EE
(EEEEBDIFLCERKAREERZ
EERy S BN -

RERZEFERRARERTAKREEME
B2RIAFBER (BRARARENM
MEBARSEMRREERZENES
BRPTHFATRERBLEAS) A
SEMBTENES 2EMSEA BA
SEFTMRRE[BZEMEBEREE
ERBH e/ RExREX  BR -
BN HER LEAXEEA T
F RN BEEAIFEA) LD H
BoEIREP(BREMSER)HES
EERMBERRCT R E AL B M
WIREERIELEBMZE@AL -

BB ERAE BT R L 2 BREER
MR B A I ) B B A ) At B AR ET 27T B
REZBERERMS R ZBNHBE LRTE
AN ER BRI E AR RARIE #
TTRARZ210% » iz ER AT B BRRE R R
RELEH - AITRREFEREE R
B EmE R RS (R EEBRE )
EREMARTE BRERAERTZ
BHEE LRI EHEB IR HETRND

30% ©

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are

summarised as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

The purpose is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group or any
invested entity in which the Group held an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The eligible participants include full time or part
time employees of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or
not, of the Company or any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity); any holder of any securities
issued by the Group; and any business or
joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees
(including any sub-licensee) or distributors,
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors, has contributed or may contribute to
the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option
scheme for the time being of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of
the New Option Scheme and such limit might
be refreshed by the shareholders in general
meeting. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme (including the Old Option
Scheme) must not exceed 30% of the shares in

issue from time to time.
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45. LR X N2 HERS (&

FEREA S Z TR EFBANT - (8)

(iv)

(vi)

BROFESRRIE  NMEM+ZEARK
TERAERSEEZRBEE (BRECT
- CEEREARTEBRE) BTEE
BEERTEBBETZRODBBETSEBETE
EETRNDZ1%

REBEZEBEEHAHE (BEZA) L2
TZEARARAARIBERETERR (TE
REMHRADSKHEFEM S EHEA T
UERTERREFTMBEATER Y
BRE(BEETE  BdERERITE
B BITEREETRETEITZR
MBYH () HTBBBADALET
B 201% : R(b)REGXEZ L B EAR
RNARMD ZWHEFE  BEBETSER
5,000,000/ 7 * BRIFE SRR E ©

TEHREFERNRXHBERERRE A
REFBRT AEEBEREAHET
Fo

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are

summarised as follows: (Continued)

(iv)

(Vi)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time
to time unless the same is approved by the
shareholders.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of its respective associates or an
independent non-executive director or any of
his associates (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
grant: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per
cent. of the shares in issue; and (b) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, unless the same is approved
by the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

T-NER=ZF

BREHARERELROTIAHES
SEEIN UE-RATBBER A ET
BRI LA B EARERE -

7¥K ?X /\ 7R
1 ()
AR

K& B30 H A 4B I
P WARARRRMUETZ

%TAIE °
BREZTEEVARUTEEZESE

a. REL B BARR R — I i 7 5t
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@ o
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are

summarised as follows: (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

At 31st December 2019 and 2018,

Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer;

b. the average closing price of a share of
the Company from the 5 business days
(has the meaning stated in the Listing
Rules) immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

C. the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption.

there was no

outstanding share options under any share option

scheme.
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45. URHP X 2REXRE (& 45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
TEREBALRAETERER -EE - A£EHEER The following table discloses details of the Company’s
HMSBEMBERAREREZFBRELEE) share options held by the Company’s substantial
shareholders, the directors, employees of the Group
and other participants and movements in such holdings:
EREHE
Number of share options
RZE-NE
tzAzt-8>
Z8-nE
-B-BR
RZB-N% Z2-nE
-f-8  ZE-N\E  ZB-Nf  ZB-0\f ZB-N\E TIBZt-H
SEEER HHER AR BR1EE HATE GEE] hAR hEH hEGE HATE
Outstanding
at 31.12.2018,
Exercise  Outstanding Expired  Adjustment Granted Exercised 01.01.2019
Category Exercisable price at during during during during and
of participants Name of scheme period* pershare  01.01.2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 31.12.2019
A
HK$
TEEEE EBRERE
Employees of the Group 0ld Option Scheme 21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 46.136* 174,585 (179,179) 4594 - - -
HBEREE
New Option Scheme ~ 04.05.2015 - 03.05.2018 3150 37,000,000  (37,000,000) - - - -
05.10.2018 - 04.10.2021 0.560 - - - 52,000,000  (52,000,000) -
08.10.2018 - 07.10.2021 0.560 - - - 29,000,000  (29,000,000) -
37174585 (37,179,179) 4594 81,000,000  (81,000,000) -
Appak ERRENH
Other participants 0ld Option Scheme 21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 46.136* 22,129 (22,709) 580 - - -
i REE
New Option Scheme ~ 04.05.2015 - 03.05.2018 3150 16,720,000  (16,720,000) - - - -
08.10.2018 - 07.10.2021 0.560 - - - 9,000,000 (9,000,000) -
16,742,129 (16,742,709) 580 9,000,000 (9,000,000) -
53,916,714 (53,921,888) 5,174 90,000,000 (90,000,000) -
METHREE
Weighted average exercise price 331 331 0.56 0.56 -

AN
[ |
—-=

Y

b EEBBR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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B

* BRBZTEERBMERERATKZHEE
ZE-NFENARBRETIAHE -

# TR B AR ERER L ARG -

been adjusted with effect from 6th August 2018 due to

The exercise prices and numbers of share options have

the right issue completed on the same date.

grant of the relevant share options.

The exercisable period commenced on the date of

) an

L.

-
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P e T 5 o fﬂf ' 9051 : x‘JEﬁQZEHﬁ ° é:k:l:f
T-N\F+-A=+-RLEFEAHEERERX
MK o

AR 5 (&)

HE-_T—\F+-_A=+-BLFER BE
BEAZZT-NF+ARBE=_ZE—N\F+AN
HERL RZSABMERBE 2 BEREZGEFTR
FEEDRI4A10,578,000/8 7T K. 7,766,000/5 7T °

REE-FT-N\F+_A=+—"HLEFERATE
2 B - TRAT6R H HI 2 INRE T 15 BB /R0.5678

IT ©

HEATRARRHZBRRHE  HREAZH
ABBEWT :
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45,

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed,
expired or cancelled during the year ended 31st
December 2019. No share option was lapsed or

cancelled during the year ended 31st December 2018.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, share
options were granted on 5th October 2018 and 8th
October 2018. The estimated fair values of the share
options granted on those dates are approximately,
HK$10,578,000 and HK$7,766,000 respectively.

In respect of the share options exercised during the
year ended 31st December 2018, the weighted average
share price at the dates of exercise was HK$0.56.

These fair values were calculated using the binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

—E-)N\F —\F

+ARH +ANH

5th October 8th October

2018 2018

TEEGET) Exercise price (HK$) 0.56 0.56
TEBIR 1R (%) Expected volatility (%) 63.25 63.23
?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ (%) Expected life (years) 3 3
B F (%) Risk-free rate (%) 2.32 2.35
?EI/HHH B U E (%) Expected dividend yield (%) - -

BHREDRAARRARRERE=F2ELKIE
MEE - BAPAAEREUADERERELZ
REME AT TEZEL TRERHRTRER
AENFETARE -

Z’-‘E@ﬁgum :l:—;ij\ﬁzik )E] +*E|
TFERMARABMELBRE Z AR
18,344,000/ JT °

SRR T IR 2 AT EE - T H
BEATEERFAEERERDENEE LS
fEfEs - MR BEAREFEBMRRTA
BT -

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 3 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised total expense of approximately
HK$18,344,000 for the year ended 31st December 2018
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the share options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an share option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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A

46. E j{ EggA 4 5‘5% 46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
FTEVBBRRIEMBREIN  KEBHEEE Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
RN T TIINERRS : financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material transactions with related parties:
HEr-—_T—-NE+-_F=+—HB1t& (a) During the year ended 31st December 2018,
EA RAEEERZEIREAEERE Mr. Heung and Ms. Chen had provided personal
1,600,000,0008 T 2 Al ) AR ITIZE E & guarantee to a bank for the Group to obtain
MIRITIREEAZER R-ZE—NF+= available banking facilities with the amounts of
A=1t—0B mEErERatmEHEA HK$1,600,000,000. At 31st December 2019, the
EROA+TRHH RBA - provision of personal guarantee by Mr. Heung
and Ms. Chen remains in full force and effect.
BHE-_ZT-N\FE+-_A=+—HILFE (b)  During the year ended 31st December 2018,
N AN RS 422 960,0008 T T & the Company had advanced payment of
FEEEBAE-R_Z—N\F+=-A approximately HK$22,960,000 to certain key
=+—8  1F 412,880,000/ T i& K E management personnel. At 31st December
BYGAEMEWRRIE -ZZBEREE 2018, amounts of approximately HK$12,880,000
“E-NEF-_A=t—RHIFEERNEE - were still outstanding and included in other
receivables. These outstanding amounts were
repaid during the year ended 31st December
2019.
FR - AEBEEBEALIZTIRS: (c) During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with its related parties:
—T-N\F
2018
FET
HK$'000
REME Nature of transactions
CWHMEE—BEER%¥2  Income received from a joint
WA venture:
EEEBERA Management fee income 270 600
Bl ERREETERRK Income received/receivable
BEEZHAC from substantial shareholder
and director:
BHH B WA Loan interest income 67,071 59,532

B,/ ENEERKRRES 2 Expense paid/payable to substantial
BX: shareholder and director:
AR ZFLE Interest on promissory note - 1,871
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46. EXBEALIRZ (&

(d)

RMEER BREBALT X DEBRFRB
B RRE M HRER W 21540 ©

MERA M RRMEIHRE  TRER
ABZME(BEENARRAEERET
BERFMERS ZFB)MT

46.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Details of the balances with related parties at
the end of the reporting period are set out in
notes 21 and 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(e) Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the directors of the
Company and certain of the highest paid
employees, as disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, is as follow:

¥ B B At Fr B
VABAD 32 A 2 BRI R 2
RRAEFIE 4K

contributions

EXERIZEBAGZHEMIBEFEHES
EREBBARRETZBEMEE °

Salaries and other remuneration

Retirement benefits scheme

—B-hF —ZE-N\F

2019 2018

FERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

23,116 24,663

Share-based payment expenses - 10,193
115 144

23,231 35,000

The remuneration of the directors and key
management personnel is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31st

SHESHINOT December 2019 are listed as follows:
N
/AL g8 iR b fisfieR BETRAR
WEAFAR 8%/ 4% LY ERRREELH Ra/ifEs  IEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held ~ held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
Z5-0f ZE)\E
2019 2018
% %
EERERLA & LBR 100 100 BT BhaREREE
Art Lord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Art Piece investment and rental
Asiatop Data Limited &5 Lk 100 100 081 RERBARE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10  Provision of nominee services
Best Combo Limited EERREE LR 100 100 Er o RERR
BVI Ordinary US$T  Investment holding
Best Mind International Inc. AERAHE L 100 100 100%kr  RE
(W) (Note b) BV Ordinary US$100  Investment
Big Century Limited B LaEk 100 100 Br BANEFLERL
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Holding of property for rental
purpose
Business First Limited ABENES Lak 100 100 ET FAEERERE
BVI Ordinary US$1 Holding of cable right
THEEAERARAA (35 L3R 100 100 BT BAER
China Star Artist Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$T  Artist management
TEEEMERARRA W) 1§ THER 100 100 100,0008F%  THEXERRE
China Star Creative Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Development Limited (Aore b) development and

investment
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47. WEBLATEE (& 47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
A0H
2/ RL/ EE frisi fiisfER BRTRAR
WEARAR B3/1% 3l BERRZRLH RE/EMER  IEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZF-0F ZE)\E
2019 2018
% %
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited EERRES LER 100 100 N0ET  FEER
BVI Ordinary US8200  Investment holding
hEEREERERAA 5 ERR/ 100 100 2BTzERRR  REER
China Star Entertainment Holding Limited Hong Kong ERZEELR 100000082 Investment holding
Ordinary/ ERZEELR
Non-voting (Hi#a)
deferred HKS2 for ordinary
shares and
HK$1,000,000 for
Non-voting deferred
shares (ofe g)
TEEFERTARLA (3 R 100 100 10000087 EFREREEEES
China Star HK Distribution Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000  Distribution of films and

television drama series

TEEFEREARAA B R 100 100 10000008 SHEMERTRRELK
China Star HK Entertainment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000  Distribution of video rights and
Company Limited Investment holding
HEESHEERAT Bk Lok 100 100 %1 RESTRELE HER
China Star i-Content Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 Bh AR
Provision of film production
controller, director and
producer services
China Star International Distribution Limited ~ XBRZES LER 100 100 8001XT  ERREREEHEN
(Wi a) (Note ) BVI Ordinary US$8,001  Distribution of films and

television drama series

241



282 PR EBHBIEAD CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ik

4% & BB #Ht 3 B 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-NE+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

47.

Goy- PNCIEES

47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
A0H
2/ RL/ EE frisi fiisfER BRTRAR
WEARAR B3/1% 3l BERRZRLH RE/EMER  IEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZF-0F ZE)\E
2019 2018
% %
China Star International Movie Limited EERRES LER 100 100 #r YR
(#b) (Note b) BYI Ordinary US$1  Film production
HERTYRERAT B R 100 100 15000008 REEERHERRELK
China Star Laser Disc Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000  Provision of management
services and Investment
holding
TEEERERAN () 1y TEEA 100 100 B0000EFH  NREEEAREZEEER
China Star Management Company Macau Quota capital MOP250,000  Property project management
Limited (Note b) and construction project
management
TEEERARLA B R 100 100 BT REER
China Star Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
TEEEFARLA B R 100 100 %L FTRERES
China Star Movie Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Film production and
distribution
HEEEY (R ARAA (Hb) 1§ THER 100 100 B0RFE  BYREREN
China Star Movie (Macau) Limited Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Film production and
(Note b) distribution
HEEFBARLA Bk Lok 100 100 %N RAEEME
China Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2  Holding of film rights
HEEEELRERAT Bk Lk 100 100 BT BERETRAME
China Star Publishing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Holding and licensing of
song rights
China Star Trademark Limited EERRES LER 100 100 1 REBERWE
BVI Ordinary US$1 Holding of trademark and

copyrights



e i 9

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £k Bl B A2 R CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

4% & W B #t 3 B 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE—_T—NF+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2019

47. WEATHE (&) 47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
A0H
2/ RL/ EE frisi fiisfER BRTRAR
WEARAR B3/1% 3l BERRZRLH RE/EMER  IEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZF-0F ZE)\E
2019 2018
% %
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.Y. wH LRk 100 100 18518 BYREREEERN
(W7 a) (Note a) Netherlands Ordinary EUR18,151  Distribution of films and

television drama series

FEEZERAT B R 100 100 100008 REER
Chunjiao Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000  Investment holding
Classic Champion Holdings Limited ZERRES LER 100 100 #r REAER
(W b) (Note b) BYI Ordinary US$1  Investment holding
Crown Gem Investments Limited EERRES LR 50 50 B RERR
BVI Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
Empowered Century Limited ZERRES LER 100 100 #r REARR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
First-Up Investments Limited EERRES LER 100 100 1 EABERREREARE
BVI Ordinary US§1 Artist management and
provision of agency
services
BRERARAT Bk Lk 100 100 B EREE
Gold Choice International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Film production
REERBRA WD) A TEEA 50 50 B000%F%  REAR
Hercules-Holding Company Limited (Nofe )~ Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
AEREFRAT Bk Lak 100 100 BT EREBERAREN
Hero Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1  Television drama series

production and distribution
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47. MEB D TSE (& 47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
A0H
2/ RL/ EE frisi fiisfER BRTRAR
WEAREH 8%/ 4% LE] ERERRZELSH Ra/dmex  EER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZF-0F ZE)\E
2019 2018
% %
High Productive Trading Limited EERRES LER 100 100 #r RARR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Intrinsic Value Limited EERRES LER 100 100 1 RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Modern Vision (Asia) Limited ZERRES LR 100 100 #r REARR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
2R (BB)BRAT Bk Lok 100 100 BT BENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2  Property holding
FINRERAT Bk Lk 100 100 B REEARH
Obba Bar Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1  Provision of catering services
~REEFARLA B R 100 100 30000008 EFRf
One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000  Film production
Over Profit Interational Limited EERRES LER 50 50 00%r  REER
BVI Ordinary US§100  Investment holding
ERXBYERLA 5 Lak/ 100 100 1,001,000  EFET
Riche Video Limited Hong Kong ERZEELR BL@E%  Film distribution
Ordinary/Non- 12,000,000 7
Voting deferred AERZEEL
Rt (Hia)
HK$1,001,000
for ordinary
shares and
HK$2,000,000 for

non-voting deferred
shares (ofe g
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47 WEB LD SIS (& 47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
A0H
2/ RL/ EE frisi fiisfER BRTRAR
WEARAR B3/1% 3l BERRZRLH RE/EMER  IEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZF-0F ZE)\E
2019 2018
% %
BEREARAT Bk Lok 100 100 % BEFEFRESEEH
S & W Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2  Production of film and
television drama series
Smart Value Developments Limited EERRES LER 100 100 #r REARR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
AEREBERARRAN (W) A TEEA 50 50 1000002F%  THEERRRE
Splendid Construction and Investment Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Company Limited (Note b) development and
investment
RYREERAT Bk Lok 100 100 B REER
Star Choice Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
REABERRA B R 100 100 BT REER
Star Joy International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
EBRRARLT (Hito) A TEEA 50 50 B000%F%  REAR
Stronghold-Holding Company Limited Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
(Note b)
Summer Sound Investments Limited AERAHEE LER 50 50 00%r  REER
BVI Ordinary US§100  Investment holding
Superb Glory Investments Limited EERRES LER - 100 #n RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

47. MBRAFHE (&

(Continued)
L]
2/ RL/ EE frisi frisfaR BRARER
WEARAR B3/1% LE] ERERRZELSH Ra/dmex  EER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZF-0F ZE)\E
2019 2018
% %
Triumph Top Limited AERAHEE LRk 100 100 #r RARR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Turbo International Co. Limited AERAHEE LRk 100 100 5000057 REERBELIRE
BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Holding TV drama series
licensing right
EEDNERHRARAA E HER 100 100 10000000T  EAPREEY - £EXE
(H#cke) (Notes ¢ and ) The PRC Registered HK$10,000,000 REZRBMREARAE
capltal ElfE
Distribution of PRC film,
corporate planning, props
and equipment rental and
dramatic creation

Mt - Notes:

(a) ERRICEETS - (a) Operating internationally.

(b) RIS EET - (b) Operating in Macau.

(c) ERBEEEER - (c) Operating in the PRC.

(d) EREREEERMERTEEFD>ZZA AR (d) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
B BURZRAAREAGzAE HEZEAX rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
eYEe FREEN EEZRETATEE or vote at any general meeting of the Company nor to
A2k ° participate in any distribution on winding up.

(e) BHNERE - (e) Wholly foreign owned enterprises.
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A
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47. WEBRARFHE (&)

Best Combo Limited * Best Mind International
Inc. » China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited *
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V. -
Classic Champion Holdings Limited K& Turbo
International Co. Limited!J AN AR HEFAE °
FBEREMMEAR B ARRARMERE -

BEBEBEN WEBARZIZLXMHERE
B o

FAMBARREE R TR EMEERERE
[ 2 B 5 o

EERR AREZHEREREAKEME T
BAEM YERAMEFE 2 W EHA MR
RABIULEY - I YEZEFZ2EMBE AR
ZEIPBEERETIUZS -

(Continued)

Best Combo Limited, Best Mind International Inc., China
Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited, China Star Worldwide
Distribution B.V., Classic Champion Holdings Limited
and Turbo International Co. Limited are directly held by
the Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is in Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The directors consider that the Group’s non-controlling
interests were insignificant to the Group and thus are
not separately presented in these consolidated financial
statements for both years. In addition, no separate
financial information of these non-wholly owned
subsidiaries is required to be presented.
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(a)

/N Tl B ¢ S = % 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
. g2\ M T5 /. 2z
Eb AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
RN B B #E AR SR R (a) Statement of financial position of the
Company
—E-N\F
2018
FET
HK$’000
kRBEE Non-current asset
LI ENGIE E Interests in subsidiaries 70,499 99,599
REBEE Current assets
JE UL BT /&8 R B RIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,104,250 2,572,902
& ENIRER Deposits, prepayment and other
HAth fE W 5K IR receivables 14,696 18,537
FE U E R Loan receivable 99,568 -
e MIRITHE % Cash and bank balances 284,002 722,191
2,502,516 3,313,630
BMEE Total assets 2,573,015 3,413,229
EXREE Capital and reserves
(&N Share capital 27,110 28,011
i 8 Reserves 2,505,597 2,923,007
HiER Total equity 2,532,707 2.951,018
FRBEE Non-current liability
FET I B A R 3RTE Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,304 27,356
REEE Current liability
BUEZES - EFFIEE & Deposits received, accruals and
o fE T RIB other payables 13,004 434 855
=Rig it Total liabilities 40,308 462,211
EEhEERE Total equity and liabilities 2,573,015 3,413,229
RBEEFE Net current assets 2,489,512 2,878,775
BEERREBARG Total assets less current liabilities 2,560,011 2,978,374

MATERERREEZGRE

DE-3:3
Heung Wah Keung
BF

Director

Signed on behalf of the board of directors by:

BR B 2

Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

BF

Director
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48. 2|§ NI IE\y_I' 7']’% ﬂj{ w %:Z ¥ ﬁ% ﬁ ﬁ 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(/é% AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
AAFIREEELS (b) Movement of reserves of the Company
WRBxftz  AATRRK g5 (BHER)/
RHEE  AARR  RERKG  EERE HAERE  REEX it
Bonus (Accumulated
Share-based  convertible Capital losses)/
Share  Contributed payment bonds reduction retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
FiEn Tt FiEn FiEn Tt T FiEn
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(Hita) (fitv) (Hite) (o) (Wite)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note e)
RZE-\E-F-A At 1st January 2018 1,488,186 1,946,363 55,665 1,132 316,008 (1,400,332) 2,407,022
FERTIRZENALE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 438,191 438,191
B A AT R Issue of new shares by
way of rights issue 433,777 - - - - - 433,777
&R Share issuing expenses (3,501) - - - - - (3501)
EREsE Expiry of share options - - (55,665) - - 55,665 -
BREEEE RN Recognition of equity settled
ZRANFE share-based payments - - 18,344 - - - 18,344
ke Exercise of share options 67,844 - (18,344) - - - 49,500
gAREEA Transfer to retained earnings - (1382478) - - - 1382478 -
BHllRE (Hi12) Special dividend (note 12) - - - - - (4036 (42032)
RZE-NEFZA=+-HB  At31st December 2018
RAZE-NE-A-H and at 1st January 2019 1,986,306 563,885 - 1132 316,008 55,676 2,923,007
FEEERZAERLE Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - (9.319) (9.319)
ERRFERG Repurchase and cancellation
of shares (68,787) - - - - - (68,787)
BORAEER ZRA Transaction cost attributable to
repurchase of shares (296) - - - - - (296)
BATER S Special interim dividend
(Hiz1) (note 12) - (339,008) - - - - (339,008)
NPT Transfer to contributed surplus - 316,008 - - (316,008 - -
RZE-AE+ZA=T-HB  At31st December 2019 1,917,223 540,885 - 1,132 - 46,357 2,505,597
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Movement of reserves of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company
can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to shareholders of

the company as fully paid bonus shares.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company
brought forward represents the balance
transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th
September 2002 and various capital reduction

subsequently.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus account
of a company is available for distribution or
apply the amount standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus account in such manner as
the board of directors considers appropriate,
including but not limited to setting off against
any accumulated losses of the Company.
However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or (ii) the realisable value
of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share

capital and share premium accounts.

(c) Share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received
in exchange for the grant of the relevant share
options over the relevant vesting periods, the
total of which is based on the fair value of the
options at grant date. The amount for each
period is determined by spreading the fair
value of the share options over the relevant
vesting periods (if any) and is recognised
as staff costs and related expenses with a
corresponding increase in the share-based

payment reserve.
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ARERERY ()

Htet - (%)

(d)

BEARAR_ZE—ZF+A=Z+H
BRERAOZBREFIAS BAGHE
TTHLFIB& 17 (BR 3R A #3812 UL BR AL A1 7]
BREFURBAFBRD) 2 L wBAZ
R ARRA LY RRESTR0.0E
TCEE AT A B A i R 2 AT F R R AR
B o AR AT 42 IR B A 25 HE R I
AR TR ESFRE] 27 45
RBRESFTARETRAATER - #
MEEEN A EBAFNTRARESRFSE
ANEBERD HERENEFES
AR B ALFI 1T 8] B 47 URER 2 41 FIl %
DEE - M0 A R AR R U AT A
HRBRES - AFIRRESTESR
REERBRERE 2R ER - REE
MA@ ES 2 ERAFEZEZ
BERRGEE AFTRRESFBAEA
P TE B ATALFI AT H2 AR (B 5 B BB B 1T {8
R HE o

ARARZEXREIRFEEER— AN
4 i 7N 1 F]332,640,0000% B 2178 5
ZEEREREEICE THRES
BEECOSE TAMEL & R E
EREARRAR Z A E A 12006k #
Bz —ERER  ERERFEETA
EXHARREREZLE BE-
FREE URATAEEREFNER
MEXR - BRRE N AAEMAR A
HHAEEERA AR EEIER
BIR B A A EREE AR mESE
ZARARBABHBERERZEED ¥
ZEBIORBEESHEZ —BESE
REREAPABBE  UBLEARQ
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4% & W B #t 3 B 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Movement of reserves of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held
on 25th October 2012 in relation to the bonus
issue of shares (with a right for shareholders
to elect to receive Bonus CBs in lieu of bonus
shares), Bonus CBs can be converted into
ordinary shares at initial conversion price
of HK$0.01 per share were issued by the
Company. The Bonus CBs are recognised as
equity and are presented in “bonus convertible
bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted
and irredeemable but have conversion rights
entitling the bondholders to convert into an
equivalent number of shares as the number of
bonus shares which the Bonus CBs holders
would otherwise be entitled to receive under
the bonus issue had the shareholder not
elected for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do
not carry voting rights at any general meeting
of shareholders of the Company. Bonus CBs
holders can exercise the conversion rights at
any time after the issue of Bonus CBs, subject
to the terms and conditions of the applicable
deed poll constituting the Bonus CBs.

The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00
each to HK$0.05 each in 1998. Pursuant to a
resolution passed by the directors pursuant to
Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off
any loan capital or for equalising dividends
or for any other purpose to which the profits
of the Company may be properly applied.
Considering that the capital reduction reserve
has same nature as the contributed surplus
account of the Company which was also
arising from capital reduction, the reserve is
transferred to the contributed surplus account
pursuant to a board resolution approved by the
directors in order to simplify reserves of the
Company.
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49. METEHFFELAMBIHWEE 49 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

TERHAIBREFHAEEZASERE (B
NERBFHEZEEZHRAARE) WER (B

ReRHRSE

) BMEARBMELAGEM

BRRAERECKIEAARARRSRERERNA
SEZEAREREXRTHERBERD 2 RE

==
/ﬁi°

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s

liabilities arising from financing activities (including

liabilities associated with assets classified as held for

sale), including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

HE
Bi7EE  HEEK  HERE ANE  EARE EGRE @it
Obligations
under
Bank finance Lease Promissory Interest Dividend
borrowings leases liabilities note payables payables Total
THEL T THL T THET T THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-\E—F—H At st January 2018 670,000 353 - 173817 3,216 - 847,386
BECRENE Financing cash flows (670,000) ) - (200,000) (5,416) - (875418)
FH2EH Non-cash changes
HEMBAR (4/7741)  Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 41) - (351) - - - - (351)
REEDAFNZZER  Loss on early redemption
on promissory note - - - 24,778 - - 24,778
RS (Wit12) Special dividend (note 12) - - - - - 42032% 420,326
BHEARELEZEE Reclassification from liabilities
WERERENDE associated with assets
classified as held for sale - - - - 770 - 770
BHRFERT (#i£9)  Interest expenses
recognised (note 9) - - - 1,405 1,430 - 2,835
RZB-N\F+_A At 31st December 2018
=t-H - - - - - 4203% 420,326
EREBHBREEE  Application of HKFRS 16
165 (Hfit2) (note 2) - - 18,341 - - - 18,341
RZE-NF—-A—H  AtlstJanuary 2019 - - 18,341 - - 420,326 438,667
BEZRENE Financing cash flows 1,030,150 - (5,847) - (37,131)  (759,334) 227,838
FEEE Non-cash changes
KBl R & Special interim dividend
(Hrit12) (note 12) - - - - - 339,008 339,008
BRAFERT (Hi£9)  Interest expenses
recognised (note 9) - - - - 408 - 408
BRCFISFAT (H729)  Interest expenses
capitalised (note 9) - - - - 36,723 - 36,723
RZE-RE+=A At 31st December 2019
=+-§ 1,030,150 - 12,494 - - - 1,042,644
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TEFRERS
AEBAITHEERRSRARBAED 3
SEDUBRRANGARLREE

(a) RZE-NF+AEBER=E—N\F+
A+B ETHESBEADNKTER
BGR0.567 AT RS 2 AR R ARG
52,000,000/% %% 29,000,0000% i% 17 + 42 %8
#$45,360,0008 7T - BEENRERITE B H
R 5T A E A 8 Y RIE -

(b) RIB-NF+ZATNH EFgAR
REAMTHBESFEAT RN
AR B &R BESEN - BRFRIRE
REEBRDAIRN LT AE AR KA

51. kB E=F
AEEBR-_ZE—NF—A—HVNXERBETEHK
MAEERE165E - BIFBE A LLEEH T
ERil

52. #LEGZESHE®RE

AW BREN S _EF=A=THEES
SHERIEETE -

50.

51.

52.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the followings major non-cash
investing and financing activities which are not reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

(a) On 5th October 2018 and 10th October 2018,
certain option holders exercised their option
right to subscribe for 52,000,000 shares and
29,000,000 shares respectively at exercise
price of HK$0.56 per share with the aggregate
amounts of HK$45,360,000 for which the
consideration remains unsettled at the date of
exercise and included in other receivables.

(b) On 18th December 2018, the board of directors
declared to distribute special dividend of
HK15 cents per ordinary share to shareholders
and Bonus CBs holders for which the special
dividend did not pay up to the end of the
reporting period and included in other payables.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st January
2019. Under the transition methods, comparative
information is not restated.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30th March 2020.
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AEBEBENEAVRFEZENEXEREERAGER

2(REBACTZEZEERPBRR)HIINTX -

£

A summary of the published results and the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the published audited financial statements, is

set out below.

Results

Yogs

BBiAT (B8) & F

PR (AxX) /He

RERBEREERZFE
(BR) /& H

KEERILEEERBZ
FEEN/ (BB

FE(BR) /&7

ATALRIEFE
(BR)/&H

AREHEEA

IR

Revenue

(Loss)/profit before tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

(Loss)/profit for the year from

continuing operations

Profit/(loss) for the year from

discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit for the year

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

BZE+=-A=t+-BLEFE
For the year ended 31st December

= | ZE-N\F ZZT—+tF ZE—RX —T-hE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
TR FTET FET FET TET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&E7)) (&=351)
(restated) (restated)
7,053 3,493 9,272 266,420 1,039,758
(335,696) (405,336) 110,036 (291,928) 104,768
(35) - (5) - 149
(335,731) (405,336) 110,031 (291,928) 104,917
- 1,458,855 (36,695) (43,683) 2,947
(335,731) 1,053,519 73,336 (335,611) 107,864
(335,226) 1,053,530 73,312 (335,609) 107,871
(505) (11) 24 (2) (7)
(335,731) 1,053,519 73,336 (335,611) 107,864
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EEREE Assets and liabilities
R+=A=+-8H
At 31st December
—T-N\F ZE—+tF ZT-RF ZT—hF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

TERT TAT TAT TAT TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EEMBE Total assets 5,398,206 5483222  5099,803 4,277,204 4,791,461
BELE Total liabilities (1,711,297)  (1,051,385)  (1,818,343) (1,069,277)  (1,325,704)
EEFE Net assets 3,686,909 4431837 3281460 3,207,927 3,465,757

ANREBAEGOES Equity attributable to owners of

the Company 3,687,539 4431962 3281574 3208362 3,466,190
RIS Non-controlling interests (630) (125) (114) (435) (433)

B Total equity 3,686,909 4,431,837 3,281,460 3,207,927 3,465,757
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A4 2 8 J& b P % The Group’ s Properties Under Development

AEER=B-NF+=A=+—BZERPNEFE

Particulars of the Group’s properties under development at

IR T X : 31st December 2019 are set out below:
Be  fieg
fhi  BBEE HE% k31
1% BRHE RIRR RIFH  (FFK) (E5K) R# BEERE%
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated sitearea  floor area Effective%
Stage of completion (square (square held by
Location Lot number completion year meter) meter)  Usage the Group
BRANEEER 64 EC  DREME HIEE ke ke 25 3,900 46,157 HE-HER 100%
BERZE-NEF 5
+ZARI  E#T
REIR
Zona de Aterros do Porto LotC,DandEin Construction stage 2020 Residential, commercial
Exterior, Macau (ZAPE) Quarteirdo 6 completed in and carparking
December 2019,
renovation in
progress
RFMBLBLAEH BERHACETR FERER —ZomE 4,700 30000 EEXREES 50%
HERNE
Nam Van Lakes Zone, Lot 7, da Zone C do Development stage 2024 Residential and

Avenida Doutor
Stanley Ho, Macau

Plano de Urbanizagéo
da Zone da Baia da
Praia Grande

carparking
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